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CHAIR HOKAMA:

(Gavel).

We shall bring the Council's

13

Committee on Budget and Finance to order.

14

the 7th of April 2003.

15

Mr. Kane, Ms. Johnson, Mr. Mateo, Mr. Molina,

16

Mr. Pontanilla, and Ms. Tavares.

17

Mr. Carroll and Mr. Nishiki.

18

ITEM NO.1:

19

CHAIR HOKAMA:

This is

This morning we have

Excused are

FISCAL YEAR 2004 BUDGET

Okay, before we start, we will have public

20

testimony.

21

yourselves available and known to the Staff in the

22

front.

23

comments, at which time the Staff will inform you

24

that you're at the three-minute mark and you will

25

have up to one minute to conclude.

Those wishing to testify, please make

You have three minutes to give your
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4

This morning we have Mr. John Sutherland as

2

the first testifier.

3

you are representing an organization, state that

4

organization's name also, please.
.BEGIN PUBLIC TESTIMONY.

5

6

Please state your name, and if

MR. SUTHERLAND:

Good morning.

My name's John Sutherland.

7

I'm not representing any organization per se,

8

up here as a member of the community.

9

handouts passed out here this morning.

just

I had some
Real

10

before I begin reading this, which you have in front

11

of you, I'd like to ask by a show of hands how many

12

people in this room have been burglarized or had

13

their cars broken into?

14

lucky, then.

15

Anyone?

You're all very

Very good.

I'll just go ahead and read this.

And

16

basically the subject,

"Break-ins, Burglars;

17

increased police patrol funding and publishing

18

photos of convicted persons in The Maui News."

19

due to the high rate of break-ins and the low

20

capture rate, it is apparent that increased funding

21

to the Police Department for the purpose of stepping

22

up patrols at beach and other tourist stops is a

23

high priority.

24

community, are and have been affected negatively by

25

these crimes.

One,

Tourism, as well as our local

It's now time to affect the criminals
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1

and rip-off crews by capture and meaningful jail

2

time and restitution.

3

Secondly, when these people are caught,

4

publish their pictures in The Maui News.

There are

5

no legal ramifications if they are guilty, and if

6

their friends see their pictures in the paper

7

listing their crimes, perhaps these types of crimes

8

will not seem as intriguing or exciting to them.

9

The Maui community has the right to know when these

10

convicted felons are cruising their neighborhood or

11

checking out their vehicles while away from home.

12

Identifying the problem is the first step to solving

13

the problem.
I was recently burglarized down at McGreggor

14
15

Point, my truck broken into, a great deal of my

16

goods taken.

17

person that I've spoken to recently has either had a

18

break-in of their home or vehicle or knows one of

19

their neighbors who have been invaded by these

20

thugs.

21

going to do about it?

22

change that's meaningful.

23

Subsequently, nearly every third

My question to all of you is what are we
How are we going to implement

One more thing I would like to add to this is

24

when I published an ad in The Maui News here

25

recently regarding stolen property, the response I
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1

got from The Maui News initially was, oh, well, we

2

can't print "stolen," and I said, excuse me?

3

what are you saying you can't print "stolen"?

4

it's just our policy.

5

speak with your publisher and your owners, and, you

6

know,

7

happened.

8

policy has been to put "lost" as the substitute for

9

"stolen. "

10

I go,
Well,

And I said, well, then I'll

I'm paying for this ad.
It wasn't lost.

This is what

It was stolen.

Their

She called me back in about 20 minutes and

11

said please accept my apologies.

12

"stolen."

13

not -- either not doing something or even the

14

newspaper of not publishing the actual reality of,

15

you know, what's going on so that the next time this

16

doesn't happen to somebody else or somebody doesn't

17

get stabbed to death when they come back to their

18

car too early from the beach or something.

19

We will print

So who are we protecting, you know, by

That's basically what I'm here to say, and I

20

think I've said it.

21

patience, and I hope we can do something about it,

22

because I know it affects -- you know,

23

none of you in this room have been affected

24

directly,

25

some of your friends have.

And I thank you for your

I know if

I know that you know somebody that has,
It's not a doubt.
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7

anyway, thank you very much.
CHAIR HOKAMA:

Thank you, Mr. Sutherland.

Let me ask if

3

there's any questions for Mr. Sutherland.

4

Ms. Johnson.

5

COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON:

Yes, thank you very much,

6

Mr. Sutherland, for coming.

7

where they have some of the citizens patrol?

8
9

MR. SUTHERLAND:
Point.

I don't know.

Were you in an area

We were at McGreggor

This was on the 24th, and I don't know if

10

there's patrols there or not.

11

off, so I took the day off from work and we went

12

down just to do shoreline fishing.

13

windows in my truck and took numerous things out,

14

digital cameras and all my IDs, credit cards, cash.

15

You name it.

16

COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON:

My wife had the day

They smashed two

Yeah, I don't believe they go that

I know that it is -- we have at Honolua, I

17

far.

18

know there is in Kihei, I know downtown Lahaina, and

19

some other areas.

20

always helpful, too, for the people, as citizens,

21

such as, you know, bringing this to our attention,

22

but also if there are repeated break-ins at those

23

areas, perhaps work with the other citizens patrol

24

organizations to see if there aren't people who are

25

regular fishermen out there who may just keep an eye

But one of the things that is
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1

on things.

2

if we take an active role in doing things like our

3

neighborhood watch and citizens patrol.

4

MR. SUTHERLAND:

Because I think it's very, very helpful

I agree with you.

I also would like to

5

add that any number of fishermen that I've spoken to

6

in the last couple weeks have themselves had their

7

vehicles ripped off and things broken into.

8

paying the police to provide these type of patrols.

9

The initial thrust of this letter is to provide

We are

10

additional police funding,

11

necessary.

12

know, what happens -- what happens from there?

13

if indeed that's what's

I know they're shorthanded, but, you

I mean, I'm not -- you know, if I volunteer

14

for a citizen patrol or if everybody in my

15

neighborhood does, that's great, but that's what

16

we're paying the police for with our taxes.

17

they're understaffed, underhanded, they need to hire

18

more people.

19

If

Simple as that.

The two officers that responded to this

20

particular incident, both said to me, oh, haven't

21

you been reading the paper?

And I was like, yeah,

22

I've been reading the paper.

And, well, how come

23

you brought all this stuff with you?

24

wrong for bringing my own goods with me in a locked

25

vehicle, that I should have to adjust my behavior

RALPH ROSENBERG COURT REPORTERS,
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1

for these thugs.

2

adjust the system, if that's the response I'm

3

getting from the police, period.

4
5

COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON:

Sorry.

You know, we need to

Period.

Well, thank you for bringing it to

our attention.

6

MR. SUTHERLAND:

7

CHAIR HOKAMA:

Yeah.
Okay, any other questions for

8

Mr. Sutherland this morning?

9

much for being here.

10

MR. SUTHERLAND:

11

CHAIR HOKAMA:

12

MR. SMITH:

Okay.

Okay, thank you very

Thank you again.

Next we have Mr. Jim Smith testifying.

Chairperson Hokama, Members of the Budget and

13

Finance Committee.

14

to testify and -- once again and ask you to be very

15

kind with the Parks Department and with the

16

priorities and social priorities that are embodied

17

in their fiscal plan.

18

My name is Jim Smith.

I'm here

I read an article yesterday which I find

19

disturbing.

It had to do with the budget, and it

20

was a phrase that taxes were bad for business.

21

was attributed to the Mayor.

22

accurate or not, but it reflects to me one of the

23

problems we're having with this budget, and that is

24

responsibility to the community.

25

and political consequences of how we spend money,

It

I don't know if it's

RALPH ROSENBERG COURT REPORTERS,
(808) 524-2090

That is the social

INC.

BF 4/7/03

10

1

which is really about government.

2

me that this budget is incomplete, that there is no

3

connection between financial commitment and the

4

social consequences.

5

for this Council, then, to presume the

6

responsibility of defining these issues when it has

7

so little to work with.

8
9

And it seems to

And I think it is a mistake

The abdication, it would seem, of the
prioritization is unfortunate, but the consequence

10

that this Council then would become an executive

11

branch and set the financial policies, to me, is

12

more disturbing.

13

think it says you concern yourself with items, new

14

items in the budget, but it does not set forth that

15

you are required to define the financial policies,

16

in light of being a political institution.

17

me, makes it impossible to hold someone responsible

18

for indifference, for anything that would cause me

19

to vote or not vote for that person.

20

by blinding me to who is responsible, you're causing

21

me not to know or have an option at the polls.

22

I think our Charter is clear.

I

That, to

So in effect

So I would ask you to be very, very careful

23

and to distinguish and be very specific about

24

whether or not the executive has done its duty and

25

job in this consequence and to let the people know.
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Thank you very much.
CHAIR HOKAMA:

Okay, thank you.

3

this morning, Members?

4

much for being here.

Questions for Mr. Smith

Seeing none, thank you very

5

Are there anyone else that wishes to give

6

testimony this morning to the Budget and Finance

7

Committee?

8

day.
. . . END OF PUBLIC TESTIMONY . . .

9

10

11

CHAIR HOKAMA:

This morning we have Office of

Mr. Moto, comments for the Committee before
we start your review?
DEPARTMENT OF THE CORPORATION COUNSEL

14
15

Okay.

Corporation Counsel, headed by Mr. Moto.

12
13

Seeing none, testimony's closed for the

MR. MOTO:

Good morning, Mr. Chairman and Members.

For

16

the record, I am Brian Moto, Corporation Counsel.

17

I'll just have some very brief comments-to make, and

18

I'll focus my attention on the actual number data

19

that are summarized in your department summaries,

20

the Budget Details.

21

to the highlights and then I'll open myself up for

22

questions, Mr. Chairman.

23

I'll just call your attention

First I want to note that the -- in the

24

current fiscal year, Fiscal Year 2003 the budget for

25

Corporation Counsel is 1,517,000, or approximately
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1.5.

For the proposed Fiscal Year 2004 Budget

2

that's before you for consideration that -- that

3

total figure drops to $1.467 million, which is an

4

approximate reduction of $50,000.

5

This does not represent an 8 percent

6

reduction from the current year to next year, and

7

the main reason is I was able to -- I requested, and

8

the Mayor and the Budget Director kindly supported

9

my petition or request, that they not require of me

10

the 8 percent cut that they had at one point asked.

11

Because I indicated to them that I could not make

12

that goal without perhaps cutting funding for an

13

attorney position, and we were in the process of

14

recruiting and filling that position.

15

I'm glad to say that the Budget Director

16

supported the personnel needs of the Department, and

17

therefore, the budget that is before you for Fiscal

18

Year 2004 does budget for all of the existing 12

19

attorney positions in the Department, as well as all

20

of the existing secretarial and clerical positions

21

in the Department.

22

12 attorneys.

23

attorneys.

24

at 11, and a new attorney will be starting with the

25

Department in -- on April the 14th, at which point

Just to let you know, there are

When fully staffed, we are 12

That includes myself.

We are currently
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2

we shall have a full staff of 12 attorneys.
The proposed budget for Fiscal Year 2004 does
For

3

anticipate some changes in account numbers.

4

just for highlight purposes I'll note that the

5

proposed budget does include amounts for salary

6

adjustments to -- for both attorneys and staff.

7

Secondly[ you will see that in your Budget Details

8

that we had to reduce the appropriation for a couple

9

of accounts in order to make the reductions that had

10
11

been requested in our overall budget.
In particular[ one of the appropriations or

12

accounts under our Legal Services Administration is

13

an account for professional services.

14

code 905018[ sub index code 0132[ entitled

15

Professional Services.

16

fiscal year[ FY 2003[ has a budget of $100[000[

17

approximately.

18

us to achieve the required goal of budget reduction[

19

I had to reduce that amount to $75[000.

20

That's index

That account for the current

For next fiscal year[ in order for

I will express some concern on my part that

21

we may have a deficit in that account because we --

22

I anticipate that the actual amount of expenses that

23

will be paid out of that account for professional

24

services may exceed the amount budgeted for next

25

fiscal year[ 75[000.

That account [ Professional
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Services, is used to pay for such services as

2

stenographic transcription costs, deposition costs,

3

filing fees, and other costs associated with

4

litigation.
Another highlight for the fiscal year is that

5
6

of course because the Charter Commission has

7

completed its duties, we no longer have any

8

appropriation amounts for the Charter Commission.

9

Finally, Mr. Chairman, call your attention to

10

the -- another account that was changed for purposes

11

of the coming fiscal year, FY 2004, and that is an

12

account that's entitled Claims, Settlements,

13

Judgments.

14

to last page of the Budget Details for my

15

Department.

16

6313.

17

Settlements, and Judgments.

18

the current fiscal year was -- is $60,000.

19

this fiscal year.

20

expended, $30,000.

21

see that it's budgeted to go to zero.

22

It is -- it's on the last -- or second

It's index code 905307, sub index code

Under Other Costs it says Claims,
That appropriation for
That's

To date about half of it has been
For next fiscal year you will

Now, this mayor may not pose a challenge,

23

and the reason is that two years ago it was proposed

24

or planned that this index code be -- that the

25

amounts to be paid for claims, settlements, and
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1

judgements that are $3,000 or less be paid out of an

2

account to be managed by the Department of Finance.

3

And that's what this account is used to pay for, is

4

claims, settlements, and judgements for less than

5

$3,000.

6

reasons, the actual job or task of shifting the

7

that amount from the Department of the Corporation

8

Counsel to the Department of Finance did not occur,

9

and as a result, this index code continued to show

However, the actual -- for whatever

10

up in the Corporation Counsel budget, and so for

11

that reason we've continued to pay amounts out of

12

this account.

13

What -- based on the agreements reached

14

before and the discussions occurred in prior years,

15

I believe that probably the better solution to the

16

management of this account is that it should be in

17

effect transferred to the Department of Finance,

18

Risk Management Division so that when it comes time

19

to actually encumber an index code for payment of

20

claims, settlements, or judgements for less than

21

$3,000, that they would pay it out of an -- out of

22

an index account under their management and

23

supervision.

24
25

So in essence what I'm saying is the fact
that this account is showing up as zero in my
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1

Department's budget will not be a problem, so long

2

as it shows up in the Finance Department's budget.

3

I tried to confirm before this meeting whether in

4

fact Finance reflects this amount in their budget.

5

I was unable to obtain at that confirmation.

6

what I can see, it doesn't look like it's in their

7

budget yet.
This concludes my comments, Mr. Chairman.

8
9

10

11
12

13

From

CHAIR HOKAMA:

Thank you, Mr. Moto.
Mr. Kane, questions for Mr. Moto?

COUNCILMEMBER KANE:

Thank you, Mr. Chairman.

Good

morning.
And good morning, Mr. Moto.

Mr. Moto, I'm

14

trying to understand.

15

is not being reflected in Department of Finance.

16

This budget document was due to us on the 15th by

17

Charter.

18

to know that so that we can either consider it here

19

or see if the Department of Finance is going to be

20

considering it on the other end.

21

Mr. Chair, I think we need a written response from

22

Finance if they can provide us with a response to

23

that issue.

24
25

You said as of yet this money

So either it is or it isn't, and we need

So I don't know,

The other issue is with this -- with this
zero here and if it's not recognized as a transfer
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1

to the Department of Finance, Mr. Moto, what policy

2

will you then be taking with respects to the 3,000

3

or less issue on claims, settlements, and judgments?

4

If you have zero monies in the account, will that

5

automatically set the policy in your office to

6

denying any request of less -- 3,000 or less?

7

MR. MOTO:

Mr. Chairman.

First let me say that the -- the

8

budgeting will not affect or determine how we

9

evaluate the merit or lack of merit of claims that

10

are submitted to the County.

11

as we always have, based upon our investigation and

12

based upon our weighing of the costs and benefits

13

associated with such claims.

14

We will evaluate them,

As a practical matter, when it comes time to

15

actually payout on these claims, because under

16

this -- under the budget cuts that we were required

17

to operate under, because this account now shows

18

zero, my intention was to tell the Finance

19

Director -- and he knows this account is zero

20

because he was informed of this, of what happened to

21

our Department's budget before it was transmitted

22

was to go to the Finance Director and say the

23

amounts that are going to be paid for the claims and

24

settlements for less than 3,000 should now come out

25

of your budget and out of the Risk Management
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Division.

2

out of a specific account set aside for this

3

purpose, then perhaps he should consider using the

4

self insurance account, which is also under his

5

administration.

6

And if not out of a separate -- if not

COUNCILMEMBER KANE:

Mr. Moto, I'll yield, since you

7

pointed out other than being a flat budget in the

8

two places or three places that changed.

9

for the next round, if nobody picks up on a question

10

I'll wait

that I have.
Thank you, Mr. Chairman.

11

12

CHAIR HOKAMA:

Ms. Johnson.

13

COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON:

Yes, Brian, thanks for being here

14

today.

15

that the Mayor was to have complete -- you know,

16

submitted the budget and that we have no, I guess,

17

role in setting policy, and yet many times we have

18

either earmarked, line itemed, whatever, and even

19

our Budget Chair has said that it is through our

20

budget that we do set policy.

21

find out, you know, are we doing something we

22

shouldn't be doing?

23

or are we confusing the issue?

24

your take on where we stand in this process.

25

CHAIR HOKAMA:

One of the testifiers noted that he believes

So I just want to

Are we overstepping our bounds,
I

just would like

Mr. Moto.
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MR. MOTO:

Well, Mr. Chairman, I'm a little bit at a

2

disadvantage, since I have not been sitting in on

3

all of your meetings and discussions, but I will say

4

that in general, as I've advised Council in past

5

whenever it met in its budget deliberations, that

6

you do have the power of the purse and that really

7

your scope of authority when it comes to fashioning

8

the budget of the County of Maui is quite broad.

9

COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON:

10

CHAIR HOKAMA:

11

COUNCILMEMBER MATEO:

12

Thank you.

Mr. Mateo.
Thank you, Mr. Chair.

Good morning, Mr. Moto.

13

MR. MOTO:

14

COUNCILMEMBER MATEO:

15

Okay.

Good morning.
Brian, I guess in regards to the

number of staff you have with you, yeah.

16

MR . MOTO:

Ye s .

17

COUNCILMEMBER MATEO:

From 2000, 2001, 2002, 2003, and

18

what you're projecting for 2004 you're still showing

19

22 full-time members, yeah, of your staff?

20

MR . MOTO:

Ye s .

21

COUNCILMEMBER MATEO:

In 2004, with the increase of two

22

new departments, I -- I really cannot see you still

23

maintaining under your performance standards the

24

same numbers that is being projected, because

25

surely -- merely because of the increase of
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departments.

2

projections really are for 2004 insofar as meeting

3

your objectives of the Department?

4

MR. MOTO:

Can you comment on what your

Sorry, Mr. Chairman, if I may have just a few

5

seconds to

yes.

Mr. Chairman, the Council member

6

is correct in noting that the personnel -- the

7

number of personnel authorized for the Department

8

has changed very little, if at allover the years.

9

In my memory, the last real change was I think under

10

the administration of J.P. Schmidt when he was

11

Corporation Counsel when the number of attorneys

12

went from 11 to 12.

13

change.

14

essentially flat, however -- if you put that

15

aside -- since the early '90s, or at least for as

16

long as I've lived there -- worked there.

17

That was really the last

The number of staff has remained

However, in the -- in the intervening years

18

much has changed in the job and duties of

19

Corporation Counsel.

20

anything, the demands upon the Department, and

21

especially in terms of the number of meetings --

22

both public meetings and meetings that are not

23

public has dramatically increased.

24
25

And in particular, if

One of the performance measures that is noted
in the Program Budget or Program Highlights is a
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1

performance measure entitled, Number of Meetings

2

with Boards, Commissions, and Council and Council

3

Meetings.

4

more than 600 year, and I want to know that that

5

number does not include meetings with, for example,

6

the Mayor, meetings with individual employees, et

7

cetera, et cetera.

8

balloon much higher.

9

just a count of the formal meetings, the ones for

That is running at an average rate of

If you tack that on, it would
These are mainly -- these are

10

which agendas are posted, and they're running at an

11

average of about 50 per month.

12

It used to be case when I first started with

13

Corporation Counsel that Corporation Counsel was not

14

necessarily requested or anticipated to be present

15

at all meetings of every board and commission or

16

of -- or even of Council and its committees.

17

That -- that has long changed.

18

the average expectation is that an attorney will be

19

present at every meeting for the entire duration of

20

that meeting, and this is pretty much universal.

21

It's gotten to the point where in some cases some

22

boards and commissions will even hesitate to open

23

their meetings or proceed unless the attorney is

24

present.

25

Now I would say that

So what this has meant is a much greater
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1

demand upon attorney time, and it has also meant

2

that time that attorneys could

3

other means are now devoted to public meetings in

4

particular.

5

there are a number of challenges to adding more

6

staff.

7

physical space.

8

argument, I wanted or could or should hire other

9

additional staff, literally there is no place to put

10

could devote to

Now, short of adding an attorney --

Number one is budgetary.

Second is actual

Even if, assuming for the sake of

them, really, in our current space.

11

You know, for example, I just mentioned that

12

on April 14th the 12th attorney will be joining us,

13

someone we just newly recruited.

14

basically a room that's off of the air conditioning

15

and Xerox room that was never intended as an office.

16

It was probably meant as a utility room, a closet,

17

or as -- maybe as a snack room.

18

doesn't have a sink in it, but it's pretty awful,

19

but frankly not only will she have to work there,

20

but so will our paralegal, and she has worked there

21

for quite some time.

22

space left to put any additional bodies in that

23

Department, at least in the space that we have now.

Her office will be

I don't know.

It

So physically there is no

24

The third thing I want to say about this is

25

despite these challenges, we are trying to address
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them the best way we can, and one thing you will

2

note that we have done, if you look at the Program

3

Goals and Activities, is for the coming fiscal year,

4

Mr. Chairman, I have tried to focus on Program Goals

5

and Activities that will serve to strengthen the

6

Department and improve the skills of the attorneys

7

and staff.

8

is important is because unless the Department can

9

elevate itself, we're not going to be of much use to

And one reason why we believe this focus

10

other people.

11

help to others, we first must concentrate on

12

building our own strengths and solving our

13

weaknesses.

14

In other words, in order to be of

And this has involved, for example, the

15

reorganization of the Department.

16

to -- we have begun the process of being much more

17

formal in creating and designating an Advice and

18

Counseling section within the Department and a

19

Litigation section within our Department.

20

Litigation section is now led by our First Deputy

21

Corporation Counsel, Greg Garneau.

22

We have tried

The

This is the first time since I've been with

23

the Department that the First Deputy has been

24

assigned to be also the Chief of Litigation.

25

don't have any other supervisory titles in our
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1

Department, so the only supervisory position

2

available to lead the Litigation section is the

3

First Deputy, but that seems to be working out quite

4

well.

5

The Advice and Counseling -- Counseling and

6

Drafting section, we're trying to help that section.

7

That's the section that, for example, among other

8

things, advises boards and commissions and members

9

of Council when they meet in meetings.

We're trying

10

to help that section by, for example, shifting a lot

11

of the litigation duties that they had been doing

12

part time -- and some of these may have involved

13

civil trials or civil litigation, some of it may

14

have involved administrative litigation -- and we've

15

shifted that over to the Litigation section.

16

currently the sections are equally staffed, or that

17

will be the goal.

18

full staff, there will be approximately six

19

attorneys devoted to Advice and Counseling and six

20

attorneys devoted to Litigation.

21

And

In other words, when you're at

This is something relatively new.

Number

22

one, it represents more people devoted to litigation

23

than ever before.

24

experience, the first time that we've really tried

25

to distinguish between the two, and we're also

Secondly, it's, I think, in my
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1

trying to relieve our administrative attorneys so

2

they can attend all the meetings to which they're

3

requested, but at the same time address their other

4

duties.

5

COUNCILMEMBER MATEO:

Thank you, Mr. Chair.

6

7

CHAIR HOKAMA:

8

COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA:

9

Thank you very much, Mr. Moto.

Mr. Mol ina.
No questions at this time, other

than what I heard being asked by my colleagues, but

10

I appreciate Mr. Moto's resourcefulness and

11

creativity, and although we're looking at an overall

12

roughly $95,000 cut in operations, I just hope it

13

doesn't impact our County's abilities to defend

14

ourself against lawsuits, frivolous or otherwise.

15

And I really don't envy the working conditions that

16

you're looking at, especially if some day we hope to

17

expand.

18

Nothing further at this time, Mr. Chairman.

19

CHAIR HOKAMA:

20

COUNCILMEMBER PONTANILLA:

21

Thank you.

Mr. Pontanilla.
Thank you, Mr. Chair.

Good morning, Brian.

As far as your

22

manpower, do you have the ability to hire outside

23

counsel to support the County activities in regards

24

to your Department?

25

CHAIR HOKAMA:

Mr. Moto.

RALPH ROSENBERG COURT REPORTERS, INC.
(808)

524-2090

26

BF 4/7/03

1

MR. MOTO:

Mr. Chairman, the answer is yes, with the
The County does and has

2

approval of the Council.

3

resorted to outside counsel.

4

the First Deputy Corporation Counsel and I believe

5

that Corporation Counsel should, as much as

6

possible, try to do what it can to provide the legal

7

services that are needed by the Council.

8

would not come

9

would not come to you with a request for special

I will tell you that

And we

we are both of the feeling that we

10

counsel unless we felt that it was truly necessary.

11

We hope that, for example, some of the

12

organizational changes we're making will lessen the

13

need to resort to outside counsel.

14

course, when the occasion arises, we will come to

15

you and inform you of those circumstances and ask

16

for your approval.

17

COUNCILMEMBER PONTANILLA:

Thank you.

However, of

One more question.

18

In regards to transferring some of the claims to the

19

Finance Department and to Risk Management area,

20

we're talking -- are we talking some of the claims

21

are workman type compensation related?

22

MR. MOTO:

Mr. Chairman, no, the account I talked about

23

earlier is not used -- I believe it's not used for

24

workers' compensation claims.

25

things like minor fender bender, someone -- a tree

Rather, it's used for
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falls on someone's car, and things like -- of that

2

kind.

3

4

COUNCILMEMBER PONTANILLA:

Okay.

Thank you,

Thank you.

Chair.

5

CHAIR HOKAMA:

Ms. Tavares.

6

COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES:

Yes, thank you.

In your Budget Details, Brian, I noticed on

7
8

page 4-3 of the Budget Details, where you have

9

personnel listed for administration, you have a Law

10

Clerk position that's noted frozen and then there's

11

a zero, zero for 2003 and 2004.

12

are showing ten, when there's actually 11 positions.

13

And so your total E/P actually is 23 for Corp.

14

Counsel.

15

pursue that Law Clerk position at sometime?

16

MR. MOTO:

And your positions

What are -- do you have any intention to

Mr. Chairman, the -- let me begin by addressing

17

the count.

18

count those position numbers on page 4-3, they do

19

total 11.

20

because the last position, the 11th position,

21

CPT-029 is not a full time position.

22

typically would be a summer clerkship.

23

been no summer clerk now since the early '90s, I

24

think.

In fact,

25

clerk.

I'm not sure.

Yes, it is true that if you were to

I think the reason why it says 10F is

It would
There has

I may have been the last summer
I was a summer clerk in 1991.
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Mr. Chairman, to answer the other Council
frankly,

I

to be honest,

2

member's question, I

3

I did not give this a whole lot of

4

spend a whole lot of time mulling over this

5

position.

6

had found it difficult to integrate the -- a law

7

clerk into the work of the Department.

8

having a law clerk would be helpful.

9

I did not

I know that previous Corporation Counsels

I think
I am leery

I did not address it in this coming fiscal

10

year budget, FY 2004, for a couple of main reasons.

11

Number one, of the overriding task we had of trying

12

to achieve a reduced budget.

13

severe physical constraints, housing additional

14

people, and third, my focus was also on trying to

15

fill the existing vacancies within the Department.

16

I was extremely concerned about that.

17

great deal of my time and energy I would say the

18

first several months of this year.

19

year it may be time to review this.

Secondly, of the

That took a

Perhaps next

20

I will say, Mr. Chairman, that on rare

21

occasion a student from -- usually someone attending

22

a mainland law school but who has ties to Hawaii

23

will write and inquire as to whether we have such

24

clerkships, students who are in between academic

25

sessions.

And I do think it would be nice both for
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1

the Department -- it would be a good opportunity for

2

both the Department and that student to have this

3

kind of apprenticeship or training program.

4

COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES:

5

CHAIR HOKAMA:

6

COUNCILMEMBER KANE:

Thank you.

Thank you.

Mr. Kane.

Thank you, Mr. Chairman.

7

Mr. Moto, you've been referencing your

8

budget, and because of the budget constraints

9

dealing with a required -- a requirement of cutting

10

back, and I guess the term used was the 8 percent

11

requirement.

12

opening comments the position that you took.

13

I'm a little confused, because I think yesterday's

14

paper, and I have a copy in front of it -- with me.

15

In the story it was written, it says, the Mayor has

16

asked all department heads for a voluntary 8 percent

17

budget cut.

18

your budget this morning several times as a

19

requirement to cut your budget.

20

understand which one is it?

21

it voluntary?

22

MR. MOTO:

So -- and you were explaining in your

Voluntary.

And

And yet you've referenced

Just trying to

Were you required?

Was

Were you exempt, if it was required?

Mr. Chairman, the budget process, when I

23

stepped into office, was something that had already

24

been partially done.

25

complete it as best I could and submit it.

What I did was to try to
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1

subsequent periods the Budget Director's Office made

2

it clear that the -- to all cabinet officers that

3

the County was facing a difficult challenge in

4

preparing next year's budget and they requested that

5

each department head submit revised budgets that

6

reflected reduction with a target goal of 8 percent.

7

Actually -- actually, there were actually two
The first -- the first round occurred

8

requests.

9

when we were asked to look at our Operating Budget,

10

so just the B account, the B account.

And I'm

11

sorry, Mr. Chairman, if I may just have a few

12

seconds to refresh my memory.

13

notes, we were asked to incorporate a 5 percent cut

14

in our B accounts in order to achieve a balanced

15

budget for next fiscal year.

16

with that request and directive from the Budget

17

Director's Office, we revised our budgets to reflect

18

that.

Yes, according to my

And so in accordance

Then later we were asked for an across the

19
20

board 8 percent cut in our budgets.

21

be

22

at the B account.

23

the entire appropriation for the Department for the

24

current fiscal year, and then try to achieve a

25

target for next year that would incorporate an 8

So that would

in other words, it was no longer just looking
Rather, we were asked to look at
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percent reduction across the board, not just B

2

account, but A, B, and C.

3

I did that.

However, I informed the Budget

4

Director and Mayor that the -- that that 8 percent

5

cut would mean certain things, would have certain

6

consequences for the Department of the Corporation

7

Counsel, and I informed them that I did not believe

8

I could achieve that kind of reduction without

9

freezing one of the attorney positions.

I probably

10

would not have been able to achieve it without

11

basically eliminating an attorney.

12

that I was very concerned about that and that it

13

also would jeopardize ongoing recruitment efforts

14

that had already started.

15

Budget Director's Office informed us that we could

16

include amounts in our A account, the -- for full

17

staffing of all attorney positions.

18

COUNCILMEMBER KANE:

And I told them

And so as a result, the

So are you willing to correct the

19

word that you're using, then, and revise the

20

previous statements as far as being requirements and

21

that it's voluntary now?

22

this because it's a big difference between voluntary

23

and required.

24

repeatedly as required.

25

the big picture of this whole budget.

I'm making a big deal of

And you've been using the word
So I'm trying to understand
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required by you?

2

you and you told them your situation and so

3

therefore they understood and said okay?

4

basically what you're saying, Mr. Moto.

5

MR. MOTO:

Did they come to you and require

That's

Mr. Chairman, the reason why I used the

6

required is because at least, as far as I understand

7

it, the Budget Director and the Mayor are the

8

authorities responsible for the preparation and

9

submission of the Mayor's budget and we do comply

10

with their requests and directives.

11

honest and say that if they had not issued that

12

directive or what I referred to as requirement, I

13

probably would not have made the cuts that were

14

requested.

15

reduce the Department's budget by 8 percent.

16

would have kept it at a flat amount or reflecting an

17

increase for the salary adjustments.

18

I will be

I would not have, for example, tried to

COUNCILMEMBER KANE:

Okay.

I

So with that being said, in

19

the Legal Services Administration, where you've

20

pointed to us that the appropriation in this fiscal

21

year is 100,000 under the sub category of

22

Professional Services, 6132, and you've reduced that

23

down to $75,000 to acknowledge this request for a

24

cutback, but you've also stated that you anticipate

25

a deficit in this account.

So with that being said,
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1

as you -- well, you said that earlier, that you

2

anticipate a deficit in this account.

3

intention there, already knowing that you're going

4

to have a deficit?

5

respects to -- coming back during the middle of the

6

year and asking for adjustment?

7

and asking them to have a revised budget or a

8

supplemental budget request?

9

with that, since you've already told us that you

10

11

What's your

What's your intention with

Going to the Mayor

I mean, where are we

anticipate a deficit?
MR. MOTO:

Yes, Mr. Chairman, it is true that if current

12

spending holds true, we probably will spend more for

13

professional services or -- than is budgeted.

14

2004 Budget is adopted as proposed,

15

choice but to try to scrimp and save on other things

16

in order to make up for the costs that are described

17

under Professional Services.

18

as best we can on some of the other expenses that

19

are identified in the Budget Details, particularly

20

those relating to operations.

21

COUNCILMEMBER KANE:

I will have no

We'll have to cut back

Thank you.

Thank you, Mr. Chairman.

22
23

CHAIR HOKAMA:

24

COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON:

25

If FY

Thank you.

Ms. Johnson.

Brian, I know many times when

either yourself or a member of your staff comes to
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some of our committee meetings, when we anticipate

2

not taking any action or really having something

3

where your services would absolutely be essential,

4

would it be helpful if as committee chairs we would

5

just simply say, look, you know, we don't anticipate

6

needing your services, would that free up some of

7

your time to help you in other areas?

8
9

MR. MOTO:

Mr. Chairman, certainly that would be very much

appreciated.

That would help.

10

COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON:

11

CHAIR HOKAMA:

12

COUNCILMEMBER MATEO:

13

Okay.

Thank you.

Mr. Mateo.
Thank you, Mr. Chair.

Mr. Moto, I just -- you know, like listening

14

to your responses, it kind of -- it kind of makes me

15

real comfortable.

16

you know, I just need to just ask you point blank,

17

you know, with what you're being projected to deal

18

with, can your Department really function with the

19

flexibilities that's going to be needed, with the

20

additional demands that's going to be put on your

21

Department, with the inclusion of the additional

22

committees and departments?

23

listening to you and like hearing that you're

24

virtually stuck.

25

you've got to make do with what you have because you

Uncomfortable to the point that,

You -- I'm kind of like

You're stuck in a position where
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have no choice about it.

2

new incidents come up or not, that you're just going

3

to be working within a frame that you've been boxed

4

into.

5

MR. MOTO:

And two, you know, whether

Is that about the story?
Mr. Chairman, I appreciate the Council member's
I will say that, yes, I do feel -- I do

6

comments.

7

feel that we are in a difficult or challenging

8

situation.

9

I do have some concerns about amounts appropriated

10

for those accounts that I specifically cited, like

11

the Professional Services and the Settlements and

12

Judgments and Claims.

13

for us to be able to perform satisfactorily and make

14

sure that those things are taken care of, that we

15

have the budget resources necessary to do so. I know

16

that the Council member has referenced our personnel

17

needs and staffing needs, and I think there

18

fundamentally we face some -- a number of different

19

challenges, one of which is our physical plant.

20

I think other departments are as well.

COUNCILMEMBER MATEO:

I would hope that in order

Mr. Moto, my only reason for asking

21

that is because Corp. Counsel provides us the legal

22

advice.

23

depends on the opinions and recommendations that you

24

guys give.

25

stretched far, you know, out, I'm kind of concerned

There's a lot, you know, like

that

And if you guys are going to be
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of the quality, and actually comes down the

2

integrity of the office and being able to provide us

3

not more -- you know, more than mediocre services,

4

but, you know, appropriate quality service.

5

that's what -- that's what kind of worries me

6

because of your existing limitation.

7

CHAIR HOKAMA:

8

MR. MOTO:

9

And

Thank you.

Comment, Mr. Moto?

I'll just say, Mr. Chairman, that the Council

member -- I agree with the Council member that it's

10

important that -- that the Corporation Counsel

11

provide the best services we can, not merely average

12

or mediocre services.

13

at that.

Thank you.

14

CHAIR HOKAMA:

15

COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA:

16

I -- well, I'll just leave it

Mr. Molina?
Thank you, Chairman.

Mr. Moto, I see there's an increase for

17

airfare and transportation by roughly $8,500.

18

is this

19

MR. MOTO:

20

COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA:

Now,

Yes.
-- I guess in line with one of your

21

goals to get your Department or encouraging your

22

Department to participate in more workshops,

23

seminars, and conferences?

24

I would guess it's attributable to the cost in

25

transportation as well.

Is the increase also

Can you elaborate on that?
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MR. MOTO:

Mr. Chairman, the Council member is correct in

2

noting that there is a proposed increase in that

3

account.

4

information on the Budget Details don't tell you

5

what the current rate of spending is, because it

6

only provides you data as of the end of June 30,

7

2002.

8

of the transportation costs incurred primarily by

9

our attorneys tells me that this account is

Let me point out, first of all, that the

My staff and office manager who keeps track

10

already -- we're over budget already in this fiscal

11

year.

12

finding ourselves having to fly over, for example,

13

to Honolulu much more often for appearances in

14

Federal court and for depositions.

15

cost of air transportation.

16

and so we're actually -- if we spend as much next

17

year as we're going to be spending this year, we'll

18

probably spend all of the $28,500 that's budgeted.

19

Part of it is for two main reasons.

COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA:

Okay.

We were

Secondly, the

Air fares has gone up,

Thank you.

And Chairman,

20

one more question.

21

and having a cohesive Department, which is I believe

22

your third goal for the FY 2004, can you comment on

23

that?

24

the Department, will it be -- do you feel it will be

25

difficult to keep staff that you have?

Mr. Moto, with regards to morale

Because my concern is in light of the cuts in
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1

me, personally, I want to see this County have as

2

good a staff as possible and not lose them to the

3

private sector.

4

keeping morale in the Department.

5

on this?

6

MR. MOTO:

Yes.

And so I can see your emphasis on
Can you comment

Thank you, Mr. Chairman.

The -- morale

7

is an issue that we have tried to address in the

8

past few months.

9

would be fair to say that I think morale has

I

think I would -- I think it

10

good now in the Department.

11

attorneys and staff are happy with some of the

12

anticipated changes that will be made and have

13

already been made to the Department.

is

I think in general the

I have no indication at this time that there

14
15

will be any significant turnover in the Department

16

in the coming year.

17

we will be able to retain most of -- most of the

18

staff.

19

control, people do their -- they have changes in

20

their life situations, they move, they have family

21

needs, et cetera, but putting that aside,

22

anticipate any major turnover in the Department in

23

the coming fiscal year.

24
25

I think it's quite likely that

Of course there's some things we cannot

COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA:

Thank you, Mr. Moto.

Thank you, Mr. Chair.
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1

CHAIR HOKAMA:

Mr. Pontanilla?

2

COUNCILMEMBER PONTANILLA:

Thank you, Chair.

Brian, you indicated that you may spend more

3
4

for professional services.

5

budget of $100,000.

6

already expended as far as that line item for '03?

7
8

9

MR. MOTO:

Do you know how much you

Mr. Chair, I apologize.

have that number.

I was looking at the '03

I'm sorry, I don't

I could find out.

COUNCILMEMBER PONTANILLA:

Okay.

Regarding the cut that

10

you're taking on that one line item, which is

11

$25,000, if I could get -- or if we could get a fair

12

amount as far as your request for professional

13

service so that, you know, we don't run into a

14

problem with regards to overspending in that one

15

particular area.

16

MR. MOTO:

17

COUNCILMEMBER PONTANILLA:

18

CHAIR HOKAMA:

19
20

Certainly.

Okay.

Mr. Pontanilla?
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES:

Thank you, Chair.

You folks got that request from
Okay, thank you.

Ms. Tavares.

So with all of this austerity

21

that's being requested to tighten up the budgets and

22

things, I guess the -- you know, there was an effort

23

to talk about upgrading salaries for Corporation

24

Counsels, and has that just been put in a closet or

25

a back burner or something?

I mean, we talk about
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1

morale and possible turnover that we've been facing

2

in this County for years.

3

It's just been years where you finally get somebody

4

trained and oriented to government and then they're

5

gone.

6

there's not much of a career ladder in the

7

Department of Corporation Counsel, but at this point

8

are you folks going to look at maybe for the future

9

a program to upgrade the salaries or to come up with

It's not just recently.

You don't blame them for going, because

10

a career ladder type of situation within your

11

Department?

12

MR. MOTO:

Mr. Chairman, the Council member raises

13

really I view it as almost a subject onto itself,

14

which is the subject of compensation.

15

purposes of this budget meeting, I did not plan a

16

full blown discussion on it.

17

these comments.

18

issue of compensation is an issue that has been

19

longly overlooked and that is important to take a

20

look at in order to ensure, I think, the long-term

21

goals of the Department and of the County.

And for

However, I will offer

I do completely agree that the

22

I do not think that we can have a strong

23

Department without addressing in particular the

24

issue of compensation of attorneys as they become

25

more and more senior.

Under the current
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1

compensation scheme as reflected in the Maui County

2

Code, a scheme that has changed little -- very

3

little, if at all, since the early '90s, at least,

4

there really is no way to properly address the

5

compensation of attorneys who have more than -- I

6

believe it's seven years of experience.

7

that law was made three years ago or two years ago

8

that allowed the Corporation Counsel and the

9

Prosecuting Attorney the discretion to adjust

A change in

10

deputies' salaries up to the point of what they're

11

getting paid.

12

One thing you'll notice in the FY 2004 Budget

13

is that I have chosen -- or I proposed to exercise

14

that discretion and have adjusted salaries

15

accordingly.

16

actually -- are kind of a very interim stopgap

17

measure.

18

request your support for them.

19

if my memory serves correct, if you are an attorney

20

that -- with

21

plus years, and let's say you were working with the

22

County of Maui, you basically have had your salary

23

frozen for years with one exception.

24

adjustment I think four years ago, something like

25

that, and there may have been one a number of years

I believe the adjustments are

The attorney -- and I humbly ask and
You know, I think,

that has been practicing for six

There was an
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before that.

2

very limited.

3

But it's very, very -- it's been very,

the salary adjustments

The adjustments

4

that you see reflected on 4-2 of your Budget Details

5

reflects a 3 percent adjustment.

6

where did that 3 percent come from?

7

the fact that two years ago the Salary Commission

8

adjusted the cabinet officer's salary -- the

9

executive branch cabinet officer's salaries by 3

How did that -It came from

10

percent.

11

got an equivalent raise.

12

as just catching up to something that happened two

13

years ago.

14

The deputies never saw that.

They never

So in effect, I view this

I do appreciate the Council member's

15

comments.

It is true that I have discussed the

16

matter of compensation and -- with a number of

17

different people, including people on the

18

legislative side, and that we're trying to come up

19

with a rationale or scheme to address this.

20

work is not done yet.

21

come up with a final conclusion yet, and it is true

22

that because of the budget situation that we faced,

23

that I personally kind of -- I got the wind knocked

24

out of my sails basically.

25

know, I've got plenty things to worry about, and so

I don't think we've probably

I thought, oh, well, you
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1

maybe I'll just try to do the best I can in the

2

meantime.

3

COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES:

4

CHAIR HOKAMA:

5

Thank you.

Thank you.

Mr. Kane?

Ms. Johnson?

Mr. Mateo?

6

COUNCILMEMBER MATEO:

No.

7

CHAIR HOKAMA:

8

COUNCILMEMBER PONTANILLA:

9

CHAIR HOKAMA:

Mr. Molina?

Mr. Pontanilla?
No.

Anything further, Ms. Tavares?

10

COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES:

11

CHAIR HOKAMA:

No.

So just let me get this straight.

Under

12

your administrative support, Mr. Moto, you would

13

continue to maintain that part-time position under

14

Law Clerk?

15

this Committee will take this under consideration.

16

That's on your 4-3, 4-3 of your Details.

17

MR. MOTO:

Yes, Mr. -- yes, Mr. Chairman.

18

show it for

19

fund it and

20
21

CHAIR HOKAMA:

MR. MOTO:

23

CHAIR HOKAMA:

25

And if so, then

We continue to

as a position, but we have -- do not

Do you wish this Committee to continue to

authorize this position?

22

24

Did I hear you right?

Mr. Chairman, I guess the answer is yes.
I'm not talking about funding, now.

I'm

talking about authorizing the position.
MR. MOTO:

Yes, I understand that, Chairman.

RALPH ROSENBERG COURT REPORTERS, INC.
(808)

524-2090

Yes, if only

BF 4/7/03

44

1

because my hope would be for FY 2005 that we may be

2

able to fill it and put some monies in there to pay

3

for a summer intern.

4

CHAIR HOKAMA:

Okay.

Thank you for that, Mr. Moto.

Any

5

other areas that -- you've answered many of the

6

Committee's questions.

7

need to make a determination about the Claims,

8

Settlements, and Judgment program area, Professional

9

Services area.

10

Any other area besides

I think that was the two key areas

of concern, Mr. Moto.

11

MR. MOTO:

Yes, Mr. Chairman.

12

CHAIR HOKAMA:

Okay.

13

Committee?

14

COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES:

15

CHAIR HOKAMA:

16

COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES:

Nothing further.

Any other questions for Mr. Moto,

Seeing none, is there -I have one.

I'm sorry.

Yes, Ms. Tavares.
I didn't ask, but are there any

17

positions that are not full-time besides that Law

18

Clerk?

19
20
21

CHAIR HOKAMA:

I think that's the only one with a PT on

the side.
MR. MOTO:

Mr. Chairman, no, that's currently the only

22

part-time.

23

indicated as full-time.

All other positions are currently

24

COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES:

25

CHAIR HOKAMA:

Okay, thank you.

Okay, Mr. Moto, 4-6, your replacement
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request.
MR. MOTO:

Any comments on those?

Mr. Chairman, just in brief our -- our

3

equipment request total, $4,700, the desk is needed

4

because the one that the secretary currently uses is

5

broken.

6

machine is eight years old, so it's actually

7

exceeded its economic useful life, and we have one

8

in the Department.

9

want to make sure we have a good one in place before

Drawer -- drawer can't open.

The fax

We have one fax machine, and we

The balance of -- we

10

the current one breaks down.

11

have a request for three flat screen monitors to be

12

used by the secretaries, especially who do a lot of

13

document production.

14
15
16

CHAIR HOKAMA:

Okay.

Your hardware is in good shape,

Mr. Moto?
MR. MOTO:

Mr. Chairman, yes.

I want to thank the

17

excuse me.

18

Information Services for doing what they can to

19

support our Department by providing us an

20

occasional upgrades in equipment.

21

had the CPU units upgraded.

22

them, but I'd say almost all have been upgraded to

23

the most current model.

24
25

CHAIR HOKAMA:

I want to thank the Management

Okay.

And so we have

I can't say if all of

Thank you for that update, Mr. Moto.

Mr. Kane, questions on his equipment?
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1

Ms. Johnson?

Mr. Mateo?

2

Mr. Pontanilla?

3

COUNCILMEMBER PONTANILLA:

4

CHAIR HOKAMA:

5

COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES:

6

CHAIR HOKAMA:

No.

Ms. Tavares?

Okay.

No.
I believe we are done with

7

Corporation Counsel.

8

here, Mr. Moto.

9
10

MR. MOTO:

CHAIR HOKAMA:

Okay.

next?

12

recess, Members.

13

till 10:30.
RECESS:

15

RECONVENE:

16

CHAIR HOKAMA:

19

Who shall -- who are we bringing up

Okay, Parks will come up after the morning

14

18

Thank you very much for being

Thank you, Mr. Chairman and Members.

11

17

Mr. Molina?

We will take our morning break

(Gavel)

10:17 a.m.
10 : 34 a. m.

(Gavel).

We shall reconvene the

Committee's review of the Fiscal Year 2004 Budget.
DEPARTMENT OF PARKS AND RECREATION

CHAIR HOKAMA:

Members, please turn to the Department of

20

Parks and Recreation.

21

have yet to review, and that is the area of the Golf

22

program.

23

whereby they pretty much are -- pay their own way,

24

or they do pay their own way.

25

have Mr. Correa, Director of Parks and Recreation.

There was one area that we

We have set up a Golf Special Fund program

I take that back.
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1
2
3

Director, introduce your staff for the
Committee this morning, please.
MR. CORREA:

Good morning, Budget Chair Hokama.

Good

4

Morning, Council Chair Kane, and good morning,

5

Council Members.

6

John Buck.

7

Agsalog.

8

Chief, and Ron Kubo is my Golf Superintendent.

9

we have Traci back there, Corp. Counsel.

10
11
12

CHAIR HOKAMA:

On my left is my Deputy Director,

On my right is Budget Director Dani
Tamara Horcajo is from our -- Recreation

Okay.

And

Comments from the Department before

we start the Golf review, Golf program review?
MR. CORREA:

Yes, thank you, Budget Chair Hokama.

Our

13

golf course has very improved in the last year and a

14

half.

15

golf course now.

16

enjoys it.

17

course, I'll have Ron Kubo, Golf Course

18

Superintendent.

19
20

21

They have a lot of people playing on that

CHAIR HOKAMA:

It's a tough course, but everybody

To go into details about the golf

Mr. Kubo, comments for the Committee this

morning?
MR. KUBO:

Mr. Chair and Members of the Council, I'm here

22

to answer any questions that you may have on the

23

budget for the golf course.

24
25

CHAIR HOKAMA:

Ms. Johnson, questions for the Department

or the Golf program?
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COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON:

Yes, thank you for coming today,

2

Mr. Kubo.

3

getting on the golf course right now, and as

4

Mr. Correa mentioned the -- there has been upgrade,

5

have you noticed an increase in the number of people

6

and has that helped your revenue in terms of the

7

actual operations, you know, equaling what the

8

income has been?

9

MR. KUBO:

In terms of the amount of play that we're

Yes, we've -- for the past nine months,

10

starting July 1st until the end of March, we have

11

had an increase of almost 9,000 rounds from last

12

year and an increase in the revenue for -- of about

13

$151,000.

14

COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON:

So does this mean that now we've

15

reached our objective of having the revenues equal

16

actually what the -- what the expenses are?

17

MR. KUBO:

With our budget this year, it's -- I'm not sure

18

that we're going to be able to generate enough

19

revenue to cover the 1.5 million that we had for our

20

budget this past year.

21

COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON:

Okay.

Having heard that, one of

22

the recent things that I've become aware of is that

23

the -- I believe the

24

revenue locally here is not going to be issuing the

25

letters any longer for the people that are coming

I think it's internal
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1

over from Oahu or wherever else to get I guess their

2

letters that would permit them to get the discounted

3

rate on our golf course.

4
5

MR. KUBO:

No, I haven't been told that.

COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON:

7

MR. KUBO:

9

Are you talking

about the residency letter from the State of Hawaii?

6

8

Are you aware of that?

Yes, uh-huh.

Those are actually for the residents, the Maui

residents that apply for the resident card.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON:

Okay.

Well, there were some

10

people -- I guess what they were being asked is that

11

they had to produce a -- I don't know if it was

12

driver's license, whatever the requirements were,

13

that they're no longer at our local internal revenue

14

office, our tax office, they're not going to be

15

providing those letters.

16

predicated upon the fact that that documentation is

17

provided, what's that going to do to the play that's

18

going on on the golf course?

19

MR. KUBO:

So if those discounts are

We also require -- if the residents cannot

20

provide the tax clearance, they can also provide

21

documentation that they've lived on the island for

22

the past 12 months.

23

they can

24
25

So that's the other way that

they can get that resident card.

COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON:

Okay.

It seems -- and what I'm

gathering is that there have been some people
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1

that -- and I don't know what documentation is

2

requested, but some people seem to feel that other

3

people are taking advantage of it.

4

knowledge one way or the other, but if there were

5

people that were taking advantage of that discount

6

and going -- using our County facilities without

7

actually being full-time residents here, we do have

8

some people that are part-time residents and, you

9

know, they may have dual driver's license, whatever.

I have no

10

You know, is there some way that we can protect

11

against individuals who are really abusing that

12

privilege and they're not full-time residents?

13

MR. KUBO:

That was the reason why we went to getting the

14

Maui Resident Card, is because of the fact that we

15

had part-time residents that were applying and

16

saying that they were residents of the island.

17

That's why we went to the State tax -- State income

18

tax to be cleared in order to get that card, but we

19

also provided another rate, which was the off-island

20

rate.

21

County who had Hawaii driver's license and they had

22

the out of -- off-island rate.

23

The residents of Hawaii other than Maui

COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON:

Okay.

Well, have you made any

24

recommendations on the rates and fees because of the

25

fact that, you know, you're still not operating and
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1

the Golf Fund is supposedly to operate on other

2

revenues that do come in, because it is a special

3

funds.

4

to how we can address the problem?

5
6

7
8

9
10

MR. KUBO:

Is there any recommendation that you have as

Well, we havenlt formally made any

recommendations for rates yet.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON:

Okay.

Thank you.

1111 let others

respond.
CHAIR HOKAMA:

Mr. Mateo?

COUNCILMEMBER MATEO:

Thank you, Mr. Chair.

Good morning, Mr. Kubo.

11

12

MR. KUBO:

Good morning.

13

COUNCILMEMBER MATEO:

Mr. Kubo, can you tell me how the

14

reduction in your operations dollar amount, how that

15

will impact your -- your operation and where exactly

16

did you cut to come up with this operations total?

17

MR. KUBO:

The only area, well, that we cut was the -- was

18

the budget for our agricultural supplies, which is

19

our largest account that we use, which includes all

20

our pesticides, our fertilizer, anything that we

21

purchase for the grounds, soil, sand, compost,

22

things that we use, and also irrigation supplies.

23

So thatls a big part of our operation.

24

the only area where it was cut.

25

cut like about 20,000 for next year.

And thatls

I think it was only
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COUNCILMEMBER MATEO:

Okay.

And that cut, that 20,000 or

so, that will not have an impact on the golf course?

3

MR. KUBO:

No.

4

COUNCILMEMBER MATEO:

No, okay.

So herbicides,

5

pesticides, fertilizers, and the like, that you have

6

an ample amount to take care of -- to meet the golf

7

course's need?

8

MR. KUBO:

Ye s, we do.

9

COUNCILMEMBER MATEO:

Okay, thank you.

Thank you, Mr. Chair.

10

11

CHAIR HOKAMA:

Mr. Molina.

12

COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA:

Thank you, Chairman.

Good morning, Ron.

13

Just one question on your

14

janitorial services.

15

appropriating anything for janitorial services for

16

FY 2004.

17

guess --

18

MR. KUBO:

You folks are not

How are you folks going to make up, I

Our janitorial -- well, we have two part-time

19

janitors and they take care of all of our janitorial

20

services in house.

21

COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA:

22

CHAIR HOKAMA:

23

COUNCILMEMBER PONTANILLA:

24
25

In house, okay, thank you.

Mr. Pontanilla?
Thank you, Mr. Chair.

Good morning.
MR. KUBO:

Good morning.
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COUNCILMEMBER PONTANILLA:

Ron, as far as your equipment,

2

it's basically a flat budget, $75,000.

3

other requirements of equipment that you would need

4

to improve the golf course?

5

MR. KUBO:

Is there any

$75,000 is not really sufficient for the amount

6

of equipment that we do need for the golf course

7

right now.

8

COUNCILMEMBER PONTANILLA:

9

$75,000 for?

10
11

MR. KUBO:

For Fiscal Year 2004 it's budgeted for a 5 Gang

fairway mower and the dump truck.

12

COUNCILMEMBER PONTANILLA:

13

MR. KUBO:

14

also another aerator.
COUNCILMEMBER PONTANILLA:

16

MR. KUBO:

17

COUNCILMEMBER PONTANILLA:

19

Aerator?

Aerator, yeah.
Okay.

Mr. Chair, we're going

to be talking about rates and fees?
CHAIR HOKAMA:

That will be -- I believe I have that set

20

for Wednesday.

21

fees on Wednesday.

22

Anything else that we require?

We require -- we need another rough mower and

15

18

So in addition -- what is the

We are planning to start rates and

COUNCILMEMBER PONTANILLA:

Yeah, because I want to discuss

23

as far as the fees for non-resident Maui and also

24

non-res -- Hawaii with driver's license.

25

You know what Member Jo Anne Johnson had
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1

mentioned earlier, you know, in order for this golf

2

course to maintain its stability, I think we need to

3

really take a look at some of the rate fees that are

4

offered at our municipal golf course.

5

the play of the golf course has increased.

6

drawback as far as the increase in play is, number

7

one, you know, the proper care of the golf course.

8

I don't know if there's any action plans as

9

far as the Parks Department, you know, if you guys

I understand
The only

10

have any action plans as far as improving some of

11

the greens, you know, maybe closing down some of the

12

holes until you can, you know, really catch up on

13

some of those maintenance that are required on some

14

of the holes that's on the golf course.

15

like the Director had mentioned, it has really

16

improved over the last two years.

17

because I take advantage of the golf course myself.

18

You know,

I see that

Thank you, Mr. Chair.

19

CHAIR HOKAMA:

Thank you.

20

COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES:

Ms. Tavares.

Thank you.

In the Program Budget

21

in the section having to do with carryover savings,

22

it shows a carryover savings each -- each year.

23

actual was 301,000 for Fiscal '02, and the Fiscal

24

'03 projection I guess is 512,000, and the

25

year's proposal estimates a 289,000 carryover
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1

savings.

2

carryover savings and your revenues you will have a

3

tough time meeting -- making budget?

4
5

MR. KUBO:

Are you telling us that with your

Not with the carryover savings, no.

including that.

6

COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES:

7

MR. KUBO:

8

9
10

I wasn't

Oh, okay.

I'm just -- I'm just going by what revenue

we'll be generating this year.
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES:

So what revenue -- what number are

you looking at for revenue generation?

11

MR. KUBO:

Approximately 1.2.

12

COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES:

1.2.

But your budget is 1.5, so

13

you're actually going to be using your carryover to

14

make your budget, then?

15

MR. KUBO:

Yeah, this Fiscal Year 2003 we had additional

16

funds for -- that we're using to improve the golf

17

course.

That's why our budget went up to 1.5.

18

COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES:

19

CHAIR HOKAMA:

20

COUNCILMEMBER KANE:

21

Mr. Kubo.

Thank you.

Mr. Kane?
Good morning to Ms. Horcajo and

Thank you for being here.

22

MR. KUBO:

23

COUNCILMEMBER KANE:

24

CHAIR HOKAMA:

25

Okay.

Good morning.

request.

No questions.

All right.

We will send the Department a

Under projections I think Ms. Tavares
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1

pointed out -- I'm having a hard time seeing

2

increased play, which means increased revenue, and

3

then you keep telling us you're gonna get a

4

shortfall.

5

MR. KUBO:

Well, the reason why the revenue -- why we

6

can't break even right now is because the last year

7

we had our raise in the rates was Fiscal Year 2000.

8

It will be four years, and the increase in costs

9

for -- especially for equipment has risen so much,

10

plus the cost for fertilizer and herbicides and also

11

the raises for the salaries.

12

with -- with all the course costs, we do need to

13

raise more revenue.

14

CHAIR HOKAMA:

Okay.

So in order to keep up

We'll have the budget office review.

15

At the half point mark you were only $166,000 behind

16

your whole year's estimation of revenue generation.

17

So I'm having hard time understanding your numbers.

18

MR. KUBO:

I believe the revenue for this year is kind of

19

overstated because -- and last year it was

20

understated because of the payment for -- from the

21

proshop, which wasn't paid until this fiscal year.

22
23

CHAIR HOKAMA:

Okay.

And you will have that all in

writing to justify those numbers?

24

MR. KUBO:

Yeah.

25

CHAIR HOKAMA:

Ms. Johnson.
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COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON:

Ron, on -- in the Budget Detail

2

13-58, for premium pay, it goes from 30,665 down to

3

20,000, and could you just explain?

4

no, I'm sorry, that was Fiscal Year 2002.

5

Year 2003 you're keeping that level?

6

MR. KUBO:

7

COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON:

8

MR. KUBO:

9

COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON:

Or I guess -So Fiscal

Yes.
Okay.

And that's for overtime?

Okay.

And usually your overtime

Yes, it is.

10

is for people that fail to show up to work or you've

11

got somebody out on leave?

12

MR. KUBO:

No.

Our overtime basically is for our weekend

13

schedule, because we're on a five-day work week

14

Monday through Friday.

15

overtime where we schedule two persons -- two

16

employees per day.

17
18
19

COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON:

Okay.

So Saturdays and Sundays are

So you don't have enough

crew, then, to rotate out so that -MR. KUBO:

No, because if we did a seven-day work week, we

20

wouldn't have enough of a crew during the week to

21

maintain the -- our schedule.

22

COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON:

Okay.

The other item would be in

23

regard to people that are actually on leave or sick

24

leave or out due to workmen's comp injuries.

25

have anybody that's out right now currently?
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1

MR. KUBO:

2

COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON:

3

MR. KUBO:

4

COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON:

5

For workmen's comp we do.

7

COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON:

10

Just one.

Okay.

And is the

person anticipated to return to work?
MR. KUBO:

9

And how many people?

One.

6

8

Okay.

No, I don't believe so.
Okay.

So that -- that leaves you

one position shy, then?
MR. KUBO:

One position.

COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON:

I think that's all right now.
Okay.

And then in terms of the

11

people that have to pick up the work load for that

12

individual that's out on workmen's comp, does that

13

create any kind of a hardship in terms of their

14

ability to perform those additional tasks?

15

MR. KUBO:

Yes, it is.

It's -- well, it's on a daily

16

basis we need to look at scheduling as far as our

17

daily maintenance operations.

18

COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON:

19

MR. KUBO:

20

CHAIR HOKAMA:

21

COUNCILMEMBER MATEO:

22

Okay.

Thank you.

You're welcome.
Mr. Mateo?
Thank you, Mr. Chair.

Mr. Kubo, earlier it was mentioned that the

23

number of rounds had increased, yeah?

24

course reaching its capacity insofar as maximum

25

amount of rounds available?
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1

MR. KUBO:

No, we haven't reached the maximum.

2

COUNCILMEMBER MATEO:

3

MR. KUBO:

Where are we?

This past -- this past month of March we

4

average 299 rounds a day, and our max that we have

5

right now is 400 rounds a day.

6

be pushing it to have 400 rounds a day because it

7

would cost us a lot more to maintain the course if

8

we did.

9

around up to about 350.

10
11

But I think it would

So I would rather keep it below 400, maybe

COUNCILMEMBER MATEO:

350.

Thank you.

Thank you,

Mr. Chair.

12

CHAIR HOKAMA:

Thank you.

13

COUNCILMEMBER PONTANILLA:

Mr. Molina?

Mr. Pontanilla?

Thank you, Mr. Chair.

Ron, can you tell me about the projects that

14
15

you have budgeted for '03, what the status of

16

that -- like the cartpath design, the irrigation

17

pump replacement, also the roof replacement for the

18

starter proshop and restaurant?

19

MR. KUBO:

Those three -- we have three projects,

20

irrigation pump renovation, the replacement of the

21

nets at the driving range, and reroofing the

22

clubhouse.

23

go, all the contracts have been made.

24

just waiting for the contractors to give us a time

25

line and when they're going to start.

All three of those projects are ready to
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COUNCILMEMBER PONTANILLA:

Okay.

Thank you.

Either you

2

or Glenn, in regards to your maintenance building,

3

the status of that?

4

MR. KUBO:

Right now the maintenance building, we're

5

having some problems, but not with the design but

6

with the location, building the maintenance because

7

of the Burial Council requirements, but the design

8

is just about completed and we're supposed to be

9

meeting with the Burial Council on the 16th.

10

COUNCILMEMBER PONTANILLA:

So if we can't put up the

11

building at that location, do we have an alternative

12

as far as putting up a maintenance building

13

elsewhere on the golf course?

14

MR. KUBO:

Right now we don't have any alternate site.

15

The site that they recommended us to use we're not

16

able to because it's in the tsunami area.

17

COUNCILMEMBER PONTANILLA:

Okay.

Thank you.

Maybe you

18

should take a look at that just in case we don't get

19

approval from the Burial Council as far as creating

20

a maintenance building for your golf course.
Thank you, Chair.

21

22

CHAIR HOKAMA:

Ms. Tavares.

23

COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES:

Yeah, do you still submit those

24

reports monthly that have the breakdown of revenues

25

by category?
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MR. KUBO:

Yes, I do.

2

COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES:

Is it possible that we could get

3

copies of that or a summary of -- for the last

4

years?

5

annual summary.

6

right?

7

months or so of what your revenues have been based

8

on the categories.

9

MR. KUBO:

Because it's -- you know, I guess you do an
You just have to add the numbers,

If you could give us one in like the last 12

I'm sure I can do that.

10

COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES:

Okay, thanks.

11

CHAIR HOKAMA:

12

COUNCILMEMBER MATEO:

13

CHAIR HOKAMA:

14

COUNCILMEMBER PONTANILLA:

15

CHAIR HOKAMA:

Mr. Kane?

Ms. Johnson?

Mr. Mateo?

No.

Mr. Molina?

Mr. Pontanilla?
No.

Anything else, Ms. Tavares, in Golf?

16

The -- Mr. Pontanilla brought up that I guess that's

17

a current CIP project, that maintenance building.

18

If I understand you right, you're asking to rebuild

19

on the existing site?

20

MR. KUBO:

21

CHAIR HOKAMA:

22

Yes.

subsurface work on this project?

23

MR. KUBO:

24

CHAIR HOKAMA:

25

And the difference is you're doing

Yes.
If you did build up on site, would that be

a problem?
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MR. KUBO:

I don't see any problem with it, but there

might be.
CHAIR HOKAMA:

If you folks

build up instead of go

4

below the ground, then would there be a problem with

5

the Burial Council?

6

MR. KUBO:

I think that if we go above ground, we still

7

have to put some footing down for the concrete pad,

8

but I would think that the Burial Council would

9

agree with the present location, if they -- if we

10

11

have observers there.
CHAIR HOKAMA:

I'm just -- you know, we understand your

12

need for new equipment, and that's a reasonable size

13

request.

14

course we understand you're dealing with a very

15

temporary structure, yeah, right now, so ...

16

MR. KUBO:

17

CHAIR HOKAMA:

18

MR. KUBO:

We have existing equipment, and then of

The
Anything, Mr. Kubo?

Well, the temporary structure right now is

19

is a tent and that's -- it was -- it's supposed to

20

be temporary for five years, and I think that

21

expired.

22

CHAIR HOKAMA:

23

MR. KUBO:

24

CHAIR HOKAMA:

25

When did it expire?

It's been over five years.
Okay.

Mr. Director, maintenance of our

existing proshop and concession area and starters
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1

area, what's our status over there?

2

decent shape as far as structurally or are we in

3

deficiencies that are impacting the concessionaires'

4

ability to generate revenue for the Department?

5

MR. CORREA:

Are we in

Thank you, Budget Chair Hokama.

Right now

6

the contractor is supposed to start on the roof of

7

the proshop and restaurant area sometime this month.

8

We're also looking into installing new toilets that

9

just came out.

It's pressure type and it should

10

move volume of water into the bowl area, so it's

11

working real good.

12

almost $300.

13

bonds, we need to change the chain link fencing

14

area.

15
16

So one toilet cost I think

So it's -- the proshop area, the cut

Besides that, everything looks good.

CHAIR HOKAMA:

When was that contract going out for the

roof -- roof maintenance or repair, Director?

17

MR. CORREA:

18

CHAIR HOKAMA:

It should start sometime this month.
Okay.

So with the rains, then, can we

19

assume that there was a reduction in revenue

20

generation to the concessionaires?

21

damage?

22
23

MR. KUBO:

Was there rain

There was no -- any merchandise damage, just

water leaking into the shop.

24

CHAIR HOKAMA:

25

MR. CORREA:

Restaurant side included?
On the restaurant side we had some folding
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tables that we have to replace.

2

CHAIR HOKAMA:

3

MR. CORREA:

4

CHAIR HOKAMA:

5

No.

MR. KUBO:

7

CHAIR HOKAMA:

9
10

Thank you.

Okay.

Any other comments, Mr. Kubo,

regarding your program area?

6

8

Anything else, Director?

No, Mr. Chairman.
Okay.

Anything further, Members?

we thank you for being here this morning, Mr. Kubo.
MR. KUBO:

Thank you.

CHAIR HOKAMA:

Okay.

Shall we go with CIP Department?

11

You guys want to do CIP?

12

people are ready to go through Parks CIP.

13

grants, I'm sorry.

Are we ready?

I know some
Oh,

I forgot the grants.

Okay, Mr. Correa, Park Department Grants.

14
15

If not,

MR. CORREA:

Thank you, Budget Chair Hokama.

I'll have my

16

Rec Chief explain about the Food Service -- Food

17

Service grants.

18

MS. HORCAJO:

Good morning, Budget Chair Hokama and

19

Members of the County Council.

Thank you for having

20

us here and for giving the Parks Department so much

21

support.

22

of Recreation for the Department.

23

which has the Food Service program, falls under my

24

division, as does the operation -- the daily

25

operations of the Parks Department, meaning the

My name is Tamara Horcajo.

I'm the Chief

The PALS program,
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1

trash, toilets, and mowing of the facilities, as

2

well as the recreation programs and the permit

3

office.

4

Our PALS program, as you know, has the grant

5

amount of $150,000 for the Food Service program, and

6

this is the amount of money used to pay for the

7

meals that we serve at our 13 sites that qualify.

8

13 of our 17 PALS sites qualify for the Food Service

9

program.

Last year during the summer we served

10

32,072 breakfasts, 48,814 lunches, for a total of

11

over 80,800 meals to the children of Maui County,

12

Molokai.

13

past, except that we have begun the breakfast

14

program last couple of years, and we hope that it

15

can continue.

18

It's been very successful.

If you have any other questions, I'm glad to

16
17

This grant has not changed much in the

answer them.
CHAIR HOKAMA:

Okay.

Let's just -- and then from -- we'll

19

go by program area, so we'll do PALS Food Service

20

first.

21

Ms. Tavares?

COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES:

Of the meals that you're serving,

22

do you have enough to serve what needs to be served

23

or are you just status quo maintaining what -- the

24

level of service you do now?

25

qualification requirements for --

And you still have the
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1

MS. HORCAJO:

Yes

2

COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES:

Food Service?

3

MS. HORCAJO:

The site has to qualify and

I

we do.

Yes, we do.

4

then the provision is made, then in turn we bill DOE

5

and we get the reimbursement back.

6

to service any youth there that wants to have a

7

meal.

8
9

We can provide that service.

COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES:
to?

MS. HORCAJO:

11

COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES:

12

MS. HORCAJO:

13

COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES:

14

MS. HORCAJO:

15

COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES:

Yes, at the site.
At the site that's --

Qualified.
qualified.

Correct.
So you have -- you have, what,

four sites that don't qualify?

17

MS. HORCAJO:

18

COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES:

19

So you are serving whoever wants

It's not --

10

16

So we are able

Correct.
And that's because of the income

level of the

20

MS. HORCAJO:

Yes, it is.

21

COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES:

22

MS. HORCAJO:

23

COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES:

neighborhood?

Yes.
Does it just look at that or are

24

there individuals within the program that could

25

qualify if they were at a different site?
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MS. HORCAJO:

2

COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES:

3

4

The total site needs to qualify.
lim just curious,

which sites didnlt qualify?
MS. HORCAJO:

I have the sites that did qualify, Lihikai,

5

Kahului.

6

remember.

Illl look up at Jane and see if she can
It was Central District.

7

COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES:

8

MS. HORCAJO:

9

The total site.

Central area mostly?

It was the main area that did not qualify.

The sites that did qualify were Hana, Paia, Eddie

10

Tam, Pukalani -- oh, Kahului and Lihikai did

11

qualify.

12

Hale Makana, excuse me, Kaunakakai, Kualapuu,

13

Kilohana, and Maunaloa.

Lokelani, Kenolio, Waihee, Hale Makua,

14

COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES:

15

MS. HORCAJO:

16

COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES:

17

So none of the Kihei --

I can figure it out real quick.
Okay.

The Kihei sites didnlt

qualify, then.

18

MS. HORCAJO:

19

COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES:

20

West Maui.

21

MS. HORCAJO:

22

sites.

23

So I can figure --

Kihei sites didnlt qualify.
I didnlt hear any Kihei names, and

And West Maui sites, so that would be three

COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES:

Do you know if in these -- any of

24

the sites if the DOE is running summer programs in

25

any of the sites that didnlt qualify by our -- I
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1

mean for our meal program?

2

program going on at some of these sites or not?

3

We're not connected at all?

4

MS. HORCAJO:

I mean, is there another

At the sites that didn't qualify, if they

5

have meals available through the DOE, is that your

6

question?

7
8

9
10

COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES:

Yeah, I mean, is the DOE running a

program where they have meals provided?
MS. HORCAJO:

I don't think so, no, not that I know of.

COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES:

Okay.

I just ask that, Mr. Chair,

11

because at every school there are kids that qualify

12

for free lunch and reduced lunch.

13

not the entire district qualifies, there are

14

individuals who do.

15

there was a way we could have those children

16

included in a program somewhere.

17

going on in the same school, you know, or the same

18

site, it would have made it easier, but if there's

19

not another program going on, I think it would be

20

difficult to do.

21

expand that particular program and do you do

22

anything with intercession?

23
24
25

MS. HORCAJO:

And whether or

And I just was wondering if

If there was one

Is there any -- do we need to

We don't serve any meals during intercession

program.
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES:

Okay.

But you said we're serving
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1

all that want to be served at the sites that are

2

qualified?

3

MS. HORCAJO:

We have the ability to get reimbursed for

4

all the meals served, so we can service as many

5

students as would like to be served.

6

COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES:

7

MS. HORCAJO:

Okay.

Thank you.

I don't know if Kihei at some point would be

8

able to qualify with the new census that came out,

9

but at this time they're not qualified.

10

COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES:

Has there been any problem at

11

these sites that didn't qualify with children having

12

food?

Do they all bring their lunches?

13

MS. HORCAJO:

14

COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES:

15

MS. HORCAJO:

16

COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES:

17

18
19

They all bring -And their snacks and whatever?

Uh-huh.
There's no kid that's not eating

because they're -- can't afford to or whatever?
MS. HORCAJO:

And if you've ever been to our PALS site,

there's food --

20

COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES:

21

MS. HORCAJO:

Allover.

-- everywhere.

The PALS staff brings a lot

22

of food.

23

potluck day where the kids bring in -- they send

24

lists home to parents and ask the parents if they

25

want to join in the potlucks.

They offer food.

On Fridays they have a

So the kids are --
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1

COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES:

2

MS. HORCAJO:

3

COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES:

4

MS. HORCAJO:

5

Okay.

-- I think cared for.
Yeah, that's great.

But the breakfast and lunch program have

been great.

They really appreciate it.

6

COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES:

7

CHAIR HOKAMA:

Thank you.

Thank you.

Mr. Carroll, any questions on

8

the Food Service program for sum -- for the PALS

9

program?

10

Mr. Kane?

COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON:

Ms. Johnson?

On the cost of the personnel that

11

are actually serving the food, there's no

12

reimbursement for those costs, just the actual cost

13

of the meals?

14

MS. HORCAJO:

The reimbursement is made to the DEA by the

15

Federal government.

16

would assume that all the costs incurred in

17

preparing the meals would be taken care of.

18

COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON:

So I

Okay.

I'm not certain, but I

Because I really would like

19

to find that out, because I don't mind, you know, at

20

all if, you know, we're helping to subsidize these

21

meals, but then sometimes if there are other

22

costs -- like even just getting the meals to where

23

they have to go, our costs are continuously

24

increasing, and yet if they're not built into the

25

expansion of that, again, it's the Federal
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1

government

2

shifting down to the County.

3

possibly provide us with a little bit more detail as

4

to how that's actually broken out, lid really

5

appreciate it.

6

MS. HORCAJO:

IS

programs and the State that are cost

Thank you.

So if you could

I will check on that.

Because I

7

know our staff does pick up the meals and transport

8

them to the food site if it's not at the kitchen

9

where they're located.

10

COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON:

Okay.

11

CHAIR HOKAMA:

12

COUNCILMEMBER MATEO:

13

CHAIR HOKAMA:

14

COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA:

15

CHAIR HOKAMA:

16

COUNCILMEMBER PONTANILLA:

17

CHAIR HOKAMA:

18

COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES:

19

CHAIR HOKAMA:

Thank you.

Mr. Mateo?
No.

Mr. Molina?
No.

Mr. Pontanilla?
No.

Anything else, Ms. Tavares?
No.

Any other members, Food Service?

Let us

20

move on to -- I think the next request area is

21

Leisure, Leisure Activities, 25,000 grant revenue.

22

MS. HORCAJO:

There were some grant items in the budget in

23

hopes that we would be able to take the time to

24

apply for matching grants or other grants, Budget

25

Chair Hokama, but we did not receive any revenue.
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1

We did not write any grants for these other line

2

items.

3

CHAIR HOKAMA:

So for that, Guide to Youth Activities, as

4

well as Playground Improvements program, that is all

5

no revenues at this time?

6

MS. HORCAJO:

7

CHAIR HOKAMA:

That's correct.
Okay.

Is your program area planning to

8

request or apply for those funds?

9

that still the intention of this program area?

10

MS. HORCAJO:

Yes, it is our intent.

Is that -- is

We have applied for

11

a small $500 matching grant fund for a Playground

12

Improvement Partnership program.

13

heard back from them if we would receive the funds.

14

If we did, however, we would be able to use this as

15

our vehicle to receive those funds.

16

CHAIR HOKAMA:

We have not yet

This $150,000 for that program, is it a

17

Countywide program or is it geared to a specific

18

region?

19

MS. HORCAJO:

20

CHAIR HOKAMA:

21

It is a Countywide program.
Okay.

other areas of grant?

22

COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES:

23

CHAIR HOKAMA:

24

25

Questions, Ms. Tavares, under the

No.

Mr. Carroll?

Mr. Kane?

Ms. Johnson?

Mr. Mateo?
COUNCILMEMBER MATEO:

No.
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1

CHAIR HOKAMA:

2

COUNCILMEMBER PONTANILLA: No.

3

CHAIR HOKAMA:

4

5

Mr. Molina?

Okay.

Mr. Pontanilla?

Director, any other areas that you

would have before this Committee?
MR. CORREA:

Yes, thank you, Budget Chair Hokama.

There's

6

one area that I hope that you folks would fund,

7

would be for inspectors who is in our building.

8

need to get them out so we can have my Department

9

take over and be a family once again.

10
11

CHAIR HOKAMA:

What are we talking about?

Are we talking

about Planning Department --

12

MR. CORREA:

13

CHAIR HOKAMA:

The building inspectors.

14

CHAIR HOKAMA:

Explain that to the Committee.

Building inspectors.

I don't

15

think all of the members are aware of the space

16

that --

17

I

MR. CORREA:

The building inspectors are in that old real

18

property tax building next to our Pool.

19

building was turned over to Parks last year, but

20

we -- inspectors didn't have any area to go to so we

21

lent them our area from the kindness of our hearts.

22

Temporary.

23

CHAIR HOKAMA:

That

So where are the people that you would have

24

put from your Department?

Where are they located,

25

for the Committee's information?
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MR. CORREA:

I have my Rec Chief down at KCC and her

2

people, also my Aquatics Division Chief is also down

3

KCC and her people.

4
5

CHAIR HOKAMA:

MR. CORREA:

7

CHAIR HOKAMA:

9

So the Department's intention is to

keep all program chiefs in one area?

6

8

Okay.

Yes.
Okay.

Any questions to the Director?

Ms. Johnson.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON:

Glenn, have you spoken to the

10

building inspectors and do they have any idea where

11

and when they may be relocating?

12

MR. CORREA:

Right now they look kind of happy, so I

13

didn't have a chance to talk to them personally, but

14

I talked to their boss and I guess nothing been done

15

so far.

16

COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON:

17

looking unhappy?

18

MR. CORREA:

19

COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON:

20

that, Mr. Chair.

21
22
23

24
25

So do you expect to have them

Yes.

CHAIR HOKAMA:

I guess we'll have to work on

I guess the Administration will have to

work on that.
Mr. Mateo, any other questions for the
Director?
COUNCILMEMBER MATEO:

No.
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1

CHAIR HOKAMA:

Mr. Molina?

2

COUNCILMEMBER PONTANILLA:

3

CHAIR HOKAMA:

4

COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES:

Mr. Pontanilla?
No.

Ms. Tavares?
Yes.

Who is occupying the spaces

5

where DMV and licensing was

6

different places, I guess.

7

MR. CORREA:

were?

That's two

Councilmember Tavares, right now it's in

8

renovation right now.

9

administration staff and Parks Maintenance Chief and

10

11
12

Our Planning Division and

his people be moving in that area.
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES:

Okay.

How many sections do you

have that are in trailers right now?

13

MR. CORREA:

Two.

14

COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES:

15

MR. CORREA:

16

COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES:

17

MR. CORREA:

18

COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES:

19

CHAIR HOKAMA:

Two.

They're at KCC?

Yes.
That's Aquatics and Recreation?

Yes.
Thank you.

Mr. Carroll, questions?

Mr. Kane?

20

Anything else, Members?

21

completed Parks and Recreation.

22

comments, Director, for the Department?

23
24
25

MR. CORREA:

No.

If not, I believe we have

Thank you very much.

Any further

Hope Fire

Department, you folks have the same treatment.
CHAIR HOKAMA:

Okay, we will bring up Fire Department.
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1

We'll take a short three-minute recess to get Fire

2

down here.

3

RECESS:

4

RECONVENE:

5

CHAIR HOKAMA:

(Gavel)

11:20 a.m.
11: 24 a.m.

(Gavel).

We shall reconvene the Budget and

6

Finance Committee meeting for the 7th of April.

7

DEPARTMENT OF FIRE AND PUBLIC SAFETY

8
9

10

CHAIR HOKAMA:

Public Safety, represented by Chief Fernandez and
Deputy Chief Cordeiro.
Chief, if you would please introduce the rest

11
12
13

We have now the Department of Fire and

of your team here this morning, please.
MR. FERNANDEZ:

I have Deputy Chief Alan Cordeiro to my

14

right, to my left, Assistant Chief Greg Chong Kee,

15

and Battalion Chief Carl Kaupalolo.

16

CHAIR HOKAMA:

17

MR. FERNANDEZ:

18

Counsel.

19

CHAIR HOKAMA:

20

MR. FERNANDEZ:

Okay.

Chief --

Dani Agsalog and Traci from our Corp.

Opening comments, Chief?
Budget Chair Riki Hokama, Council Members,

21

members of the Fire and Public Safety Commission,

22

members of the Fire Department, and guests, I would

23

like to wish all of you a good morning, and I would

24

like also to thank you for making time in your busy

25

schedule to -- to allow the Department of Fire and
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1

Public Safety the opportunity to present our 2004

2

budget request.

3

Before I begin, Assistant Fire Deputy Chief

4

Alan Cordeiro will brief us on our evaluation that

5

was done last year, followed by Battalion Chief Carl

6

Kaupalolo, who will give us a status on our

7

strategic plan.

8
9

MR. CORDEIRO:

Good morning, Budget Chair and Members and

people here visiting us.

Although there was an idea

10

for management as to where the Department of Fire

11

Control needed to go and what to purchase to become

12

more efficient, we did an evaluation of the Maui

13

County Fire Department.

14

in the March of 2002 to help give us an unbiased

15

look of where we needed to go.

16

This was done and finished

This was done by the Emergency Services

17

Education Consulting Group, ESECG.

This is a

18

company from Oregon that has a

19

chiefs and professional analysts that reviewed our

20

Department with interviews of personnel as well as

21

data and statistical analysis of our Department.

22

There are ten objectives that they looked at.

23

is organization and management, planning and risk

24

management, personnel management, organizational

25

design and staffing, capital asset management,
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1

emergency response system, training and education,

2

fire prevention and education.

3

After their study they found our strengths

4

and weaknesses and they gave us their

5

recommendations.

6

the Budget Committee in March, I believe, by

7

Administration as an idea of where we wanted to go

8

and develop the strategic plan following the

9

evaluation.

This evaluation was presented to

Through the past year, the Department

10

has made gains, thanks to you folks that have given

11

us the money, and budgeting.

12

changes and growths that we need to go through.

There are still

The strategic plan was developed for this to

13
14

give us a guide and a road map as to where we need

15

to go.

16

running the strategic plan, will give us an idea of

17

where we need to go and what we have done so far.

18

We would like to thank you for this time for

19

allowing us to do an evaluation.

20

CHAIR HOKAMA:

Chief Kaupalolo, who has been in charge of

Okay.

Any questions?

What we have done in the past,

21

Chief, is we've gone through the budget by program

22

areas, and so this morning why don't we start off

23

with the Administration/Maintenance program request.

24

Members, that is 8-1 of the Details.

25

Chief, if you can have your -- you or the
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1

appropriate person go through the Administration

2

program budget.

3
4

5

MR. FERNANDEZ:

Chair, you want me to go through item by

item?
CHAIR HOKAMA:

You can just give us the highlights.

You

6

basically have a flat salary and wages, flat

7

operations and equipment request, so why don't you

8

go through that first.

9

MR. FERNANDEZ:

Okay.

I'll start with the

10

Administrative/Maintenance program.

11

for one aluminum welder for our mechanics, an

12

administrative vehicle for administrative staff to

13

be shared by eight people, additional funds for the

14

Fire and Public Safety Commission.

15

the Administration and our Maintenance program.

16
17

18

CHAIR HOKAMA:

Okay.

Commission?
MR. FERNANDEZ:

We're asking

That's all for

That is under the what -- oh, Safety

Is that your

Fire and Public Safety Commission.

The

19

funding is needed for the Fire and Public Safety

20

Commission to hire a private investigator, if

21

needed, and also for off island travel when we have

22

meetings on Molokai and Lanai, and we also have

23

members on Molokai and Lanai that will have to come

24

to Maui for all of our meetings.

25

CHAIR HOKAMA:

Okay.

Is that basically the additions to
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your program request?

2

MR. FERNANDEZ:

Yes.

3

CHAIR HOKAMA:

Okay.

I believe so.

Mr. Carroll, any questions for the

4

Department in their Administration and Maintenance

5

program?

6

Mr. Kane?

COUNCILMEMBER KANE:

Thank you, Mr. Chairman.

On Details

7

8-4, Chief, Administration Fire Control at the top,

8

program number 911008, the sub program number

9

Medical and Safety Supplies, sub category number

10

6034.

You show $20,000 decrease there, which I

11

think is the only difference.

12

across the board flat.

13

a little bit regarding Medical and Safety Supplies

14

and you reducing it by $20,000?

15

MR. FERNANDEZ:

16

COUNCILMEMBER KANE:

Everything else is

Can you talk about that for

Misc -- that's Miscellaneous Supplies?
I'm sorry, right under that.

Two,

17

three, four -- I'm sorry, my ruler is crooked.

18

Miscellaneous Supplies, I'm sorry, so $20,000.

19

MR. FERNANDEZ:

Okay, I'll explain.

The Fire Department

20

has been using Mac computers for the last ten or

21

eleven years.

22

was budgeted for PCs.

23

most of that monies was to buy and repair our Mac

24

computers.

25

the majority of that money.

Last year we converted to PCs.

Funds

We got the PCs on line, so

Now everything goes through MIS.
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COUNCILMEMBER KANE:

Okay.

2

CHAIR HOKAMA:

3

COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON:

4

CHAIR HOKAMA:

5

COUNCILMEMBER MATEO:

Thank you, Mr. Chair.

Thank you.

Ms. Johnson?

Not at this time.

Mr. Mateo?
Thank you, Mr. Chair.

Gentlemen,

on your Program Goals and

6

good morning.

I

7

Activities, your FY '03 activity listing, the second

8

box, provide long-range plans/goals for Department.

9

What are they and are they complete?

10

MR. FERNANDEZ:

What page are you on?

11

COUNCILMEMBER MATEO:

12

MR. CORDEIRO:

On 8-4, Program.

Council members, that's the objective and

13

activity for -- to provide administrative support

14

for Department.

15

about?

16

COUNCILMEMBER MATEO:

Is this the one you're talking

I -- I don't know what it is.

17

says, provide long-range plans/goals for the

18

Department.

19

MR. CORDEIRO:

It

Is that what you're referencing?

Okay.

Yes, under the strategic plan that

20

we're doing, to study our long-range goals and see

21

how we can become better and be compliant with what

22

the rest of the nation and world is doing.

23

COUNCILMEMBER MATEO:

Okay.

And this is what -- this is

24

what, Carl, you're -- worked on, that you have

25

worked on, the strategic master plan?
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MR. KAUPALOLO:

If I may.

Thank you.

Good morning,

2

Councilman Mateo.

3

understand what your question is, but I understand

4

it is from the strategic plan that you're inquiring,

5

and these are to develop and support and effect an

6

organization.

7

that's listed in the strategic plan.

And that will be our goal number 8

The critical task that was asked for us was

8
9

I'm not sure if I, you know,

do we organize the Department in conjunction with

10

the Department's evaluation?

11

this is one of the active objectives that we are

12

working with, and it's somewhat -- it does reflect

13

the budget that we're requesting.

14
15

COUNCILMEMBER MATEO:

Thank you very much, Carl.

Chair, I'll pass at this time.

16

CHAIR HOKAMA:

17

COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA:

18

Okay.

At the present time

Mr. Molina?
Thank you, Chairman.

Good morning, Chief.

19

MR. FERNANDEZ:

Good morning.

20

COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA:

Regarding your Program Highlights,

21

8-5, as far as the -- sending personnel over for

22

programs that deal with weapons of mass destruction

23

training in New Mexico and chemical ordinance

24

biological training in Alabama, are there any

25

planned follow-ups for training in that area?
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MR. FERNANDEZ:

Yes, there is I think Assistant Chief

Chong Kee went to two already?

Am I --

3

MR. CHONG KEE:

Two classes.

4

MR. FERNANDEZ:

He went to two classes.

5

more this year.

6

COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA:

We'll be sending

We'll follow up.
Okay.

And then as far as funding,

7

you folks are doing -- you have enough, I guess -- I

8

know -- I guess it's partly funded by the Federal

9

government.

How much does it cost

would this be

10

costing the County and do you folks need more

11

funding in that area?

12

MR. FERNANDEZ:

I think all the -- I think all the

13

fundings come through Civil Defense.

14

the funding for this training.

15

CHAIR HOKAMA:

16

COUNCILMEMBER PONTANILLA:

17

Okay.

Thank you.

They provide

Mr. Pontanilla?

Thank you, Mr. Chair.

Good morning, guys.

On the Fire and Public

18

Safety Commission, a note over here, would they be

19

the ones to hire a private investigator when

20

required?

21

MR. FERNANDEZ:

If there's an investigation, they would

22

have to hire an investigator to do the

23

investigation.

24

investigating.

25

COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES:

I don't think they're capable of

No, hire.
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MR. FERNANDEZ:

2

COUNCILMEMBER PONTANILLA:

3

MR. FERNANDEZ:

4

COUNCILMEMBER PONTANILLA:

5

MR. FERNANDEZ:

6

7
8

9
10
11

Oh, hire?
Yeah.

Yeah.
Commission will hire those --

Yes, that's what the funds are for.

I'm

sorry.
COUNCILMEMBER PONTANILLA:

I'm sure they're going to be

consulting with you before they do that, yeah?
MR. FERNANDEZ:

Definitely.

COUNCILMEMBER PONTANILLA:

I hope so.
Okay.

Thank you.

Thank, you

Chair.

12

CHAIR HOKAMA:

Ms. Tavares?

13

COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES:

Yes, in The Maui News on March

14

11th there was an article about the Federal grants

15

available for rural, urban, and suburban fire

16

departments for training and equipment related to

17

the homeland security, $750 million made available I

18

guess nationwide.

19

to apply for grants for that -- from that homeland

20

security?

21

MR. CORDEIRO:

Have you folks or do you intend

We're In the process right now working with

22

our medical officer.

23

our wellness and fitness program through the Fire

24

Act through the Homeland Security.

25

used to be the FEMA.

We're seeking funds through

The change --

FEMA falls under the Homeland
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1

Security Department now.

2

and we've been seeking funds.

3

project right now to get a wellness fitness program

4

that follows with weapons of mass destruction,

5

because the guys need to suit up.

6

in very good condition to do that, so this will fall

7

in with that, as well as other grants that we try to

8

work on.

9
10
11

COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES:

So that's the name change,
We're working on a

They need to be

Did you receive any of the grants

last year that you applied for for FEMA?
MR. CORDEIRO:

The FEMA fund, we got the burn trailer, I

12

believe, that we got portion of that you guys helped

13

us to get, and we're opening bids on that, and

14

hopefully get that soon.

15
16

17

COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES:

Okay.

Do you know how much you

expect to receive from this new -- new grant cycle?
MR. CORDEIRO:

We're going to try -- I believe it's 300 --

18

well, 750,000, I think, per department can request,

19

I believe is the limit.

20

plan right now so we can get a good number to send

21

to them and hopefully get funded.

22

COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES:

23

MR. CORDEIRO:

24
25

We're putting together our

Okay.

Then we might seek help from you guys, if

we get it, if we have to do a share.
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES:

Okay.

Thank you.
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CHAIR HOKAMA:

Chief, in this handout you gave us this

2

morning, the things you list under Administration

3

and Maintenance program is what is in the budget?

4

Is that -- would that be correct?

5

MR. FERNANDEZ:

Yes, up to page 8 -- up to page 8

6

everything there is in the budget.

7

page 7.

8

CHAIR HOKAMA:

9

Up to page 7 is in the budget.

Details?

11

Services and Contracts?
MR. FERNANDEZ:

Where are you placing the $20,OOO?

So

Under

It's on page 8-5, the total is on page

13

8-5.

14

20,000 more.

We had $5,500 previously.

15

COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES:

16

MR. FERNANDEZ:

17

CHAIR HOKAMA:

18

Okay.

that 20,000 for the investigator is where under your

10

12

I'm sorry, up to

We're asking for

8-4, Budget Detail.

Yeah, it starts on page 8-4.
Okay, and that would be Professional

Services?

19

MR. FERNANDEZ:

20

CHAIR HOKAMA:

That's correct.
Okay.

Currently if the Department needs

21

something to be investigated, how is it being done?

22

Similar?

23

this private investigator is going to be doing and

24

is this something new to the Department?

25

MR. FERNANDEZ:

Is it -- I'm trying to understand what

This would be for complaints about the
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1

Fire Department from the public that now the newly

2

created Fire and Public Safety Commission would

3

handle.

4

investigations.

5

CHAIR HOKAMA:

6

MR. FERNANDEZ:

7

CHAIR HOKAMA:

8

9

Within the Department we handle our own

This is about an action of a fire fighter?
That would be correct.
Corporation Counsel, is this how the Police

Commission handles their similar personnel concerns?
MS. FUJITA VILLAROSA:

Mr. Chair, I believe that's how the

10

Police Commission operates.

11

Fire and Public Safety Commission, and so we're

12

due to the new Charter amendments, we're now trying

13

to develop a new

14

the new Fire and Public Safety Commission in a lot

15

of instances to how the Police Commission operates.

16

CHAIR HOKAMA:

I currently advise the

and we have been modeling

Okay, thank you.

Mr. Carroll, any more

17

questions under Administration and Maintenance

18

program?

19

Mr. Kane?

COUNCILMEMBER KANE:

Mr. Chairman, actually I'd just like

20

clarification of the question that you asked with

21

respects to the book that was handed out, and then

22

it was pointed out that up to page 7 was already

23

located in the budget.

24

on that page 7 where it has CIP 250,000, that one

25

sentence, we're continuing to ask, and then it

So just for clarification,
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1

finishes up with the 14 fire stations, and then

2

right after that it has additional CIP funding is

3

needed for the following projects, and then it lists

4

the two, one for the Lahaina Fire Station, funds to

5

do major repairs at Lahaina Fire Station, and two,

6

the funds to add office space.

7

are already located in the current budget proposal

8

or is that something that you folks were asking in

9

addition to, which I see as an addition?

10

MR. FERNANDEZ:

Those two requests

It should be in the budget.

11

budget.

12

COUNCILMEMBER KANE:

Okay.

It's in the

Because I'm looking in the

13

budget and on the Lahaina Fire Station renovations

14

for government facilities in the Program Budget,

15

21-14, there's $150,000 bond request, and I haven't

16

looked at the Kahului Fire Station, so that's what

17

the 250,000 is, 150 for Lahaina and 100 for Kahului?

18

MR. FERNANDEZ:

No, the 250 is for Countywide for all the

19

fire stations.

20

is two separate CIP requests.

21

COUNCILMEMBER KANE:

22

budget?

23

MR. FERNANDEZ:

24

COUNCILMEMBER KANE:

25

The one for Lahaina and for Kahului

And that's currently located in the

Yes.
Okay.

Thank you very much.

Thank you, Mr. Chairman.

That was just for
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clarification.

2

CHAIR HOKAMA:

Okay, thank you.

3

COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON:

Ms. Johnson?

Thanks for coming too, and one of

4

the questions that I have is that when you're

5

prioritizing a lot of your Administration and

6

Maintenance, I really appreciate that you've done

7

that, but one of the things that I want to

8

understand

9

this -- is that in your Administration and

and I did speak with you briefly about

10

Maintenance, some of the way that you're actually

11

functioning in the way that you were to reorganize,

12

do you see this and these requests as part of the

13

continuance of that plan in trying to meet your

14

goals and objectives in the recommendations that

15

were made as a result of your study?

16

MR. FERNANDEZ:

Yes, the major recommendation was to

17

reorganize, and I know times are hard, so that's why

18

from my original budget request I removed some of

19

the items myself that -- to help the cut that was

20

asked by the Mayor, but we are looking to expand.

21

COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON:

And this is all in conjunction

22

with the original report that you requested that

23

would help make your Department more functional,

24

more efficient?

25

MR. FERNANDEZ:

Yeah, that's correct, ma'am.
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COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON:

2

CHAIR HOKAMA:

3

COUNCILMEMBER MATEO:

4

CHAIR HOKAMA:

5

COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA:

Okay.

Thank you.

Thank you.

Mr. Mateo?

Not for this section.

Thank you.

Mr. Molina?
Yeah, thank you, Chairman.

Just a

6

clarification from the Chief.

If you went over

7

this, I apologize.

8

Public Safety Commission, in the Details, it1s under

9

6132, there1s the $15,000 request.

I must have missed it.

For the

And then, Chief,

10

you gave us the information this morning in the red

11

binder, it has 20,000.

12

it still 15 or is it 20,000 now?

13

MR. FERNANDEZ:

14

COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA:

15

So it is 20, then, and not what1s

in the Details at IS?
MR. FERNANDEZ:

17

COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA:

18

CHAIR HOKAMA:

19

COUNCILMEMBER PONTANILLA:

Yeah, that1s correct.
Okay.

Thank you.

Mr. Pontanilla?
Thank you, Chair.

Chief, as far as the Department, in regards

21

to your budget for 104, did you follow the Fire

22

Department evaluation and what they recommended as

23

far as your Department?

24
25

Is

The total comes out to 20.

16

20

Can I get clarification?

MR. FERNANDEZ:

We try to follow it as much as possible.

The evaluation is like a road map, like Deputy Chief
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1

Cordeiro said.

2

Department.

3
4

We geared it to our needs and our

COUNCILMEMBER PONTANILLA:
in '04?

5

MR. FERNANDEZ:

6

COUNCILMEMBER PONTANILLA:

7

8
9

Did it call for any expansion

Pardon me?
Did it call for any expansion

in '04?
MR. FERNANDEZ:

It did call for expansions of several --

in several areas.

10

COUNCILMEMBER PONTANILLA:

11

MR. FERNANDEZ:

12

COUNCILMEMBER PONTANILLA: Yeah.

13

MR. FERNANDEZ:

14

COUNCILMEMBER PONTANILLA:

15

Namely?

You're talking about the evaluation?

Yes, it did.
And that would help you run

your Department more efficiently?

16

MR. FERNANDEZ:

Yes, it would.

17

COUNCILMEMBER PONTANILLA:

Okay.

The other question that

18

I had is in regards to the 800 megahertz mobile

19

radio.

20

Does the Police Department do the maintenance for

21

you as far as those mobile radios or -- I understand

22

they're the keepers of the -- I guess the megahertz

23

radio, yeah, the 800, and there are some fees that

24

are paid by the Department.

25

the whole operations of that 800 megahertz.

You have $4,000 for equipment purchase.

In fact, they pay for
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looking for my information.

I lost track of it.

I know there's something in there that it

3

indicated the Fire Department as far as the usage

4

and the maintenance of those radios that is

5

presently being picked up by the Police Department,

6

and I don't see any costs for you in your

7

Administration program area.

Maybe you should -- if

8

you can take a look at that.

If I do get a hold of

9

my information, I'll send you a copy, because it's

10

pretty important that I think every department

11

should carry their own as far as that 800 megahertz

12

radio and the use of it.

13

MR. FERNANDEZ:

Can I explain?

14

COUNCILMEMBER PONTANILLA:

15

MR. FERNANDEZ:

Sure.

That radio -- we purchased that radio

16

separately.

17

find out that it cost a lot more if we purchase it

18

with the vehicle, but as far as maintenance, we have

19

our own maintenance contract with Pacific Wireless

20

that takes care of our radios.

21

If you read my summary there, you'll

COUNCILMEMBER PONTANILLA:

Okay.

What I'm talking about

22

is the -- the operations of that antennas and things

23

like that that Police Department takes care of, the

24

infrastructure of that radio.

25

information to you.

So I'll get that

You know, take a look at it,
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1

and if you need to include it in your budget, you

2

should do so.

3

radios, along with some other departments, like the

4

Parks Department.

5

being picked up by the Police Department.

6

provide you that information and take a look at it.

7

If you need to work with the Police Department,

8

fine.

9

I know the Public Works also had

They did have some costs that was

MR. FERNANDEZ:

Thank you.

10

CHAIR HOKAMA:

Ms. Tavares?

11

COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES:

So 1111

Yeah, overall, you know, when you

12

were asked to reduce your budget by 8 percent, it

13

appears that you decreased it by 4 percent and that

14

the 4 percent reduction is that you just moved

15

equipment from cash to bond.

16

you addressed your -- the request to reduce the

17

budget?

18

MR. FERNANDEZ:

Is that basically how

What I did was I submitted the budget.

We

19

were asked to make the cut, so I removed some items

20

to try and assist the Administration with the cut.

21
22

23
24
25

COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES:

And part of that was moving the

equipment from cash to bond; is that correct?
MR. AGSALOG:

Mr. Chairman, may I?
Councilmember Tavares, the decision to move

equipment to bond was done in my office.
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by Department.

It was a --

2

COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES:

3

MR. AGSALOG:

Oh, okay.

Yeah, so they submitted their request as CIP

4

equipments, but they didn't assign where it would be

5

taken.

6

we ask, they're the ones that provided us the cuts.

It was done in our office, but the cuts that

7

COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES:

8

CHAIR HOKAMA:

9

10

Okay, thank you.

Mr. Carroll, questions in this area?

Mr. Kane?
COUNCILMEMBER KANE:

Mr. Chairman, maybe you can provide

11

guidance.

12

we be able to ask questions?

13

is the memorandum that's attached to the booklet

14

itself, when would it be appropriate to ask

15

questions regarding this memorandum?

16
17

18

CHAIR HOKAMA:

This was handed out.

At what point would

And really my question

The Chair will allow you to ask questions

at this time, Mr. Kane.
COUNCILMEMBER KANE:

Thank you, Mr. Chairman.

19

Chief, in this memorandum you pointed out the

20

most important request that you have is the need for

21

three new assistant chiefs which would allow the

22

Department to proceed with its strategic plan to

23

reorganize.

24

that because currently in this proposal that we have

25

before us we don't have those three new assistant

And I'm assuming that you're stating
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chiefs; is that correct?
MR. FERNANDEZ:

That's correct, that's one of the items

that I removed.
COUNCILMEMBER KANE:

Thank you.

So what

would you be

5

able to specifically tell us -- or is it already in

6

this booklet and I just haven't had the time to read

7

it yet because you folks just gave it to us -- what

8

specifically are you folks implementing from the

9

strategic plan into this year's budget and how

10

efficiently will you be able to execute those

11

additions without the three assistant chiefs being

12

considered?

13

MR. KAUPALOLO:

Thank you, good morning, Council Chair

14

Kane.

15

had a prepared statement, but I'm going to be a

16

little early with presenting this, but we are moving

17

forward with the strategic plan.

18

an idea of where we're at, presently we have I

19

believe about nine active objectives that we're

20

working on.

21

particular objective that you mention, and that was

22

to develop and support an effective -- and develop a

23

long-range staffing plan to ensure delivery of

24

quality service.

25

I'll try and answer that for you.

In fact,

I

Just to give you

And one of them includes that

So that falls in line with the Department
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1

reorganizing in conjunction with the Fire

2

Department's evaluation.

3

look at the big picture, but we looked at it from

4

the standpoint that we needed to address the -- the

5

effectiveness of the Department also.

6

COUNCILMEMBER KANE:

True that we do need to

Can you specifically identify within

7

this proposed budget document that we have before us

8

what objectives are in this budget?

9

again.

Let me ask that

Of the objectives that you folks are looking

10

at, as the nine active objectives, how many of them

11

are currently located in the proposed budget and

12

which ones are not currently located in the current

13

proposal?

14

MR. KAUPALOLO:

Answer that, Chief?

Yeah, thank you.

15

Currently what's in support

16

of the budget is two, and if I can be specific,

17

these are objective listed as 8H and the other one

18

listed as objective HJ.

19

COUNCILMEMBER KANE:

20

MR. KAUPALOLO:

21

COUNCILMEMBER KANE:

22

MR. KAUPALOLO:

23
24
25

Repeat that?

HJ?

J as in John.
H as in Harry.

H as in Henry.

Oh, I mean Harry, excuse

me.
COUNCILMEMBER KANE:

Just to repeat, then.

Objective 8H

and objective HJ are currently located in this
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1

budget proposal that we have before us, and that's

2

two out of nine active objectives that you folks are

3

pursuing to reorganize the Department?

4

MR. KAUPALOLO:

Specifically 8H would be the objective

5

that you would want to refer to in the

6

reorganization and realignment.

7

COUNCILMEMBER KANE:

Thank you, Mr. Chairman.

8

9
10

Thank you.

CHAIR HOKAMA:

Ms. Johnson?

COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON:

In regard to the request for the

11

assistant chiefs, one of the things that I think is

12

really important -- and it's in the Details that you

13

have there, where you explain about the physical

14

location and the problems with dealing with a large

15

island and possible separation from West Maui or

16

other areas.

17

though, is if -- let's say you had the three fire

18

or three assistant chiefs, is there any way that you

19

could manage with two and work towards that goal or

20

would that not be possible?

21
22
23
24
25

MR. FERNANDEZ:

One of the things I'm looking at,

Two wouldn't be possible.

We have three

shifts.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON:

That answers that question.

you.
CHAIR HOKAMA:

Mr. Mateo?
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1

COUNCILMEMBER MATEO:

2

CHAIR HOKAMA:

3

COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA:

4

CHAIR HOKAMA:

5

COUNCILMEMBER PONTANILLA:

6

CHAIR HOKAMA:

7

Mr. Molina?
No.

Mr. Pontanilla?
No.

Mr. Carroll?

Anything else, Mr. Kane,

under Administration and Maintenance program?

8

COUNCILMEMBER KANE:

9

Mr. Chairman.

10

No.

CHAIR HOKAMA:

Not at this time.

Thank you,

Anyone else have anything under

11

Administration and Maintenance program?

12

not, we will take our mid-day break.

13

return, we will start with the Training program at

14

1:30 p.m.
RECESS:

16

RECONVENE:

17

CHAIR HOKAMA:

(Gavel)

1: 36 p.m.

(Gavel).

Budget and Finance Committee

18

meeting for the 7th of April.

19

Training program.

We are on the

Chief, any comments regarding the budget

20

22

And when we

11: 56 p.m.

15

21

Okay, if

request for the Training program?
MR. FERNANDEZ:

Yeah, at this time we have just one item

23

we submitted for Training.

It's monies to tow our

24

live burn trailer that the Council gave us last

25

year.

The bid will be awarded on the 9th of -- I
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1

think it's Wednesday, and I think it's 90 days to be

2

completed.

3

be to move the trailer on different locations on

4

Maui and also to ship it to Molokai and Lanai so

5

that all of our personnel can utilize this live fire

6

burn training.

When it arrives on Maui, the funds will

7

CHAIR HOKAMA:

8

COUNCILMEMBER KANE:

9

CHAIR HOKAMA:

10

Okay.

Mr. Kane, questions for the Chief?
No questions.

Mr. Mateo?

COUNCILMEMBER MATEO:

Thank you, Mr. Chair.

Mr. Chair,

11

I'd like to ask the possibility -- because the

12

Department's budget was initially based on the

13

strategic plan, we don't have a specific on what

14

that plan actually is.

15

the Department tell us the specifics of that plan so

16

we can try and get an understanding of the actual

17

budget that they have submitted?

18

CHAIR HOKAMA:

Would it be possible to have

You know what, for you and Mr. Pontanilla,

19

this being your first budget review, all of the

20

other members, we did have a briefing I believe last

21

year and they gave us copies of the Department's

22

strategic plan.

23

that I guess puts the Department against national

24

standards and many requirements, and that's part of

25

their -- how they came up with their

It's a pretty well written document
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recommendations.

2

Chief, you have an ability to maybe give us a

3

short summary of that strategic plan as regards to

4

this portion of the budget?

5
6

7

MR. FERNANDEZ:

Is that possible or

I'll have BC Kaupalolo give you a real

short summary.
MR. KAUPALOLO:

Mr. Chair, if you could, I'm, you know,

8

not sure that I clearly understand, you know, what

9

exactly that you would want.

10
11
12
13

Would you be able to

clarify that, please?
CHAIR HOKAMA:

Let me ask

have Mr. Mateo ask you

questions, then.
COUNCILMEMBER MATEO:

Mr. Chair, I guess because the rest

14

of the Committee has already had the opportunity to

15

go through the report, I guess Mr. Pontanilla and

16

myself will be able to pullout that report in our

17

own and just go through it.

18

CHAIR HOKAMA:

Yeah, maybe the Chief can show you the

19

document that they have been working from and was

20

made available to the members.

21

Chief, can you hold up that strategic plan?

22

This is what it looks like.

23

have a copy of it in your offices, but this is how

24

the Department has based their funding and manning

25

requests.

I'm not sure if you
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COUNCILMEMBER PONTANILLA:

Mr. Chair, I have a copy of

2

that report and I had gone over with the Fire Chief

3

as far as the report itself.

4
5

6

COUNCILMEMBER MATEO:

Okay, thank you, Mr. Chair, we can

disregard the request.
CHAIR HOKAMA:

Thank you.

Chief, maybe if you would make some time

7

for Mr. Mateo and maybe you can give him some

8

comments outside of the Committee and help address

9

him and keep him informed of what the strategic plan

10

is all about and where we are in the planning.

11

MR. FERNANDEZ:

I will do that.

12

CHAIR HOKAMA:

13

COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA:

Okay, thank you.

Mr. Molina?

Thank you, Chairman.

Chief Fernandez, under Miscellaneous Other

14
15

Costs -- 8-8 in our Details, Members -- request for

16

7,000, can you elaborate what the request is for

17

specifically?

18

MR. FERNANDEZ:

19

COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA:

20

MR. FERNANDEZ:

21

What item?
6221 on 8-8 in our Budget Details.

That's the item I spoke of earlier.

That's funds to tow and ship our live burn trailer.

22

COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA:

23

CHAIR HOKAMA:

24

COUNCILMEMBER PONTANILLA:

25

Oh, okay.

Sorry.

Thank you.

Mr. Pontanilla?
Thank you, Mr. Chair.

Chief, can you explain your HazMat program
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1

and how many people in your division has gone

2

through the training, and if you need to complete,

3

when it's going to be completed?

4

MR. FERNANDEZ:

I think at this time we have 75 HazMat

5

technicians in the Department.

We have rescue crew

6

that does HazMat.

7

HazMat technicians, and we will continue to send

8

more through the training to be HazMat technicians.

9

The training is offered once a year in October and

All 15 personnel on that crew are

10

November, I think, and we're limited as to the

11

amount of people we can send.

12
13
14
15
16

COUNCILMEMBER PONTANILLA:

Okay.

So 75 has already been

completed and we'll be sending out more?
MR. FERNANDEZ:

Yeah, might -- I think we have about

it's about 75 that have the technician level.
COUNCILMEMBER PONTANILLA:

As far as the potential as, you

17

know, HazMat incidents, is your Department ready for

18

that?

19

prepared for any HazMat incidents?

20

If not, what can we do to get the Department

MR. FERNANDEZ:

We're ready.

We're training as much as

21

possible.

22

kind of technical or special training that comes up.

23

As far as the incident, I cannot tell you.

24

know what the incident would be, but I think we can

25

handle what comes up right now.

We always try to send our people to any
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3

COUNCILMEMBER PONTANILLA:

Do you have any funding from

homeland security?
MR. FERNANDEZ:

We're working on that with Civil Defense.

4

There's monies out there that was mentioned earlier,

5

but only so much is geared toward the Department.

6

We can apply only for so much of the fund.

7

know, that 700,000, whatever the figure was, is not

8

totally geared to us.

9

COUNCILMEMBER PONTANILLA:

10

CHAIR HOKAMA:

11

COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES:

12

CHAIR HOKAMA:

13

COUNCILMEMBER MATEO:

14

CHAIR HOKAMA:

15

COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA:

16

CHAIR HOKAMA:

17
18

You

Okay, thank you, Chair.

Ms. Tavares?
No.

Mr. Kane?

Mr. Mateo?

No.

Mr. Molina?
No.

Okay, let us move on to Fire Rescue

Operations.
MR. FERNANDEZ:

Okay.

For Fire Rescue Operations, we're

19

asking for a new apparatus for Kahului, a new jaws

20

of life for Lanai, some self-contained underwater

21

breathing apparatus tanks for Kahului and some

22

radios, equipment for Napili and Molokai, that be

23

beds and refrigerators.

24

$25,000 for helicopter service that's part of the

25

contract.

We also have to request

That's all we have for that.
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CHAIR HOKAMA:

Okay. Mr. Kane, questions, Fire Rescue?

2

COUNCILMEMBER KANE:

3

CHAIR HOKAMA:

4

COUNCILMEMBER MATEO:

Pass.

Mr. Mateo.
Thank you, Mr. Chair.

I guess on

5

your -- in the Program Budget, 8-12, under your 2003

6

activities, there is an item that says, hire

7

additional fire fighters to fill vacancies.

8

an item that's already been budgeted for or are

9

these new positions?

10

MR. FERNANDEZ:

Is this

That's vacancies, and it's already

11

budgeted for.

12

to start interviewing soon to fill those positions.

13

COUNCILMEMBER MATEO:

We are in the process -- we're going

Okay.

And another one, Chief, in

14

the Details on 8-27, this is regards to the Wailea

15

station.

16

$143,100, what does that represent?

The list under your Fiscal Year 2003, that

17

MR. FERNANDEZ:

That's the total budget for Wailea.

18

COUNCILMEMBER MATEO:

19

MR. FERNANDEZ:

20

COUNCILMEMBER MATEO:

Okay.

Wailea's not open yet, yeah?

No.
So this is -- so the year after 2004

21

you're carrying over the same amount of monies, the

22

same costs, 143,010 [sic].

23

MR. FERNANDEZ:

24

COUNCILMEMBER MATEO:

25

That's correct, we will, yeah.
The station will not be open in

4004 (sic)?
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1

MR. FERNANDEZ:

Oh, no, it will.

I mean the station --

2

hopefully the station will open at the end of this

3

month.

4

COUNCILMEMBER MATEO:

So wouldn't the number -- the

5

request under 4000 -- 2004 be considerably larger

6

than what has been projected in '03?

7

MR. FERNANDEZ:

8

COUNCILMEMBER MATEO:

9

No, it would be the same.
Wailea would be about the same size

as Kahului?

10

MR. FERNANDEZ:

11

COUNCILMEMBER MATEO:

12

over $300,000.

13

only for 143,OOO?

14

MR. FERNANDEZ:

Yeah.
Kahului is requesting in 4004 (sic)
$328,210, so how could you be asking

We have all the equipment at Kahului.

15

have the rescue boat and all the equipment that

16

falls under Kahului Fire Station.

17

COUNCILMEMBER MATEO:

Okay.

18

CHAIR HOKAMA:

19

COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA:

20

CHAIR HOKAMA:

21

COUNCILMEMBER PONTANILLA:

Okay.

We

Thank you very much.

Mr. Molina?
No.

Mr. Pontanilla?
Yes, just in regards to Wailea

22

Fire Station, I know the contractor is behind

23

schedule.

Is there a penalty clause as far as the

24

contract?

You know, are we enforcing the penalty

25

clause?
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MR. FERNANDEZ:

We have Jay Buzianis.

He's our CIP

coordinator.

3

there's a clause, but there -- they're coordinating

4

the project.

5
6
7

8

9

He's working on that part.

I imagine

2

COUNCILMEMBER PONTANILLA:

So you don't know the amount

per day delay?
MR. FERNANDEZ:

I think it's about 300.

1'm not sure, but

that's in their hands.
COUNCILMEMBER PONTANILLA:

And the contract's supposed to

10

have been done -- well, the project's supposed to

11

have been completed last year?

12
13

MR. FERNANDEZ:

Yeah, last year, and then they had a month

extension to sometime in January.

14

COUNCILMEMBER PONTANILLA:

15

CHAIR HOKAMA:

16

COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES:

Okay.

Thank you.

Ms. Tavares?
Yeah, thank you.

On the

17

Helicopter Air 1 services, on 8-30, probably the

18

last entry before the grand total, you had

19

appropriated 530 for this fiscal year and then it

20

jumps to 580 for next fiscal year.

21

contractual service have a built-in increase every

22

year?

23

MR. FERNANDEZ:

24

COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES:

25

Is our

Yes, it does.
So it's 50,000 a year increase?

Is that what we're going to pay from now on?
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2

3

MR. FERNANDEZ:

No, this year is 25.

I don't know what

next year will be.
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES:

Well, it's showing a $50,000

4

increase between this year and next year in this

5

line item.

6

contract say about those services -- the services?

7

That's for the pilot, right?

I'm just wondering what does our

8

MR. FERNANDEZ:

That's for the whole helicopter service.

9

COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES:

10

MR. FERNANDEZ:

11

COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES:

12

MR. FERNANDEZ:

13

COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES:

The helicopter and the servicing?

Everything, yeah.
And the pilot?

Yeah.
Because when it says expended in

14

2002, it's 460,000, but was that the first year we

15

got it, 2002?

16

MR. FERNANDEZ:

17

COUNCILMEMBER KANE:

18

COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES:

19

MR. FERNANDEZ:

20

COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES:

21
22
23
24
25

We got it -- first year was July 2001.
Fiscal Year '02.
Which is Fiscal Year 2002.

Yeah.
So it was a full year.

I mean,

could we get more information about that, Mr. Chair?
CHAIR HOKAMA:

Okay, we shall forward that request to the

Department in writing.
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES:

And I guess it's like what is

the -- why is it increasing at the rate that it's
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increasing every year?

2

helicopter cost if we bought it ourselves?

3

MR. CORDEIRO:

4

COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES:

5

MR. FERNANDEZ:

6

7
8

9
10
11

I don't know, what does a

Couple million.
Couple million.

Couple of million, plus the maintenance,

plus the insurance, plus the pilot.
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES:

If it goes up 50,000 every year,

we'll be up to that million pretty soon, yeah?
MR. FERNANDEZ:

Yeah, but it will be way over -- way over

what, you know, we're paying now.
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES:

I think we went through that when

12

we talked about the contracting -- or contracting

13

for the services would be a lot more feasible, but I

14

think at the time we talked about that we didn't

15

I don't remember discussing the annually -- the

16

annual increase to the budget for, you know, the

17

services.

18

end of this and is it going to be 50,000 every year

19

from now on?

20

disturbing that it's that high.

21
22

MR. FERNANDEZ:

That's why I'm curious as to where's the

And, you know, that's a little

I will get -- I will get that information

to you.

23

COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES:

24

CHAIR HOKAMA:

25

COUNCILMEMBER KANE:

Thank you.

Okay, Mr. Kane?
No.
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1

CHAIR HOKAMA:

2

COUNCILMEMBER MATEO:

3

Mr. Mateo?
Thank you, Mr. Chair.

In the Program 8-20, listed under your

4

Program Highlights, there's two items, item E, can

5

you tell me what -- what the status is of that

6

particular apparatus?

7
8

9
10

MR. FERNANDEZ:

That's the apparatus for Pukoo Fire

Station on Molokai.
COUNCILMEMBER MATEO:
MR. FERNANDEZ:

Right.

It should be ready for final inspection

11

June 16th, arrive on Molokai approximately three to

12

four weeks after that.

13
14
15
16

COUNCILMEMBER MATEO:

Thank you.

And the next

one following on would be item H.
MR. FERNANDEZ:

Item H is that tanker for Kahului.

We've

already got that in service.

17

COUNCILMEMBER MATEO:

18

sent to Lanai?

19

Oh, great.

MR. FERNANDEZ:

No.

And has the replacement been already

We are doing major repairs on that

20

replacement.

21

something else is wrong.

22

to get a new -- brand new transmission, so it's

23

still in the shop.

24

working on it.

25

it does go to Lanai.

Every time we do something, we find
Recently was a -- we had

Our guy -- our mechanics are

It will be in excellent shape when
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1

COUNCILMEMBER MATEO:

Oh, great.

Thank you very much.

2

And the last -- the last question is like when you

3

take a look at the performance measures, one of the

4

items, emergency medical services, that has, for all

5

of the districts, really taken a notable decrease in

6

the number of responses or services provided.

7

there a specific reason for that continued reduction

8

in all of the districts?

9

MR. FERNANDEZ:

You talking about '03?

10

COUNCILMEMBER MATEO:

11

MR. FERNANDEZ:

12

quarter.

13

MR. CORDEIRO:

Is

Well, yeah.

That's just an estimate, estimate for that

Excuse me.

You show it's the estimate --

14

the first one is the actual that we had for 2002,

15

and then the next line would have been estimate for

16

2003, and then the next is for the first quarter

17

only estimates.

18
19
20
21
22
23

COUNCILMEMBER MATEO:

So the estimate is -- can still --

you know, considerably less than the actual of '02?
MR. CORDEIRO:

Yes, it will probably be higher because we

have both seen more calls.
COUNCILMEMBER MATEO:

So, actually, then, there is no

reduction?

24

MR. CORDEIRO:

No.

25

COUNCILMEMBER MATEO:

Okay.

Thank you.

Thank you.

RALPH ROSENBERG COURT REPORTERS, INC.
(808) 524-2090

111

BF 4/7/03

1

CHAIR HOKAMA:

Thank you.

2

COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA:

3

CHAIR HOKAMA:

4

COUNCILMEMBER PONTANILLA:

Mr. Molina?

No.

Mr. Pontanilla?
Yes.

This is probably for

5

either the Finance Director or Budget Director.

6

they could provide us information in regards to the

7

penalty clause of the contract for Wailea Fire

8

Station and how much penalties already been

9

penalized the contractor on that construction

10

If

project.

11

MR. AGSALOG:

Mr. Chairman, I'll get that for you guys.

12

CHAIR HOKAMA:

13

MR. PONTANILLA:

14

CHAIR HOKAMA:

15

COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES:

Okay, thank you.
Thanks.

That's it.

Thank you.

Ms. Tavares?

Yeah, the equipment on 8-31 in the

16

Details, the refrigerators for Molokai, they're

17

replacing -- how old are the refrigerators that they

18

are replacing?

19

commercial grade refrigerators or regular household

20

refrigerators?

21

MR. FERNANDEZ:

And are you replacing these with

It's regular household, and two on

22

Hoolehua is 12 years old and the one on Pukoo is 15

23

years old.

24

COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES:

25

And are there problems with it

right now, with those refrigerators?
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1
2

MR. FERNANDEZ:

Well, they're old and they might break

down any time.

3

COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES:

4

MR. FERNANDEZ:

5

6
7

Yeah, the beds are 12 years old.

COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES:

9

COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES:

12

When the station opened, okay.

So

it's just the mattress or the whole unit?
MR. FERNANDEZ:

11

That's

from the original, when the station opened.

8

10

And the beds in Napili, 2,500.

It will be the whole unit.
So everything's shot in there, box

springs, frames, all that's shot?
MR. FERNANDEZ:

Well, probably not the frames, but the box

spring and the mattress will be replaced.

13

COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES:

14

Mr. Chair.

15

CHAIR HOKAMA:

16

COUNCILMEMBER KANE:

Okay.

Thank you.

That's all I have,

Mr. Kane?

Chief, did you cite to us that

17

Kahului Fire Station Miscellaneous Supply reduction?

18

You already cited that?

I'm sorry if I missed it.

19

On 8-29 of the Details.

I think overall in your

20

Fire Rescue Operation program from '03 current to

21

'04 there's one part -- and this is the part --

22

there's a $25,000 reduction for Miscellaneous

23

Supplies.

24

MR. FERNANDEZ:

8-29 where?

25

COUNCILMEMBER KANE:

8-29 Details, Kahului Fire Station,
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1

Materials and Supplies, and under that sub

2

category -- and I'm just double checking so my ruler

3

is straight.

4
5
6

MR. CORDEIRO:

That was for the installation of the diesel

filters.

We received most of it.

COUNCILMEMBER KANE:

7

okay.

8

Thank you.

9

CHAIR HOKAMA:

You cited that earlier, yeah?

Thank you.

I just wanted to make sure.

That's all I have.

Ms. Johnson?

10

COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON:

11

CHAIR HOKAMA:

12

COUNCILMEMBER MATEO:

13

CHAIR HOKAMA:

14

COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA:

15

CHAIR HOKAMA:

16

COUNCILMEMBER PONTANILLA:

17

CHAIR HOKAMA:

18

COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES:

19

CHAIR HOKAMA:

20

COUNCILMEMBER KANE:

21

Mr. Chairman.

22
23
24
25

CHAIR HOKAMA:

No.

Mr. Mateo?
No.

Mr. Molina?
No.

Mr. Pontanilla?
No.

Ms. Tavares?
No.

Anything else, Mr. Kane?

Okay.

No, that's it.

Thank you,

Chief, when do you think we're going

to get the tanker on Lanai?
MR. CORDEIRO:

Yeah,

Hopefully.

By July 1st?

The transmission came in.

They're installing it.

They're just working on some
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1

minor things.

2

this month.

3

CHAIR HOKAMA:

Hopefully, hopefully by the end of
We'll cross our fingers.

Okay.

More than likely we're going to need
my comments that I share

4

another -- for Lanai my

5

to my Committee members is that the bad part is

6

there's no support stations except the one station,

7

and right now we only have five-man crews.

8

get one guy on vacation or something, until you fly

9

them in, they by themselves.

Now we getting the

10

tanker, which I appreciate.

11

get one tanker driver, one Fire Fighter III.

12

Wouldn't be that correct?

13

MR. FERNANDEZ:

That's correct.

So you

We're going to need to

The plans for next year's

14

budget would be to get a tanker driver for there and

15

also on Molokai in Kaunakakai where we have a

16

tanker.

17

CHAIR HOKAMA:

Okay.

Because right now I'm going to be

18

real candid to you, I am thinking of asking this

19

Committee to support reducing Kihei and giving Lanai

20

that number six slot per shift.

21

justification for Kihei was before Wailea.

22

we get Wailea at full staffing, I think we can bring

23

down Kihei down to the 15-man level, instead of the

24

18-man level.

25

to support you.

Because the
Now that

If you need support, you got wailea
So that will be my consideration
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1

that I'm going to be putting forth to this

2

Committee.

3

Chief, Kihei?

4

MR. FERNANDEZ:

5

CHAIR HOKAMA:

Right now you have vacancies, right,

Yes, we have.
Okay.

And again, I'm -- you know, I think

6

for your station on Lanai, same thing with the

7

police, they got nobody to rely on but themselves

8

for support, and so I prefer to have that station

9

manned the best I can.

And again, my whole thing to

10

Molokai -- Molokai, I understand Mr. Mateo's

11

situation, but he's got Pukoo and Hoolehua for back

12

up Kaunakakai.

13

Rescue?

Okay.

14

COUNCILMEMBER PONTANILLA:

15

CHAIR HOKAMA:

16

COUNCILMEMBER PONTANILLA:

17

Anything else under Fire

Yes, Chair.

Mr. Pontanilla.
On page 8-31 on the Details,

this is in regards to that hydraulic tool.

18

CHAIR HOKAMA:

Yes.

19

COUNCILMEMBER PONTANILLA:

Can we purchase that hydraulic

20

tool from the rural community grant that's on page

21

8-39?

22
23

You have $50,000 that is being requested.

MR. FERNANDEZ:

That grant is used for other items like

fire hose, nozzles, and other items like that.

24

COUNCILMEMBER PONTANILLA:

25

MR. FERNANDEZ:

So you couldn't?

We could make adjustments, but most of
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that money is for fire hose, nozzles.
MR. CORDEIRO:

Yeah, that's basically for the forestry

3

grant, dealing with more like wild land fires

4

instead of extractions.

5

equipment we need for brush and wild land fires.

6

COUNCILMEMBER PONTANILLA:

7

CHAIR HOKAMA:

8

9

So we deal with type of

Okay.

Thanks.

Okay, anything else, Fire Rescue?

Mr. Kane, Fire Rescue?
COUNCILMEMBER KANE:

10

CHAIR HOKAMA:

11

COUNCILMEMBER MATEO:

12

CHAIR HOKAMA:

13

COUNCILMEMBER KANE:

14

CHAIR HOKAMA:

15

COUNCILMEMBER KANE:

No.

Ms. Johnson?

Mr. Mateo?

No.

Mr. Molina?

Okay, let us move on to --

Mr. Chairman, I'm sorry.

Yes, Mr. Kane.
Just following up on your comments,

16

the -- your recommendation for consideration may be

17

coming from the Kihei Station or coming from the

18

Wailea Station?

19

were going to --

20

CHAIR HOKAMA:

I'm sorry, I didn't catch where you

Originally when Council gave the six-man

21

position for Kihei, the part of the thing was that

22

the area of requirements, yeah, prior to us funding

23

and constructing and staffing Wailea, because they

24

were out there in South Maui.

25

built the brand-new station, we have fully funded

Now that we have
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1

all positions for Wailea and they have a vacancy in

2

Kihei, 11m thinking about shifting and creating a

3

full station on Lanai.

4

COUNCILMEMBER KANE:

5

CHAIR HOKAMA:

6

7

That would be

And that would also take care of the need

for the tanker driver position.
COUNCILMEMBER KANE:

So there would be a -- and 11m sorry,

8

Mr. Chairman, if 11m misunderstanding, so -- because

9

I see in Kihei we have three Fire Fighter IIIls.

10

Six.

11

Station has nine Fire Fighter lis, so you would be

12

moving three Fire Fighter lis is what youlre talking

13

about?

14

So therels 12 Fire Fighter lis.

CHAIR HOKAMA:

The Lanai

At this point 11m looking at moving three

15

Fire Fighter I authorized slots from Kihei and

16

transferring it to Lanai, and then eventually the

17

Chief is going to need to do one reclassification to

18

Fire Fighter III --

19

COUNCILMEMBER KANE:

20

CHAIR HOKAMA:

21
22
23
24
25

For driver.

so they qualify for the tanker driver

position.
COUNCILMEMBER KANE:
clarification.
CHAIR HOKAMA:

Yeah, thank you.

Thank you for that

Thank you, Mr. Chair.

Okay, thank you.

Okay, Fire Prevention

program, Chief.
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2

MR. FERNANDEZ:

We have no items for that program at this

time.

3

CHAIR HOKAMA:

Pretty much a static budget for that one?

4

MR. FERNANDEZ:

5

CHAIR HOKAMA:

6

COUNCILMEMBER KANE:

7

CHAIR HOKAMA:

8

COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: No.

9

CHAIR HOKAMA:

Yeah.
Okay, Mr. Kane, Fire Prevention?
Pass.

Ms. Johnson?

Mr. Mateo?

10

COUNCILMEMBER MATEO:

No.

11

CHAIR HOKAMA:

12

COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA:

13

CHAIR HOKAMA:

14

COUNCILMEMBER PONTANILLA:

Mr. Molina?
No.

Mr. Pontanilla?
Yes.

Is that Department fully

15

staffed or sufficiently staffed to do all of the

16

inspection, especially for building permits?

17

MR. FERNANDEZ:

Building permits, right now we have a

18

Plans Checker.

We're in the process of having our

19

Fireworks Clerk change her title so she can give

20

some hours to that Department to assist our plans

21

Checker.

22

budget was for a PIO Officer, which would take away

23

some of the duties that our prevention bureau does

24

now, like school inspections -- I'm sorry, duties

25

that the PIO Officer would do, and that would free

As far as inspections, part of my original
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them up to do their inspections.
COUNCILMEMBER PONTANILLA:

permits do you receive on a monthly basis?
MR. FERNANDEZ:

Can I call Captain Bal up to answer your

questions?

6

COUNCILMEMBER PONTANILLA:

7

CHAIR HOKAMA:

8
9

So how many of these building

Sure.

Captain, if you'll join us, please.

Join

us next to Carl, please.
MR. BAL:

Mr. Chair, Council Members, I'm glad to have

10

this opportunity to speak.

And we'll get to the

11

question that you asked, but let me -- let me say

12

for the past three years the Plans Review section

13

alone has more than doubled.

14

subdivisions, water, special use permits,

15

testifying, and it's really difficult.

16

know, we continue to go on to deal with public

17

education, priority number one, and everything else

18

that's expected for our bureau to do.

19

question was?

20

COUNCILMEMBER PONTANILLA:

I'm now helping with

And, you

So your

My question was how many of

21

these building permits, you know, come to your desk

22

for inspections for approval of plans?

23

reason why I ask is that, you know, we try to speed

24

up like, say, building permit process, and one of

25

the thing that is often asked is, you know, the Fire
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It

1

Department approval takes too long at times.

2

could be, you know, youlre the one-man operation

3

trying to handle all of this work.

4

we should be taking a look as -- you know, as far as

5

relieving your work load to inspection work.

6

MR. BAL:

You know, maybe

The Plans Reviewer alone cannot handle the way

7

it is right now.

And like I said, the amount of

8

plans that comes in has more than doubled.

9

course discussing the PIO Officer with the Chief,

And of

10

the idea was that the Public Information Officer

11

would have taken on public education.

12

take a huge load off of my back, and then, you know,

13

reallocate one of the positions that's already in

14

there per our auditor to help with water and

15

subdivisions.

16

to speed, but then hopefully weill be able to try

17

and improve conditions in Plans Review.

18

welre always getting shot from the sidelines for

19

taking too long and for dealing with other things,

20

but we only have one person doing that, and like I

21

said, I fill in in-between.

22

That would

And so that alone won't bring us up

COUNCILMEMBER PONTANILLA:

And yes,

So, Chief, youlre working on

23

the problem as trying to provide him the assistance

24

in getting those permits approved, you know, as soon

25

as can?
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MR. FERNANDEZ:

Yes, we are.

Like Captain Bal said, we

2

allocated one of our personnel to assist with that,

3

and in my original budget request the PIO Officer,

4

which would be under Administration, would work

5

directly with the Prevention Bureau.

6

COUNCILMEMBER PONTANILLA:

So that wouldn't take any

7

efficiency away from you as far as running the

8

Department?

9
10
11

MR. FERNANDEZ:

No.

COUNCILMEMBER PONTANILLA:

Okay.

Thank you.

Thank you,

Chair.

12

CHAIR HOKAMA:

Ms. Tavares.

13

COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES:

Yes, under Fire Prevention in the

14

Program Budget, 8-25, it says in Section B, the 1997

15

State Fire Codes have been accepted and signed, da,

16

da, da, and the County is making amendments to the

17

1997 Fire Codes.

18

amendments, et cetera.

19

MR. BAL:

And the Council has to approve the
Has that been done already?

That has not been done.

What happened is that

20

we have accepted the State model code, the 1997.

21

The -- in fact, the rest of the islands, they have

22

been putting it together and making our amendments,

23

which finally will be turned in for your review and

24

acceptance.

25

COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES:

Can you share with the
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1

Committee -- I know we discussed this once before, I

2

think -- why is that we're in a 1997 Code when this

3

is the year 2003?

4

MR. BAL:

The standards are in the latest code.

This is

5

building and fire.

The standards for new design

6

are -- comes under the latest codes for National

7

NFPA, National Fire Protection Association.

8

Fire Department itself is still in the 1988 UFC, but

9

driven by the Building Code or whichever is more

The

10

stringent is going to prevail.

So we're actually in

11

new designs under the '97 code.

That's -- anything

12

corning forward will still be under the '97.

13
14
15

COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES:

Can you help us understand, is

there a new code every year?
MR. BAL:

There's a new code every year, but each County

16

or State or State Fire Marshall's Office, whatever

17

the case may be, will pick and choose.

18

change every year is a lot of work.

19

amendments.

20

the County in any way, we'll make amendments,

21

instead of changing the whole code every time.

22

And to

So we make

If there is something that will help

COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES:

Okay.

So this is the national

23

code.

24

the next year or whatever year's, pick out the parts

25

that you think will best suit us and put it into the

So what you do is you pick and choose out of
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code that we're now using, which is '97?

2

MR. BAL:

Basically, that's correct, yes.

3

COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES:

So you're taking stuff from the

4

'98,

'99, 2000,

5

Code so you don't have to do redo the whole thing.

6

Is that

7

MR. BAL:

8

COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES:

9

MR. BAL:

'1,

'2 and putting that into the '97

Yes, that's about right.

Yes.

what goes on?

A good

10

COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES:

11

MR. BAL:

I'm sorry.

Okay.
A good example is the -- they had

12

eliminated some codes in NFPA, and when the

13

legislature decide to come out with that firecracker

14

bill, we had to back paddle, because we didn't have

15

any storage codes for this type of thing because it

16

was eliminated.

17

of '98 and '99 to provide for the legislature and

18

storage and that type of thing.

19

COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES:

So we had to take some sections out

Okay.

I think we kind of got the

20

gist of it, but it's kind of beyond me why there's a

21

code every year and not -- if not just amendments to

22

the code, an existing code.

23

question I had.

24

rural versus urban or are they all in the same code?

25

MR. BAL:

Oh, I know the other

Is there a different standard for

They're all included in the same code, and it
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1

would be covered if you're talking about rural water

2

and standards for fire protection, yes, there's

3

definite differences.

4

COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES:

5

CHAIR HOKAMA:

6

COUNCILMEMBER KANE:

Okay.

Thank you.

Thank you.

Mr. Kane.

Thank you, Mr. Chairman.

Mr. Bal, you said a couple of times that

7
8

plans are -- that are coming into your division have

9

more than doubled.

10

Over what period of time have

they doubled?

11

MR. BAL:

Over the last three years.

12

COUNCILMEMBER KANE:

Three years.

I'll move on.

You

13

folks have the responsibility of checking water

14

pressure for fire hydrants throughout the County?

15

MR. BAL:

No.

16

COUNCILMEMBER KANE:

17

MR. BAL:

18

COUNCILMEMBER KANE:

That's through the Water Department?

That's correct.
And yet this is an apparatus that you

19

folks use or a source that you folks use, the fire

20

hydrants, so what -- do you folks have any role

21

whatsoever in what comes out of those fire hydrants

22

to provide fire safety for communities?

23

MR. BAL:

Normally we would contact Water Engineering.

24

They usually have those figures as far as volume or

25

GPM.

RALPH ROSENBERG COURT REPORTERS, INC.
(808)

524-2090

125

BF 4/7/03

1

COUNCILMEMBER KANE:

So all you do is -- so if you pull up

2

to a call and you go to a fire hydrant and it's

3

it's less than what it is -- what is it, 80 --

4

MR. BAL:

5

COUNCILMEMBER KANE:

6

MR. BAL:

7

8
9

I'm sorry.
-- requirement?

I don't know if you're talking about prevention,

doing testing, or the Fire Department themselves.
COUNCILMEMBER KANE:

Yeah, but in the end, I'm just -- I'm

asking what role does your Department play in making

10

sure that the apparatus that you folks use when you

11

pull up to a hydrant has the adequate water to

12

provide that -- that protection to the community,

13

which as the fire department --

14

MR. CORDEIRO:

Usually you have our crews that go out and

15

do pre-planning.

16

hydrants.

17

to Water Board, who does the correction.

18

They do fire fills and check

If there's a problem, then it's reported

COUNCILMEMBER KANE:

Okay.

So is that something that you

19

folks have a report sitting somewhere that tells you

20

what's the status of the

21

fire hydrants throughout the County?

22

MR. CORDEIRO:

the latest status of

It's already established in our strategic

23

plan, is setting up our pre-plan.

24

fact, we just worked on that with the new software

25

that we have, how we can do better pre-planning and

As a matter of
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1

putting in a database so we don't have to go to hard

2

copy.

3

We can have it instantaneous.

COUNCILMEMBER KANE:

Thank you for making that comment

4

about the reorganization efforts.

Moving on,

5

Mr. Chairman, is your division responsible for

6

proper signage at establishments?

7

smoking ban that went into effect January 1st, 2003.

8

Isn't the Fire Department responsible for the

9

restaurants making sure that they have the proper

Let's take the

10

signage indicating that there's no smoking allowed

11

in restaurants?

12

MR. BAL:

13

COUNCILMEMBER KANE:

14

That is correct.
What is the status of the compliance

by restaurant owners with respect to that signage?

15

MR. BAL:

I don't believe there's 100 percent.

16

COUNCILMEMBER KANE:

Okay.

So how would we know when

17

there's going to be full compliance with signage,

18

and is that the responsibility of your division?

19

MR. BAL:

Generally what happens is the restaurants

20

themselves will put up their own signs, and some of

21

them will call, ask us for the size, the different

22

strokes that's required, and if we do happen to

23

do -- on our general checks, our maintenance

24

programs, go in and find them without those signs,

25

then we'll point it out to them.
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COUNCILMEMBER KANE:

Do you folks react to noncompliance

2

or is that something that you actually go out and

3

check to see if there is compliance?

4

MR. BAL:

No, we actually go out.

We have documentation

5

on the KIVA system, all the maintenance programs

6

that is going on and what we do at each one with

7

comments.

8

COUNCILMEMBER KANE:

Is there penalty issues with

9

restaurants, as an example, who fail to comply with

10

putting up the proper signage, in this case for the

11

smoking ban, as for an example?

12

MR. BAL:

We would

we're not looking at those issues as

13

much as we're looking at gaining compliance from

14

them.

15

the money, but we're not going out there to do that.

16

We don't want to -- we don't need

COUNCILMEMBER KANE:

we need

Well, it's not about the money.

It's

17

about making sure that these guys comply, because, I

18

mean, I recently read an article that talks about

19

some -- some restaurants that are just outright not

20

complying.

21

tell me what to do.

They're saying, you know, they can't

22

MR. BAL:

23

COUNCILMEMBER KANE:

Well, the fact is it's a law.

Ye s , it is.
And so it seems like there's comments

24

in that article that point to the Fire Department

25

not following through with making sure that there's
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compliance.

2

MR. BAL:

We --

3

COUNCILMEMBER KANE:

How do we deal with -- how do we

4

rectify that and how do we make sure that we do have

5

compliance?

6

MR. BAL:

We have -- if we do have complaints, we would

7

investigate it, but we have a

on our data

8

management we are taking care of it step by step.

9

And it has been a lot of restaurants included, but

10

we also have to deal with the rest of the commercial

11

business throughout Maui County, Molokai and Lanai

12

included.

13

is not, we'll bring it to their attention.

14

As we go along, if it's noted that there

COUNCILMEMBER KANE:

So overall -- and I was using the

15

smoking one as

16

because we just passed the law not too long ago.

17

the general -- the general picture of compliance

18

with respects to what your division has as far as

19

authority to make sure that the compliance is there,

20

where are you at?

21

do we have to catch up with all of these compliance

22

issues?

23

MR. BAL:

because we're familiar with it
So

I mean, are we way behind in --

Where are we?

I don't -- I don't believe that -- I don't know

24

how much work or -- how much work went into that

25

article or where that article came from, but my
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1

people are on the road every day and going

2

throughout these businesses, and we do have a

3

checklist going down.

4

word from my Division saying they're having a

5

problem with compliance.

6

comes from or where they get their resources from,

7

don't know.

8
9

COUNCILMEMBER KANE:

And I have not received any

So where that article

Uh-huh, uh-huh.

Yeah, and again, the

question -- I'm not talking about the smoking one

10

now.

11

issue.

12

Department -- your Division in dealing with all the

13

compliance issues that you're responsible for as a

14

Division, where do you stand?

15

behind, the shortage of manpower, and therefore

16

there's components in our community that are

17

slipping through the cracks as far as compliance is

18

concerned because you folks don't have the manpower

19

to get out there and make sure that we're having

20

compliance?

21

general one, Captain.

22

I

MR. BAL:

That was just one example to highlight an
I'm talking about the overall, your

I mean, are you folks

That's my question.

It's, again, a

I would say that we could use some help in our

23

division to move this thing along.

24

of work, and our people are out there doing what

25

they can with what we have.

It takes a lot

And so I won't -- you
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1

know, I won't deny that we can't do all that's

2

required every business within a year time.

3

can't happen.

4

COUNCILMEMBER KANE:

It just

No, and I appreciate your comments,

5

and in my mind as long as -- as you are

6

communicating with the Chief, and in turn I hope the

7

Chief is communicating with the Mayor, and in turn I

8

hope the Mayor is communicating with us so we know

9

how to deal with these issues, the big issues.

10

in this case, you know, we're writing laws for

11

compliance because we're getting -- it's generated

12

from the community about issues, and I think the

13

major issue is lack of compliance, lack of

14

enforcement, lack of -- you know, so all of these

15

issues are coming forward.

And

And in the end, because we're the ones who

16
17

put the laws out there, we've got to answer to them.

18

So that's why I bring this issue out.

19

makes it difficult for us -- and quite frankly,

20

sometimes we get criticized by our own that we're

21

writing meaning -- meaningless legislation, which I

22

quite frankly don't agree it's meaningless.

23

matter of how it's applied and recognizing the

24

benefit of it versus the negative of it.

25

MR. BAL:

Because it

It's a

Councilman Kane, I don't -- like I said, I'm not
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1

familiar with any of the complaints or where that

2

resource is from, but the fact is that my people are

3

out there every day, and that would come to me if we

4

were not gaining compliance.

5

me immediately, and we would -- I would personally

6

have taken care of that.

7

know where it's coming from.

8

personal attack on my people that work very hard out

9

there.

10

COUNCILMEMBER KANE:

Uh-huh.

It would have come to

Now, like I said, I don't
I take that as a

And my point is not to

11

criticize your Department.

12

this was an issue that was put into the media regard

13

the smoking ban issue, and I wanted to bring it to

14

your attention because it comes back to us as

15

legislators who passed a particular law and it's

16

being criticized.

17

that signage is not being complied with because

18

there's restaurant operators out there who are not

19

complying with the signage portion, which is covered

20

by you folks as far as making sure that they comply.

21

So I wanted to bring it to your attention, because

22

that's something that's been brought forward.

23

MR. BAL:

I'm pointing out that

And so it comes down to a mention

I would love to have that comment sent down and

24

address sent down to my bureau.

25

care of immediately.

It would be taken
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COUNCILMEMBER KANE:

Great.

Thank you.

Maybe you can

talk to Member Johnson.

3

MR. BAL:

Thank you.

4

COUNCILMEMBER KANE:

She has that information.

Thank you, Mr. Chair.

5

6

CHAIR HOKAMA:

Ms. Johnson.

7

COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON:

In that regard, I was under the

8

impression that the enforcement part of it, in terms

9

of any fines or anything when somebody is caught

10

smoking in a restaurant or whatever, that's not you.

11

That's the Police Department?

12

MR. BAL:

The way I think this was put together was that

13

the management would take the initial

14

responsibility.

15

then they would call in the police.

16

If they couldn't gain compliance,

COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Yeah, and that -- you know, the

17

comments that are being made are really not

18

directed, I don't believe, at you, at least from

19

what my understanding was.

20

was getting in my office were about restaurant

21

owners that simply don't care.

22

are members of the public come forward, what they

23

will essentially do is the owner says, well, I don't

24

care whether you smoke or not, and some patrons have

25

called the Police Department, and of course they're

The complaints that I

And when people who
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1

short staffed so they don't come down to enforce.

2

So that's the comments, but I don't think it was

3

directed -- at least the comments that we were

4

getting were not directed so much at the signage as

5

at how do you enforce when the owner of a business

6

simply says it's the cost of doing business to pay

7

whatever little, you know, amount there might be for

8

a fine, so ...

9

MR. BAL:

I -- I'd like to point out that we do take on

10

complaints and we do do investigations, and my

11

policy has been let's gain compliance.

12

care about the fines, but if we can't gain

13

compliance one way, then there must be another way

14

that we can show him that, you know, this is -- this

15

would be in the spirit of the community in following

16

this law.

17

talk to him.

18

bureau has come a long way in the last few years in

19

handling the public, and it's very difficult dealing

20

with all of the complaints, but it's starting to

21

show that, you know, our inspectors out there are

22

really dealing with the public very well and we

23

are -- we are gaining compliance along the way.

24
25

And we'd go out.

We'd look at it.

We'd be glad to do that.

COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON:

We'd

I think my

Well, I'd be happy to pass along

that information, then.
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MR. BAL:

2

COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: If Mr. Kane's through, then I would

3
4

By all means.

We'd be happy to check it out.

just like to ask another question.
COUNCILMEMBER KANE:

Mr. Chair, just for clarification,

5

the issue that I bring forward is strictly the

6

compliance of the signage which your Division is

7

responsible for, that the restaurant owners have to

8

put up on their store front or their restaurant

9

front.

It has nothing to do with the enforcement of

10

actual smoking or, you know, the police part.

11

That's a separate issue.

12

the signage that you folks seek to make sure that

13

there's compliance, and that's the only issue I

14

bring forward.

15

CHAIR HOKAMA:

16

COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON:

I'm talking about strictly

Thank you.

Thank you.

Ms. Johnson.

Yeah, and that -- and I'm glad you

17

clarified that, because I was under the impression

18

that it was, you know, enforcement as far as the

19

actual smoking in the restaurants, which was what

20

was referred to in the article.

21

The -- the other thing that I would like to

22

find out, I know the Fire Wise program is in

23

operation.

24

to help in terms of educating the public about

25

trying to clean brush from the area, trying to keep

I know that Denise has tried really hard
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1

your house free, particularly if you live in a rural

2

area.

3

guess an asset for your Department to have other

4

community organizations or groups such as the Fire

5

Wise come forward and also try to be advocates for

6

the things that you're trying to do?

7

MR. BAL:

So is that something that also can be an -- I

Part of this Fire Wise program includes a

8

forestry or DLNR grant, which I am working on right

9

now.

It's for public education, and it has

10

something to do with Fire Wise and some different

11

projects along the way that will help this

12

community, especially with -- in brush abatement.

13

And I would love to see some help in that area.

14

We're hoping -- our grants that went out, USDA, RC&D

15

has been helping us with this grant.

16

have to scale it back, because the resources all

17

just seem to have dried up along the way.

18

what the -- you know, what we have and give it

19

another shot in the next month or so and hope that

20

we'll be able to get these matching funds in here to

21

help us with a worthwhile program.

22

COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON:

It's -- we may

We'll see

And I really -- I really

23

appreciate what you've tried to do, because

24

unfortunately what ends up happening is many of

25

these programs are really good and they're really
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1

worthy and they all sayan ounce of prevention is

2

worth a pound of cure.

3

into our summer season.

4

fuel that's built up.

5

particularly for West Maui, because we have so many

6

homes that were not there before, and so your

7

challenge -- and of course in fire prevention it's

8

always important to stave off any kind of threat to

9

those kinds of properties.

And as we know, we're coming
And there's been tremendous
So I'm really concerned, and

So I know that

10

particularly West Maui I'm really concerned about,

11

so anything we can do to help spread that word, too,

12

would be great.

13

MR. BAL:

Well, we have actually stepped up the -- the

14

Brush Abatement program a whole month, and as of

15

Sunday we've had printings in the paper reminding

16

people that you need to cut your lots down.

17

realize what's out there.

18

they don't have plantation anymore.

19

the cattle grazing in there.

20

overgrown.

21

good time this year, and we're trying to get a hold

22

of the company and say, hey, how about at least

23

cutting the fire breaks around the city, because the

24

fuel load there is huge.

25

to expect that we -- we are going to be out there, a

And we

Lanai, they don't have -They don't have

The roads are all

We're -- yes, Lanai is going to have a

Maui, the people have come
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1

little handful of guys out there just punching away

2

every year going out and dealing with the hundreds

3

and hundreds of notices that we deal with.

4

I said, we can see what's coming, so I needed to

5

start this thing a little bit earlier.

6

agreed.

7

taken care of beforehand.

8
9

And like

The Chief

Let's get going and get these problem areas

COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: I really appreciate that, and how
do you deal now -- let's say with the -- as you

10

said, the abandoned cane lands or former

11

agricultural lands where there's this huge expanse

12

and then, you know, the homes are coming up just

13

abutting those areas, is it the homeowners

14

association now, is it their requirement, or is it

15

the landowner that's supposed to be doing these

16

programs so that they're not threatening the homes

17

that are coming up?

18

MR. BAL:

The large landowner is going to have to deal

19

with the situation.

20

a subdivision, then you are required to keep that

21

fuel break and maintain it throughout the year.

22

Because if your -- if your brush on that land can

23

attack these homes, then you're going to be directly

24

responsible for it.

25

Because any time you abut like

So we do cite the owners and ask them to, you

RALPH ROSENBERG COURT REPORTERS, INC.
(808)

524-2090

138

BF 4/7/03

1

know, come forward and clean this land up.

And

2

welve been getting compliance in Maui Meadows.

3

That's been a tough one all these years from day

4

one, but now they seem to have taken hold and kept

5

that one down quite a ways, but these other -- those

6

large landowners may be reluctant to keep the

7

thousands of acres cut back, you know, when we run

8

into that season.
So this is going to be a first for us this

9

So weill find out.

Welve had Kamehameha

10

year.

11

Schools come forward, because they have land there

12

in Lahaina, and they've come -- they came up with a

13

plan.

14

the plan.

15

Can we improve on it?

They contacted me, came out there, laid down
This is what we do.

16

COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON:

17

MR. BAL:

Is this a good plan?

That's great.

How can you -- and I was very impressed with a

18

responsible landowner like that to come forward and

19

deal with it.

20

before it became a problem.

21

And we had -- and that was even

COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON:

Well, 11m really grateful to know

22

that there are people that are taking

23

responsibility, because I know that not all

24

landowners are taking that responsibility, and I

25

even think of our own State at Villages of Leialii,
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1

which was getting pretty high there for a while, and

2

some of the homeowners were calling us about what

3

could they do because the brush was getting so high,

4

and of course there were other rodent problems, too,

5

associated with that, but I really appreciate, you

6

know, your taking this on.

7

responsibilities seem to get greater and the

8

resources seem to either stay level or go, you know,

9

at least reduced from that perspective.

10

So I thank

you for doing whatever you can.

11

MR. BAL:

12

COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON:

13

CHAIR HOKAMA:

14

COUNCILMEMBER MATEO:

15

CHAIR HOKAMA:

16

COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA:

17

And I know the

Thank you.
Appreciate it.

Mr. Mateo?
No.

Mr. Molina?
Yeah, thank you, Chairman.

Good afternoon, Captain Bal.

Just following

18

up on the issue of the banning of smoking in

19

restaurants.

20

Activities with regards to public -- I guess

21

educational presentations to organizations, senior

22

citizens, and to the kids in grades K through 5, has

23

the Department now considered to maybe remind people

24

about this law?

25

effect I think just under 100 days now, and

Looking at your Program Goals and

Because the law has now been in
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1

sometimes it takes members of the general public a

2

little while for it to finally sink is.

3

something -- is there -- have you looked at

4

looking at additional outlets in the media to get

5

continue to get that message across, additional

6

public service announcements to remind the public

7

about smoking in restaurants or the ban?

8
9

MR. BAL:

Is that

We would be happy to submit that to the Mayor's

Office or Council Services to be printed in the

10

papers, and as we go along and do our inspections

11

in -- like I said, in all the commercial areas, we

12

do have a check-off list and we make sure everyone

13

there that -- especially in the restaurants comply

14

with that.

15

COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA:

And just as a side note, one

16

restaurant I went to have dinner at this past Friday

17

night in Central Maui, whatever you folks are doing

18

is pretty good because as soon as -- I just see

19

people walk outside of the restaurant.

20

even think twice.

21

was signage in this restaurant.

22

folks are doing there seemed to be working really

23

well.

24

that area.

25

MR. BAL:

They don't

They light up outside.

And there

So whatever you

So I want to compliment you folks on that,
Thank you.

Thank you.
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1

CHAIR HOKAMA:

2

COUNCILMEMBER PONTANILLA:

MR. BAL:

6

COUNCILMEMBER PONTANILLA:

8
9

10

Thank you, Mr. Chair.

employees are 40-hour-a-week employees?

5

7

Mr. Pontanilla?

Captain Bal, in your Department your

3
4

Thank you.

That's correct.
Do you have any problems in

retaining staff?
MR. BAL:

We have in the past.

They're required to just

do a minimum amount of years and they can rotate
out.

It seems like we have a happy crew this year.

11

COUNCILMEMBER PONTANILLA:

12

MR. BAL:

13

COUNCILMEMBER PONTANILLA:

14

CHAIR HOKAMA:

15

COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES:

So no problems right now?

No.
Okay.

Thank you.

Ms. Tavares?
Under your Highlights on 8-25 in

16

the Program Budget, you talk about a Remote

17

Inspector Pilot Program, mentioned under D, about

18

the computer training and all of that.

19

us what is that Remote Inspector Pilot Program?

20

MR. BAL:

Can you tell

The Remote Inspector is a handheld iPaq system

21

that we were chosen to pilot because we went out and

22

did so many inspections on annual -- working with

23

MIS they helped us create different templates for

24

all the many forms that we do have for inspection,

25

and what this will do is we're able to walk out
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1

there with the iPaqs and save a lot of time and

2

paperwork just by pull down windows and fill out the

3

forms when we're doing inspections.

4

back, we just sink it into the main computer, it

5

will punch out a letter, and even go so far as

6

printing out the envelope, if we want to send these

7

comments to the different owners.

8
9

COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES:

MR . BAL:

11

COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES:

Ye s .
It's not that you got a robot

doing inspections?

13

MR. BAL:

14

COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES:

15

CHAIR HOKAMA:

16

COUNCILMEMBER KANE:

17

CHAIR HOKAMA:

18

COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: No.

19

CHAIR HOKAMA:

20

COUNCILMEMBER MATEO:

21

CHAIR HOKAMA:

22

COUNCILMEMBER PONTANILLA:

23

CHAIR HOKAMA:

24
25

It's the forms and

whatever?

10

12

Okay.

When we come

No, no, no.

Maybe that would be better.
Okay.

Thank you.

Mr. Kane?
Thank you, I'm done.

Ms. Johnson?

Mr. Mateo?
I'm done.

Mr. Molina?

Mr. Pontanilla?
Nope.

Anything else, Ms. Tavares?
Okay, Captain, you earlier mentioned to this

Committee about that Public Information Officer, and
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1

that -- I think you made a comment about that person

2

assisting in what portion of your program area now?

3

MR. BAL:

4

CHAIR HOKAMA:

5

6
7

8
9

10
11

That would be under public education.
Chief, this position was part of your

reorganization and strategic plan?
MR. FERNANDEZ:

Yes, it was.

It was part of my first

submittal.
CHAIR HOKAMA:

In your submittal, did you also include a

reorganizational structure with this position in
place?
MR. FERNANDEZ:

Yes, I did.

If you look at the handout I

12

gave you, I think it's the second to the last -- or

13

third to the last page.

14
15
16

CHAIR HOKAMA:

So that would be under Battalion Chief --

PIO Administration.
MR. FERNANDEZ:

Yes.

Page 21, Members.

The PIO Officer will be under

17

Administration but would work directly with the Fire

18

Prevention Bureau.

19

CHAIR HOKAMA:

Okay.

That consideration by the Captain

20

regarding public education and allow his program

21

area to I guess better review and complete their

22

requirements on -- you do planned reviews as well as

23

complaints about non-compliance with the code,

24

Captain?

25

MR. BAL:

That's correct.

I try not to get into the plans
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1

review as much as the SMA comments, because that

2

alone must come up three feet high in my office

3

trying to keep up with the different requirements in

4

the office.

5

CHAIR HOKAMA:

Well, 11m just trying to understand,

6

because I know Ms. Tavares brought up about the 197,

7

yeah, Building Code and your portion of the fire

8

requirements.

9

Council review and approval, so what would be a

Normally these codes go through

10

reasonable update period?

11

years we would look at updating the whole Fire Code,

12

Building Code, Fire Code portion or just -- what is

13

reasonable to stay current?

14

MR. BAL:

On like once every five

Usually the State Fire Council meets every

15

quarter and recommendations are given from the

16

Chair.

17

but each Fire Chief from each island is part of

18

that -- the State Fire Council and they try to make

19

a -- they try to have things uniform across the

20

State by meeting and agreeing to pick up the

21

different codes or accept the different amendments

22

as it -- as it comes up.

23

Now, we donlt have a State Fire Marshall,

And itls hard to pick a time, but generally

24

speaking, every four years is quite often and may

25

not serve the County best by being that often.
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1

The -- right now

2

of problems that needed to be ironed out, the

3

different agencies didn't even agree with each

4

other.

5

went on further.

6

looking back and saying, we kind of like what the

7

197 has in it and it covers a good broad spectrum of

8

the code.

9
10

CHAIR HOKAMA:

So they kind of bypassed the 2000 Code and
Most of the western states are

I just bring that up because we1re working

off the 197 Fire Code, right, Captain?

11

MR. BAL:

That's correct.

12

CHAIR HOKAMA:

So that we1re looking at what, six years

13

already, with the current -- well, you do the annual

14

updates to the 197 Code?

15

MR. BAL:

Well, right now we1re working off the 1988 Code,

16

the Uniform Fire Code, but in -- where the new

17

buildings are concerned, we design under the 197

18

Code.

19

CHAIR HOKAMA:

Okay.

20

COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES:

21

MR. BAL:

22

CHAIR HOKAMA:

Just the one coming to us now.

Yeah, I know.
I feel for you, Captain.

You know, if

23

we1re having hard time, imagine what the guys out

24

there trying to comply that's just a homeowner or

25

small business owner and not a big -- big entity.
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MR. BAL:

Especially where, you know, speed would help

2

them out.

3

know, there are needs also from even larger

4

contractors.

5
6

CHAIR HOKAMA:

MR. BAL:

8

CHAIR HOKAMA:

10

11

We try our best, but, you

Are you using the -- the County Code I

believe allows you to assess a fee.

7

9

And we try.

Yes, that's correct.
So that can help pay for your positions to

do this type of plan reviews or review and
approvals.
MR. BAL:

That's correct.

In fact, as the Chief

12

mentioned, welre trying to reallocate one of the

13

positions that we have in there and we plan to use

14

that fund to upgrade that position so we can start

15

using the

16

water plans in there that are backing up.

17
18

CHAIR HOKAMA:
Members?

start dealing with the subdivisions and

Okay.

Any other comments for the Captain,

Ms. Tavares.

19

COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES:

20

is plan checker?

21

MR. BAL:

22

COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES:

23

MR . BAL:

24

COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES:

25

Just one.

Yeah, which one of your positions
You have just one?

The lieutenant.
That's the IV, Fire Fighter IV?

Ye s .
And you want to reallocate, what,

one of the III's to a IV's also, is that the plan?
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MR. BAL:

What I have right now is the State legislature

2

had mandated an auditor for our fireworks position,

3

and that person came to us with a -- with a huge

4

background in plans review and what have you and

5

KIVA system and the works, so we'd like to take

6

that -- take advantage of that position and upgrade

7

her spot to help us out with this -- with our plans

8

review.

9
10

COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES:
CHAIR HOKAMA:

Okay.

Thank you.

Thank you.

Okay.

I think we've done the

11

Fire Prevention.

12

us this afternoon in that area.

Thank you, Captain.

Okay, Members, we have Grant Revenue that the

13
14

We thank the Captain for joining

Department goes out and applies for.
Chief, would you like to start off with the

15
16

Grant Review program.

17

your first grant is the Chevron training program.

18
19

20
21

MR. FERNANDEZ:

We can start off -- I think

Yeah, that grant we send personnel to Oahu

for the Chevron training.
CHAIR HOKAMA:

That pretty much a -- the Department

assured of receiving this year?

22

MR. FERNANDEZ:

23

CHAIR HOKAMA:

Yeah.
Okay.

I'm sorry, yes.
Any questions under Chevron

24

training, Members?

25

Mr. Mateo?

Mr. Kane?

Mr. Molina?

Ms. Johnson?

Mr. Pontanilla?
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1

COUNCILMEMBER PONTANILLA:

2

CHAIR HOKAMA:

5

Ms. Tavares?
Okay, Chief, why don't you move down to our

3

4

No.

National Fire Academy training.
MR. FERNANDEZ:

Yeah, that funds we usually send ten

6

personnel to National Fire Academy a year for

7

training.

8
9

CHAIR HOKAMA:

Okay.

Questions under this Grant Revenue

program area?

10

COUNCILMEMBER PONTANILLA:

11

CHAIR HOKAMA:

No.

Chief, are we able to expend the amount in

12

this grant?

13

more fire fighters could go to this training?

14
15
16
17
18

MR. FERNANDEZ:

Are you able to get more money so that

No.

This grant is -- I think it's set at

that amount.
CHAIR HOKAMA:

Okay.

No questions in this area?

State

DOT Highway Safety grant.
MR. CORDEIRO:

That's where we get our funding for when we

19

need to get the jaws or any back boards and such

20

that we could pick up, we got funding for that.

21
22
23

CHAIR HOKAMA:

Okay.

Any questions, DOT Highways?

Okay,

State DLNR grant.
MR. CORDEIRO:

That's also the forestry grant I talked

24

about earlier that we use for getting equipment for

25

brush fire and fire fighting in wild land areas.
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CHAIR HOKAMA:

Chief, this is for -- we have restrictions

2

on area in the County?

3

qualify for this grant?

4

like Hana, Lanai, Molokai?

5

MR. FERNANDEZ:

Would Wailuku-Kahului
Or would it be something

It's throughout the County.

It's just the

6

type of items that we can purchase with this grant

7

that's --

8

CHAIR HOKAMA:

9

MR. FERNANDEZ:

10
11
12

CHAIR HOKAMA:
program?

Restricted to.
-- restricted, yeah.
Questions on this grant revenue site
Mr. Kane?

COUNCILMEMBER KANE:

Thank you.

Is it based on, what, a

13

population density threshold in order to qualify, or

14

is it limited to just certain types of equipment?

15

MR. FERNANDEZ:

It's just limited to the certain types of

16

equipment, with -- like the question came up

17

earlier, we cannot purchase jaws with this money.

18

It's for forestry items.

19

COUNCILMEMBER KANE:

20

CHAIR HOKAMA:

21
22

Thank you, Mr. Chairman.

Okay, thank you.

program area?

Anyone else in this

Ms. Tavares.

COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES:

Yeah, just generally about

23

these -- the grants from State DOT and DLNR or any

24

State.

25

funds are going to be coming to the County?

You know, how assured are we that these

RALPH ROSENBERG COURT REPORTERS, INC.
(808) 524-2090

I mean

BF 4/7/03

1
2

150

you just put the request in and hope?
MR. FERNANDEZ:

Well, we've been getting it so far.

3

mean, I'm not assured that it will come.

4

guarantee.

5

COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES:

I

Can't

I mean, you know, the State is

6

facing some budget constraints too, and that might

7

look at these areas to start to pull back.

8

mean, I know we've been getting them every year for

9

I don't know how many years, but any indication that

10

we should be cautious about this?

11

MR. FERNANDEZ:

12

COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES:

13
14
15
16

None to my knowledge at this time.

crossed, then.
CHAIR HOKAMA:

Okay.

Okay, we'll keep our fingers
Thank you.
Next one is the Local Emergency

Planning grant, Chief.
MR. FERNANDEZ:

Yeah, that grant is only for hazardous --

17

for HazMat.

18

HazMat equipment with that.

19

So, I

CHAIR HOKAMA:

We can only purchase HazMat items and

Okay.

Questions in this area, Members?

20

Okay.

21

private donations that the Department gets every now

22

and then by private donations.

23

pretty much -- anything else you guys would like to

24

bring up in the Department?

25

And then of course the last item is the

COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES:

Okay.

I think

We're going to go to equipment?
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CHAIR HOKAMA:

Yeah, I just wanted to finish up anything

2

we got in Operations or anything else, and then

3

weill take the Department

4

Ms. Johnson?

5

COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON:

IS

equipment request.

Just in the general area of the

6

grants, and I donlt know if you were here earlier

7

when we were talking about some of the grant monies

8

that have been coming down in regard to that

9

homeland security, and I know this is -- sometimes

10

it comes to the State first.

11

our share of it, but 11m kind of looking

12

particularly at the last one, which was the

13

emergency for the HazMat training.

14

2002 it was 7,800, then it went up in 2003 to

15

20,000.

16

homeland security issues that this may be greater

17

this year to enable us to do a little bit more

18

planning or not?

19

MR. FERNANDEZ:

We mayor may not get

I see that in

Do you anticipate that with a lot of the

Your question is do I anticipate that

20

amount being greater?

21

that question.

22

COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON:

23

CHAIR HOKAMA:

Okay.

Okay.

I can honestly not answer

Thank you.

Any other questions for the Chief

24

regarding operations?

25

Chief, and you decide how you want to respond to

I had just one question,
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this one.

2

as single individual members and -- and I just want

3

to hear what you have on this first responders

4

concern that I have.

5

our water safety officers that also respond to

6

emergency as well as your fire fighters.

7

time you see any operational problems in call outs

8

or emergencies?

9

MR. FERNANDEZ:

Before -- we've had comments some of us

And at the ocean area we have

At this

The lifeguards came on line with our radio

10

communication system.

11

this time we're working real well with them.

12

seems to be working out.

13

details to work out, but we're not having any

14

problems right now at the present time.

15

CHAIR HOKAMA:

Okay.

We're working on SOPs.

At
It

We still have little more

Now, I'm sure as far as surface

16

rescue by the park or by -- in the water, that is

17

basically agreed upon that would be the water safety

18

officers?

19

MR. FERNANDEZ:

What happens is when we get dispatched,

20

central will dispatch both the water safety officer

21

and the fire department, and if the water safety

22

officer get there first with the jet ski, they'll

23

dot rescue, we'll assist, or vice versa.

24

further out than their capabilities, we'll go with

25

our helicopter or our boat to do the rescue.
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depends where the rescue is.
CHAIR HOKAMA:

Okay, because your Department has scuba

gear, scuba equipment as part of your safety --

4

MR. FERNANDEZ:

5

CHAIR HOKAMA:

That's correct.
So if it's subsurface, then it comes more

6

just your Department and water safety is not

7

involved?

8

MR. FERNANDEZ:

9

CHAIR HOKAMA:

That is correct.
Okay.

Is there a line from the shore that

10

the Coast Guard is -- or is Coast Guard always going

11

to be the primary if they appear at the scene?

12

MR. CORDEIRO:

As far as Coast Guard is concerned, they

13

have an area of responsibility mostly on the south

14

shore.

15

the -- Kapalua to Makena.

16

points and how to make a reference, but that's the

17

biggest area that they take care of mostly in that

18

quiet water.

19

Wailuku -- I mean, I'm sorry, out of the Big Island

20

or from Oahu with their cutter or they will fly the

21

helicopters in.

22

might come and assist us on this side, but it's

23

basically on the north shore it's all ours, and

24

depending on type of conditions will be ours, but

25

when Coast Guard comes on board, if it's something

Actually, it is on the south shore, from
I can give you the exact

They will assist part of Kahului -- of

Depending on the incident, they
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1

that they have to deal with, they'll take command of

2

it.

3

do a rescue.

4

If not, we work together in concert to try and

CHAIR HOKAMA:

How long has this geographical line been in

5

place more or less, Chief?

6

folks decided Coast Guard takes south and you folks

7

take north.

8
9

MR. CORDEIRO:

I didn't know that you

Oh, at least, to my knowledge, when we came

on rescue, we found out about this, so that's, you

10

know, 15 years ago that they had this, but we've

11

worked together.

12

get change of commands, some people won't come out.

13

They said they're not trained to come into this --

14

this harbor and they won't come.

15

will.

16

CHAIR HOKAMA:

They've launched.

But then as you

Sometimes they

So we try to work together with them.
So if there's a -- let's say a fuel or oil

17

spill in Kahului Harbor, I'm sure they call you

18

folks as part of the HazMat response.

19

will show up?

20

MR. CORDEIRO:

Coast Guard

Won't show up?

Yeah, any fuel spill in the ocean Coast

21

Guard is responsible.

We do the shoreline with the

22

state DLNR and ocean -- or any water source actually

23

is supposed to be Coast Guard or water ways, Coast

24

Guard will come in.

25

base -- Maalaea base is where their AOR is, or air

If they can't come with Maalaea
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1

of responsibility -- they will call in whoever needs

2

to come in, a cutter or whoever they need to bring

3

in.

4

assist with them.

5

Or they'll send somebody by land and we'll

CHAIR HOKAMA:

Thank you.

I didn't know that.

Thank you

6

for informing us.

7

or Program before we get into the Equipment?

8

Mr. Kane?

9
10

COUNCILMEMBER KANE:

Okay, anything else, Operations

So generally speaking -- thank you,

Mr. Chair.
Chief, generally speaking, then, the budget

11
12

that we have before us, the proposed budget, doesn't

13

have

14

Does it have anything of significance that reflects

15

the strategic planning and the reorganization of the

16

Department?

17

or -- and if it does, please point it out.

MR. FERNANDEZ:

As far as the final budget that I

18

submitted, it does not have, but it was included in

19

my original.

20
21

COUNCILMEMBER KANE:

Thank you.

Thank you very

much.

22
23

Okay.

Thank you, Mr. Chair.
CHAIR HOKAMA:

Okay, thank you.

You guys want a short

24

break or you guys

25

ten-minute recess and then hit the Equipment

okay.

We will take a
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request.

2

RECESS:

3

RECONVENE:

4

CHAIR HOKAMA:

(Gavel) .

2:57 p.m.
3:15 p.m.

(Gavel).

We shall bring this Committee

5

meeting back to order, Members.

We are now at the

6

request of Equipment from the Department, and then

7

the members can -- so, again, Chief, I know you had

8

already mentioned earlier an apparatus for Kahului.

9

Can you give us a little bit more details, please,

10

Chief?

11

$275,000 equipment.

12

Program Budget under Countywide Equipment under

13

$375,000 also.

14
15
16

Okay, page 4 in his handout, that's the
It's also in the back of your

Chief, what kind of equipment are you looking
at replacing?
MR. FERNANDEZ:

We're looking at to replace the pumper at

17

Kahului Fire Station.

18

long-range plan for vehicle replacement, our request

19

is before you to replace the existing 1989 apparatus

20

at the Kahului Fire Station.

21

vehicle is due to the amount of calls they respond

22

to as a back up and for calls in their area.

23

things that the NFPA required that this piece of

24

equipment don't have is for enclosed cabs and

25

warning device, says no warning devices on the roof.

In forming the Department's

Heavy usage to this
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1

This equipment does not have an enclosed cab and

2

does have warning devices on the roof.

3

constantly in the shop for repairs.

4

down at any time, and at the present time there's

5

only one reliable backup truck, which is also in the

6

shop at the present time.

7

have no reliable backup trucks in the County of

8

Maui.

9

CHAIR HOKAMA:
request?

11

apparatus?

12

COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES:

It can break

So at the present time we

Okay, thank you.

10

It's

Questions on this

Ms. Tavares, any questions regarding this

Yeah.

If there is no roof mounted

13

audible warning device, where are the warning

14

devices in this?

15

MR. FERNANDEZ:

The NFPA had called for the warning

16

devices to go under the chassis, under the -- in the

17

front bumpers.

18

COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES:

19

flashing lights?

20

MR. FERNANDEZ:

And what does that consist of,

That's the horn, the siren, et cetera,

21

audible alarms.

22

has air horns on the roof.

23

COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES:

At the present time this equipment

On the roof, okay.

And then what

24

is the life -- a life utilization for a new pumper

25

truck?
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MR. FERNANDEZ:

It's usually ten years, but it depends on

2

the amount of usage NFPA recommend any equipment

3

with heavy usage be considered for replacement prior

4

to ten years, and this equipment does have a lot of

5

usage.

6
7

8
9

COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES:
County?
MR. FERNANDEZ:

It goes allover the County, Upcountry,

Paia, Kihei.

10

COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES:

11

CHAIR HOKAMA:

12

COUNCILMEMBER KANE:

13

15

COUNCILMEMBER MATEO:

16

CHAIR HOKAMA:

17

COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA:

20

Not on this specific piece of

equipment.
CHAIR HOKAMA:

19

Thank you.

Okay, Mr. Kane?

14

18

So this one is used allover the

Mr. Mateo?
No.

Mr. Molina.
Yeah, thank you, Chairman.

Chief, this equipment is made where on the
mainland?
MR. FERNANDEZ:

What company?
Well, all our equipment goes out to bid,

21

and whoever gets the bid and meets our requirements

22

is where it comes from.

23

where it's from.

24
25

COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA:

I cannot say specifically

It comes with a maintenance plan

and everything from the company that you guys get it
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from?

2

MR. FERNANDEZ:

3

COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA:

4

MR. FERNANDEZ:

5

COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA:

6

7

It comes with the standard warranty.
Warranty, uh-huh.

Et ceteras, yeah.
And the average life expectancy

is -- well, eight, minimum, what, five to ten years?
MR. FERNANDEZ:

Well, it's -- ten years is just a

8

recommendation per NFPA.

9

years.

Replace vehicles ten

It's not a standard.

It's a recommendation.

10

But like I said, this -- with heavy usage, they

11

recommend you look at replacing it sooner.

12

COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA:

Okay.

13

CHAIR HOKAMA:

14

COUNCILMEMBER PONTANILLA:

15

CHAIR HOKAMA:

16

COUNCILMEMBER KANE:

17

CHAIR HOKAMA:

18

COUNCILMEMBER KANE:

Thank you.

Mr. Pontanilla?

Okay.

No.

Next
Chairman.

Yes, Mr. Kane.
Mr. Chair, kind of in line with

19

what -- what was brought to our attention in

20

Molokai.

21

apparatus, the new one that you folks are requesting

22

will also be used for -- to back up units in the

23

various areas, Central, Kihei, Paia, Upcountry.

24

Because you mentioned Paia, Upcountry and because

25

those are more rural and agricultural areas and

Because this particular piece of
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1

because a lot of the roadway systems up there are

2

substandard or sub -- or below code and you go onto

3

private areas, does that impact how you folks build

4

this vehicle or how you folks spec this vehicle out?

5

I mean, you don't want to build a vehicle and then

6

it's unable to respond to an area because it's too

7

big, as an example, or too -- you know, it --

8
9

MR. FERNANDEZ:

Well, this particular vehicle would be

specked almost as the same vehicle now, you know,
It's -- you know, we

10

with a thousand gallon tank.

11

need the water supply.

12

or anyplace you have a couple engines, you have

13

extra water, because it's a thousand gallon tank, so

14

this particular vehicle would be specked per what we

15

have now.

16

COUNCILMEMBER KANE:

When we assist, say, to Paia

And I'm sorry, Mr. Chair, I was kind

17

of reaching on that one, but I think the question

18

will be more relevant once we get to other

19

equipment.

Thank you.

20

CHAIR HOKAMA:

Anything else on this -- yes, Ms. Tavares.

21

COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES:

Yes.

How do you calculate or

22

determine when something should be replaced?

23

pumper truck, do you have like how many hours it's

24

been pumping, how many miles it's traveled, or are

25

you going only by the maintenance records?
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1

what -- what leads you to recommend replacement of a

2

vehicle such as this or equipment such as this?

3

MR. FERNANDEZ:

Our main reasoning would be the amount of

4

usage, which this vehicle does have quite a bit of

5

usage.

6

COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES:

7

MR. FERNANDEZ:

8
9

How do you measure that usage?

By the number of calls, the mileage, the

repairs, et cetera, the breakdowns.
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES:

You have all this documented in

10

some system and that gives you a clue when you

11

should be looking at replacement?

12

MR. FERNANDEZ:

13

COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES:

14

CHAIR HOKAMA:

15

Okay.

Okay, thank you.

Anyone else regarding

this Equipment request, 375,000?

16
17

Yes.

Chief, does it always take about eight to 12
months to get a piece of equipment?

18

MR. FERNANDEZ:

19

CHAIR HOKAMA:

Yes, it does.

It's custom built.

So every piece of our equipment, there's no

20

like two pieces of equipment that is similar in case

21

you guys want to do savings on repair parts or

22

anything of that nature?

23

MR. FERNANDEZ:

Most of our apparatuses are

and

24

some of the parts are interchangeable, some are not.

25

That's what you1re asking me?
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CHAIR HOKAMA:

Right, yeah.

I mean, if every piece of

2

equipment is different, of course your maintenance

3

is going to be a little bit higher, yeah, because

4

every equipment has specialized parts and what not.

5

So, you know, like if the water tanker for Wailea is

6

going to be -- is the same type of water tanker that

7

Kahului would use, you know, those kind of things,

8

or do we need to have different tankers for every

9

station?

10

MR. FERNANDEZ:

11
12

No, Wailea and Kahului is the same.

It's

similar to what we have now that's going to Lanai.
CHAIR HOKAMA:

Okay.

I just wanted us to have an

13

understanding, yeah, how the Department requests

14

equipment, since each one is basically built after

15

ordered?

16

MR. FERNANDEZ:

It's built to meet the specs for the

17

particular area, like on -- when we did the engine

18

for Upcountry, Engine 5 Makawao, we had to spec it

19

to fit in the apparatus floor.

20

big apparatus because the station is bigger.

21

CHAIR HOKAMA:

And Wailea, we had a

Next equipment, let's go to the next

22

equipment.

23

the only one we had an equipment bond, didn't we

24

Staff?

25

Let's see.

What is -- I guess that's

That's your understanding, 5,OOO?
Okay, under Administration, Chief, you did
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1

mention a $20,000 vehicle.

2

vehicle, right?

3

MR. FERNANDEZ:

4

CHAIR HOKAMA:

5

6

That's to replace a 1988

That's correct.
This does not include what you have for

your vehicle, right, Chief?
MR. FERNANDEZ:

No.

With the positions Council gave us

7

last year

we got four new positions.

At the

8

present time we have that 1988 vehicle, a utility

9

truck, and a van that's on loan from the State.

We

10

have a new pickup truck coming that should be

11

arriving soon, and this vehicle -- both the pickup

12

truck and this vehicle, if we get it, will be the

13

two vehicles that will be shared among eight people

14

that work in our administration.

15

vehicles for myself, the Deputy Chief, the Battalion

16

Chief, the Training Captain and the HazMat Captain.

17

This vehicle will be, like I said, for the other

18

eight people to share for daily chores.

19

CHAIR HOKAMA:

Okay.

We have our own

Yeah, we did -- because we did

20

expend the training program last year with the

21

expansion, four positions.

22

Administration's vehicle?

23

machine.

24

have, Chief, regarding this type of specialized

25

welding?

Okay.

Any questions on

Okay, your welding

How much outside work do you -- do you

All the equipment go to outside vendors at
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this time?

2

MR. FERNANDEZ:

3

it does.

4

trucks that needs repairs, and to send the equipment

5

out it ties it up for maybe a week or two.

6

our mechanics, weill be able to work on it, you

7

know, a day at a time and it wonlt put the truck

8

completely out of service.

9

aluminum welder will help our mechanics to get

10
11

If it -- if it's for that type of welding,
At the present time I think we have two

This way

This aluminum --

trucks back on line quicker.
CHAIR HOKAMA:

Okay.

Is it portable enough that in case

12

Kaunakakai Station needs this type of specialized

13

work you would send the welder and the equipment

14

instead of having the truck sent back to Maui?

15

MR. FERNANDEZ:

When we spec it we will look at what kind

16

of specs it will -- how it's going to work on

17

Molokai, if it's possible, or Lanai, but that will

18

be with the specs when we do spec it.

19

CHAIR HOKAMA:

Okay.

20

welder?

Okay.

21

COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON:

22

CHAIR HOKAMA:

23

COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON:

Any questions on Administration's

Mr. Chair.

Yes, malam.
On the actual welding equipment

24

my dad used to do a lot of welding, so I know

25

sometimes you have to be really skilled on certain
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1

types of materials that you're welding with.

2

the aluminum welder require any kind of specialized

3

training that would also go along with this?

4
5

MR. FERNANDEZ:

No.

Does

One of our mechanics is real -- real

capable of doing that type of welding.

6

COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON:

7

CHAIR HOKAMA:

Okay.

Okay.

Thank you.

Next piece of equipment.

Okay,

8

Chief, we did -- we did buy a live burn trailer for

9

you.

10

We just don't have the towing equipment.

MR. FERNANDEZ:

That's right.

The trailer, like I said,

11

bid will be awarded on the 9th of this month, and I

12

think it's 90 days after that bid been awarded it

13

should be ready for inspection and shipped to Maui.

14

We need -- most of that money is to ship it to

15

Molokai and Lanai and back so our personnel over

16

there can utilize it.

17

CHAIR HOKAMA:

Okay.

Okay.

Members, questions on this

18

equipment?

19

big one, Kahului.

20

jaws of life, Members?

21

District.

22

you -- how often do your men do scuba exercises or

23

scuba rescues?

24
25

MR. FERNANDEZ:

Okay, thank you, Chief.

We've got the

Let's see, any questions on the
The Chief has it for Lanai

Okay, scuba tanks.

Chief, how often

Can I have one of our rescue personnel

come down and speak on that?
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1

CHAIR HOKAMA:

2

MR. FERNANDEZ:

3

4
5

Yeah.
Captain Mark Paranada will brief you on

that subject.
CHAIR HOKAMA:

Okay, thank you for being here, Captain.

Can you just inform the Committee?

6

MR. PARANADA:

And your question again?

7

CHAIR HOKAMA:

How often do you do your scuba exercises

8

and what would you say would be the frequency of

9

rescue requests?

10

MR. PARANADA:

In terms of rescue, they're pretty

11

infrequent.

12

dive at least once a month, and that's actually a

13

full tank, and a tank usually lasts anywhere from 30

14

minutes to an hour.

15

CHAIR HOKAMA:

However, we try and get an open water

Okay.

You -- it's stated that we are

16

replacing 15-year-old tanks.

17

period for life of scuba tanks?

18

MR. PARANADA:

What's a good safety

Well, it depends on the make of the tank.

19

If it's a steel tank, I believe it's five years, and

20

if it's a carbon fiber tank, I believe -- or

21

aluminum tank it's three years.

22

already been hydro tested and it's beyond its life

23

expectancy.

And these have

24

CHAIR HOKAMA:

So are we in OSHA violations already?

25

MR. PARANADA:

Not at this time.

We do have one of our
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1

one of our instructors is a master diver, and he

2

checks our equipment regularly, and that's why the

3

recommendation came up to replace these tanks.

4

CHAIR HOKAMA:

Okay.

We have the Captain.

Questions

5

regarding either the scuba program or the equipment

6

that they use?

7
8
9

10

COUNCILMEMBER KANE:

MR. PARANADA:

Oh, we never go beyond

Open dives, how --

the rescue diver

never goes beyond 130 feet.
COUNCILMEMBER KANE:

12

CHAIR HOKAMA:

14

Just curiosity.

what kind depth you guys work at?

11

13

Mr. Kane.

Thank you.

Okay.

Any questions for Ms. Johnson for

the Captain?
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON:

I just -- you know, it's not

15

really a question.

I just really express concern

16

about this absolutely being funded, because my

17

husband also used to go diving and there's nothing

18

that you want to mess with when you're looking at

19

dive tanks.

20

there's some way -- I don't know if we have the

21

money in this year's budget, but, I mean, this is a

22

safety issue where they're going down.

23

concerned about that, so I would really not want to

24

have anyone, and particularly these guys that are --

25

when their not in an actual rescue situation, where

So I would recommend that even if
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1

they're just honing their skills, I wouldn't want to

2

have anyone be placed at risk.

3

very important thing.

4

CHAIR HOKAMA:

Thank you.

5

COUNCILMEMBER PONTANILLA:

6

CHAIR HOKAMA:

7

COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES:

So that to me is a

Mr. Molina?

Mr. Pontanilla?

No.

Ms. Tavares?
Yeah.

Have you folks ever looked

8

into not providing this service through the Fire

9

Department but contracting out to professional

10

11

divers when their services are needed?
MR. FERNANDEZ:

No.

We are emergency responders, and I'm

12

pretty sure that's part of our duties.

13

professional divers, it might take a while to get

14

them on scene.

15

on scene as -- faster than anyone else.

16

COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES:

We're there.

To

We can respond and be

Well, how many times have we been

17

asked to mobilize this particular part of rescue in

18

the last year?

19

MR. FERNANDEZ:

I don't have that information, but I could

20

get it to you.

21

COUNCILMEMBER PONTANILLA:

22

five years.

23

MR. CORDEIRO:

24

COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES:

25

Maybe we could look at the last

It varies.
I mean, it's almost the same thing

for the helicopter.

You know, how many times we use
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1

the helicopter?

We have its services.

It's on a

2

contract basis, rather than we buying and training a

3

pilot that's part of the Fire Department, you know,

4

so maybe response time is a consideration, but we

5

have to look at what is it costing us to run this

6

whole section or run this section or -- it's not a

7

whole section, but this component of rescue.

8

it be better for us to look at another way to

9

provide this service without having to have all the

Would

10

equipment at the Fire Department and the periodic,

11

you know, monthly, right, training for -- you know,

12

which I'm glad you have monthly training, but maybe

13

this is something we can look at that we maybe

14

shouldn't be providing directly.

15

MR. FERNANDEZ:

I think as far as the helicopter, we

16

needed their -- there's -- it's a dedicated

17

helicopter for the Fire Department for lifeline.

18

That's to pick up people.

19

we don't have it at the station, is getting a

20

helicopter when we need it.

21

COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES:

Yeah.

Our biggest problem is if

No, I'm not questioning the

22

helicopter itself.

23

thing.

24

contract services for rescue in the Department

25

already.

I think that's the -- a great

What I'm just saying is that we do have

It's not -- nothing -- it isn't anything
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1

new.

You know, the pilot is not a member of the

2

County of Maui1s work force, right?

3

MR. FERNANDEZ:

Uh-huh.

4

COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES:

Okay, we contract for that

5

service.

6

at contracting this other type of service too?

7

not a new proposal for the Department.

8
9

MR. CORDEIRO:

Just saying are we looking -- can we look
It1s

Chairperson, the diving is not only just

looking for missing, let1s say, scuba divers.

We do

10

freshwater or mountain stream diving, because dirty

11

conditions.

12

shallow pools to search for missing people.

13

for opihi pickers.

14

130-foot dives.

15

but we use this in conjunction with our helicopter

16

and boats and jet skis that we have from lifeguards,

17

and we1ve done a few.

18

for you and give you the rescues that we have done,

19

but it is an essential part of rescue.

20

reason why the training is, because it is a very

21

dangerous operation.

22

necessity that we need to follow.

We have to send divers under even in

23

COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES:

24

CHAIR HOKAMA:

25

We do

Not necessarily doing the

That1s the maximum they should go,

I mean, we can get the stats

And the

And at this point it1s a

Thank you.

Okay, thank you.

Anything else under Scuba

or Rescue for the Captain?

RALPH ROSENBERG COURT REPORTERS, INC.
(808) 524-2090

BF 4/7/03

171

1

If not, thank you for being here, Captain.

2

We appreciate your assistance with us this

3

afternoon.

4

MR. PARANADA:

Thank you.

5

CHAIR HOKAMA:

Okay, next is I think Mr. Pontanilla, any

6

questions on 800 megahertz radios?

7

COUNCILMEMBER PONTANILLA:

8

CHAIR HOKAMA:

9

Okay.

No.

Anyone on 800 megahertz?

Okay.

I

think the Chief had already explained Napili's

10

requests.

11

Station?

12

Okay, and then the next -- the big one of course is

13

helicopter services.

16

Okay, any questions for Molokai's request?

Chief, any other equipment requests not

14
15

Any further questions needed for Napili

covered at this time?
MR. FERNANDEZ:

There was a utility truck that I included

17

in my original budget request that I removed due to

18

the cutbacks.

19

CHAIR HOKAMA:

20

MR. FERNANDEZ:

What would that be for and what station?
That would be for Kahului Rescue 10.

If

21

you don't mind, I can call Captain Derrick Arruda

22

up.

23

and he'll give you a description of why we need this

24

vehicle.

25

He'll -- he did all the specs for this vehicle

CHAIR HOKAMA:

Okay, Captain, if you'll join us, please.
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MR. ARRUDA:

Good afternoon, Chair, Council Members.

The

2

Rescue Squad, as you know, has a lot of hats that

3

they wear, and a lot of it involves mountain

4

rescues, confined space rescues, swift water

5

rescues, diving in the ponds, and various other

6

duties.

7

remote areas of Maui County.

8

for our large fire rescue apparatus is really not

9

practical or safe.

A lot of these situations take place in
So the accessibility

So what we do is we use a

10

utility vehicle that we transport a lot of this

11

specialized equipment to the scene.

12

it's been with a '93 Suburban, as you can see, which

13

is written in the Chief's notes here.

14

And in the past

What we do is we have to decide what we're

15

going to take and what we're going to leave behind,

16

because we have an enormous amount of equipment to

17

take for, say, a mountain rescue.

18

prioritize what we need and we're getting

19

information from the call, by the time we get it all

20

onto the Suburban, there's almost no room for the

21

personnel.

22

lot of times when we get to the scene it's a

23

different situation than what was originally

24

reported.

25

know, we could have had this.

So as we

So obviously we leave things behind.

A

So, gee, we should have had that and, you
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1

So this new truck is a four-door crew cab

2

diesel one-ton pickup truck with a utility body on

3

it, a service body like you see telephone company,

4

electrical company.

5

the side and along the back and it has a roll top on

6

the back.

7

mountain rescue, swift water equipment, some

8

confined space equipment, all of that will be stored

9

on the truck ready to go.

So it's all tool boxes all down

We'll be able to store all of our

So when a call comes in,

10

the rescue squad basically jumps in the truck and

11

starts heading to that direction.

12

to think about, gee, did we grab that, did we get

13

this, did we get that, you know, all that kind of

14

stuff.

They don't have

So our response time will be greatly

15

16

increased, and of course, you know, the safety to

17

the public and the community by being able to get

18

there faster and not having to drive up Hana Road in

19

a giant apparatus, trying to do it in an emergency

20

response mode I believe will be much safer for the

21

community and for the fire fighters themselves.

22

CHAIR HOKAMA:

Okay, thank you, Captain.

This utility

23

rescue vehicle that can tow 10,000 pounds -- I guess

24

it has to be 10,000.

25

right?

That's your HazMat trailer,
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1

MR. ARRUDA:

2

CHAIR HOKAMA:

3

MR. ARRUDA:

That's correct.
Okay.
Yeah, we also pull a HazMat trailer, which is

4

approximately 24 feet long by, oh, it must stand 12

5

feet in the air.

6

rating of 10,000 pounds.

7

long after the Suburban, so, you know, in the past

8

we've had to just pull it around with our Suburban.

9

And let me tell you, as a driver for seven years on

And it has a gross vehicle weight
This trailer was purchased

10

rescue, when you go out Ukumehame, like going

11

through the Pali and it's windy, you get to the

12

scene pretty white knuckled because you're flying

13

allover the place.

14

the capability to tow a trailer that large.

15

new vehicle is rated at 12,000 pounds, or the specs

16

that we wrote for the new vehicle.

17

able to handle towing that HazMat trailer along with

18

all the equipment on board and the personnel.

19

CHAIR HOKAMA:

The truck really doesn't have
And the

So it should be

Would this vehicle need to be constructed

20

or is there something you -- we would -- has already

21

manufactured and we would order and receive,

22

Captain?

23

MR. ARRUDA:

It would be -- the cab chassis part of it is

24

pretty much standard through the industry.

25

know, it can be built by Ford, Chevrolet, Dodge,
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whatever.

2

It's just a matter of assembling the parts together,

3

putting all the emergency response equipment, all

4

the lights, sirens, that type of thing on there.

5

it's not going to take nearly as long as, say,

6

building a pumper truck or a ladder truck.

7
8
9

CHAIR HOKAMA:

The utility body is also manufactured.

Okay.

So

What would be your estimation on

vehicle life, life expectancy for this new utility?
MR. ARRUDA:

Well, this vehicle now

we've discussed

10

this quite a bit.

11

a diesel powered truck, which will give us -- you

12

know, diesel engine, nowadays they get 300,000 miles

13

out of them.

14

15, maybe even 20 years out of something like this

15

if it's properly maintained.

16

CHAIR HOKAMA:

We're decided to try and go with

As far as I know, I would think 10,

Okay.

I would assume your -- the Fire

17

Department's mechanics is capable of handling this

18

type of equipment if we -- we are able to afford and

19

fund it?

20

MR. FERNANDEZ:

21

CHAIR HOKAMA:

Yes, they will.
Okay.

22

request?

23

COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA:

24
25

Members, questions regarding this

Mr. Molina?
Thank you, Chairman.

Captain Arruda, any of our neighboring
counties have vehicles similar to the specs that
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we're requesting?

2

MR. ARRUDA:

I believe Kauai has a truck very similar,

3

yeah?

4

the Big Island.

5

much the same type, yeah.

I believe Kauai has one.

6

COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA:

7

CHAIR HOKAMA:

I'm not sure about

I'm sure Oahu must carry pretty

Thank you.

Okay.

Mr. Pontanilla, any questions on

8

this request?

9

COUNCILMEMBER PONTANILLA:

10

CHAIR HOKAMA:

11

COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES:

12

CHAI R HOKAMA:

13

COUNCILMEMBER KANE:

14

CHAIR HOKAMA:

15

COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON:

16

CHAIR HOKAMA:

No.

Ms. Tavares?
No.

Mr. Kane?
No.

Ms. Johnson?

Okay.

No.
Captain, is there any other

17

equipment that you wrote up specs for that we didn't

18

cover?

19

MR. ARRUDA:

20

CHAIR HOKAMA:

Not that I was involved with, no.
Okay.

Any further questions for the

21

Captain this afternoon?

22

for joining us and assisting us this afternoon,

23

Captain.

24

MR. ARRUDA:

25

CHAIR HOKAMA:

Okay, thank you very much

Thank you.
Okay, Chief, anything -- other equipment
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that you'd like to bring forward to the Committee?
MR. FERNANDEZ:

I did have a request to replace the engine

3

at Kihei Station.

4

from my original budget.

5
6

7

CHAIR HOKAMA:

Okay.

That's one of the items I removed

What type of equipment is that,

Chief?
MR. FERNANDEZ:

That's an apparatus similar to what we got

8

at Kahului, the same type of request for the same

9

amount.

10

CHAIR HOKAMA:

11

MR. FERNANDEZ:

12

CHAIR HOKAMA:

13
14

Another pumper, pumper apparatus?
That's correct.
On page 13 of your handout, that is 400

calls per month that the apparatus responds to?
MR. FERNANDEZ:

Yeah.

Kihei is one of -- is the busiest

15

station we have.

16

calls per month plus training and all the other

17

pre-planning that the vehicle goes out on.

18

CHAIR HOKAMA:

It's an average of 400 or more

With the new Wailea Station, what do you

19

foresee as far as the requirement of this Kihei

20

equipment?

21

MR. FERNANDEZ:

22

CHAIR HOKAMA:

The original or the new?
Well, you know, Wailea's coming on stream,

23

so, you know, you're going to have equipment at

24

Wailea also, right?

25

MR. FERNANDEZ:

Yeah.

That's why -- that's one of the --
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CHAIR HOKAMA:

Is the demand on this station and this

2

apparatus -- or the replacement of this apparatus

3

would have the same type of demands, 400 calls a

4

month?

5

MR. FERNANDEZ:

No, it won't.

It will be cut down quite a

6

bit, but with Wailea coming on line, Kihei would now

7

be one of our assist companies that should we need

8

them, would come out to assist Wailuku or Kahului

9

with the two apparatuses in Wailea.

One would cover

10

Kihei and the other one would remain in Wailea.

11

that's correct, this vehicle would not have as many

12

calls once Wailea goes on line.

13
14

15

CHAIR HOKAMA:

Okay.

request?

Thank you.

Questions regarding this

Ms. Tavares.

COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES:

Yeah, help me understand this

16

statistic here.

17

apparatus is responding to?

18

MR. FERNANDEZ:

19

COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES:

20

per month?

400 calls per month that this

That's correct.

21

MR. FERNANDEZ:

22

COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES:

23

MR. FERNANDEZ:

24

COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES:

25

So

Does that mean we have 400 fires

No, that's incidents.
Incidents.

Yeah, total incident.
Is there another kind of vehicle

that can respond when it's not a fire?
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1

should -- isn't that what you folks should be

2

looking into as far as trying to prolong the life of

3

some of this more expensive apparatus is to have

4

another vehicle that can respond to the things that

5

are other than fire calls?

6

pumper to respond to a, you know, heart attack

7

victim, usually.

8
9

MR. FERNANDEZ:
be costly.

Because you don't need a

Yeah, there's other vehicles, but it would
You need

you will need more manpower,

10

plus the equipment.

11

keep four people on that apparatus for a fire,

12

which --

13

COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES:

We still have to man the --

Yeah, if it's a fire, but if it's

14

not a fire, you would still need -- I mean, to me,

15

it's like you get a call, you make a decision -- you

16

know, if you have two pieces of equipment, you make

17

a decision about which equipment they should be on.

18

If it's not a fire, you would send them on the other

19

equipment.

You know what I mean?

20

MR. FERNANDEZ:

Yeah.

21

COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES:

That might help prolong the life

22

of some of these more expensive pieces of equipment.

23

Like, you know, $375,000 every, you know, eight

24

years perhaps or ten years is a lot of money,

25

considering all of the stations we have.
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1

those pumper trucks are designed for fire fighting

2

and they're being used for all the other calls too,

3

that helps to stress the vehicle.

4

should be looking at if there's another vehicle,

5

what are those costs for that other vehicle that

6

could respond to other than fire calls and what

7

would the comparison then be and the cost and the

8

life expectancy of the two different pieces of

9

equipment?

And maybe we

But you wouldn't need another crew.

The

10

same crew would go out just on another -- a

11

different piece of equipment.

12

something you folks can look into maybe this coming

13

year to look at these other -- another piece of

14

equipment?

15

MR. FERNANDEZ:

I mean, is that

We could look into it, but back to my

16

original point, if you take away the crew from that

17

vehicle and there is a fire, the vehicle won't be

18

available to respond to that fire.

19

COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES:

So what do you do you now?

If the

20

crew is out on this apparatus responding to a call

21

and another call comes in, what happens?

22

MR. FERNANDEZ:

We bring a vehicle from another area or if

23

that -- say Kihei, if they're going to be out for

24

quite a while, we send another engine to stand by in

25

their area to back up.
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CHAIR HOKAMA:

Okay.

Any further questions on this

2

additional request?

3

COUNCILMEMBER PONTANILLA:

4

CHAIR HOKAMA:

5

MR. FERNANDEZ:

6

COUNCILMEMBER PONTANILLA:

7

MR. FERNANDEZ:

I got one.

Mr. Pontanilla.
Back -Go ahead.

Back to Charmaine's question.

8

another strategic plan item.

9

getting smaller vehicles.

10

It's

We will look into it,

It's part of our

strategic plan.

11

COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES:

Thank you.

12

CHAIR HOKAMA:

13

COUNCILMEMBER PONTANILLA:

Okay, thank you.

Mr. Pontanilla.

Yeah, thank you, Chair.

I was

14

just going to comment in regards to a smaller

15

vehicle, you know, what Captain Arruda had alluded

16

to, maybe for the, I guess, Kihei Fire Station.

17

looking at page 51 as far as your strategic plan.

18

And in that plan it calls for information in regards

19

to the life of the vehicles.

20

vehicles that's going to be coming up meeting the

21

ten- and 20-year lifespan.

22

annual funding contribution and the current

23

requirements, you know, we're looking at a lot of

24

equipment that's -- that need to be replaced.

25

And I see a lot of

And looking at the

And on this last one, which is a 1991, I

RALPH ROSENBERG COURT REPORTERS, INC.
(808) 524-2090

I'm

BF 4/7/03

182

1

guess, truck for Kihei, it says here it's a lifespan

2

of 20 years and we're looking at maybe 12 years as

3

far as usage so far.

4

condition of the vehicle, but just looking at the

5

strat plan, you know, that vehicle need to be

6

replaced probably 2011, according to this strat

7

plan.

What it doesn't tell me is the

That's all, Chair.

8

I just wanted to make a

9

comment in regards to the replacement schedule and

10

the possibility of utilizing a smaller vehicle for

11

rescue -- well, for operations that doesn't require

12

the pumper.

13

CHAIR HOKAMA:

Okay.

Thank you, Mr. Pontanilla.

I think

14

in Hana, East Maui, I think the Department requested

15

and we supported a mini pumper because of the, you

16

know, requirements of road widths, especially the

17

bridges.

18

level that maybe fully equipped trucks are not able

19

to cross safely.

20

They have a maximum tonnage authorization

So saying that, Chief, I think one of the

21

requirements -- comments that we did have

22

through our visits to the various districts is that

23

the requests that we try and gear our equipment for

24

the specific concerns of each district, if you're

25

facing a road only six feet wide and of course, you
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1

know, the equipment shouldn't be wider than six

2

feet.

3

roadways, that will be part of your consideration in

4

designing and writing the specs for your replacement

5

equipment.

6

specifically designed for the region that the

7

equipment will be based, is what we've been hearing

8

in our regional meetings.

9

that comment with you and your Department.

10

If you have weight limitations on bridges or

MR. FERNANDEZ:

And that way I guess it would be more

So we share that -- share

Yeah, thank you.

Like I said, we do take

11

that into consideration, too, when we spec new

12

vehicles.

13
14
15

CHAIR HOKAMA:

Okay.

Is there any other equipment that

you folks want to discuss, Members?
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES:

Ms. Tavares.

Yeah, I think Mr. Kane started to

16

talk about it before and then you just mentioned it

17

now about the specking of vehicles for the use --

18

where it's going to be used.

19

Chief, do you have just one person that does the

20

specifications for all Fire Department equipment?

21

MR. FERNANDEZ:

And if I could ask the

We used our mechanics in the past.

What

22

we're going to do from now on is we're going to

23

have -- say if we need an apparatus for Kihei, we're

24

going to have the people at Kihei assist us with the

25

specs, the people that knows the area, knows what
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they need, et cetera.
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES:

Okay.

Well, that's very good.

I

3

think that's what we wanted to hear, because the

4

what we heard around the area -- districts was that

5

it was done without their input and they're the ones

6

who have to use the equipment in a particular area

7

and are going to be facing some challenges when the

8

equipment arrises from the get-go.

9

MR. FERNANDEZ:

Yeah, we will get input from those people

10

and we'll take it in consideration if it's, you

11

know, feasible, et cetera, and practical.

12

all that in consideration.

13
14
15

COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES:

We'll put

What do you do you with the old

pumpers, the ones that are replaced?
MR. FERNANDEZ:

Yeah, right -- right now we've got our

16

vehicle -- the new apparatus for Hoolehua on

17

Molokai.

The one that was there came in for major

18

repairs.

It went back to Molokai.

19

backup because the engine had -- Kaunakakai's is in

20

our shop for repairs, so it's for backup for

21

training and we use it for backup apparatus and

22

training.

23

only one reliable old pumper.

24

was from Makawao, Engine 5.

25

It's there as a

Like I said, at the present time we have

COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES:

That's the one that

So with these new ones that are
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1

being requested, I mean, are you ever in a position

2

to actually sell our old equipment to some place

3

else?

4

MR. FERNANDEZ:

5

COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES:

6

I don't

Is there a used vehicle lot for

fire equipment somewhere in the State or the nation?

7

MR. FERNANDEZ:

8

COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES:

9

I don't think so.

Not that I know of.
I mean, there might be some places

that have, you know, some needs that are not as

10

critical as ours that could use

11

looking at used equipment that was still able to

12

perform, rather than buying, you know, new

13

equipment.

14

MR. FERNANDEZ:

15

COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES:

16

equipment?

17

MR. FERNANDEZ:

that would be

There are -They have an Ebay for fire

Yeah, there are places like that that sell

18

used equipment, but what they do is they refurbish

19

first -- and that would be costly -- before they

20

sell it.

21

COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES:

22

CHAIR HOKAMA:

Thank you.

Okay, thank you, Ms. Tavares.

I think

23

we've completed Equipment, Members, with the Chief.

24

Under CIP I believe for this current fiscal year

25

they basically just have a Countywide request, which
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1

is at the very end of the program budget under

2

Countywide fire facilities.
Chief, any comments under CIP?

3

4
5
6

have a
MR. FERNANDEZ:

I think we

for this year only a $75,000 Countywide.
I can run down on what most of that money

will be for, if you want.

7

COUNCILMEMBER KANE:

8

CHAIR HOKAMA:

What page, Mr. Chair?

This is on 28-3 of the Program Budget.

9

They have Kihei Station reroofing, Wailuku retaining

10

wall, Lahaina apparatus lockers, Hoolehua reroofing,

11

Kaunakakai replace of the garage roll up doors under

12

that request.

13

COUNCILMEMBER KANE:

14

CHAIR HOKAMA:

15

COUNCILMEMBER KANE:

16

CHAIR HOKAMA:

17

COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES:

18

CHAIR HOKAMA:

28-3, Mr. Chairman?

28-3.
Oh, Program?

Of the Program, yes.

I'm sorry.

CIP?

Yeah, CIP, yeah.

We had a prior

19

appropriation of 150 that shows and we have a 75,000

20

request for those one, two, three, four, five

21

projects.

22

COUNCILMEMBER PONTANILLA:

23

CHAIR HOKAMA:

24

COUNCILMEMBER PONTANILLA:

25

Mr. Chair.

Yes.
I don't think our book -- my

book doesn't correspond with yours.
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1

CHAIR HOKAMA:

2

COUNCILMEMBER KANE:

3

CHAIR HOKAMA:

4

I'm sorry.

I'm sorry.

30-2?

I get the wrong one.

2S-3?

I'm sorry.

2S-3?

5

COUNCILMEMBER KANE:

6

CHAIR HOKAMA:

7

I'm sorry.

You like Lanai that's why, yeah?

27-3.

I'm sorry, Members.

27-3.

Okay, we

have Lahaina Fire Station renovations, 150,000 bond.
Chief, can you give us comments on this

S
9

project?

10

MR. FERNANDEZ:

Yeah.

We want to renovate the Lahaina

11

Fire Station.

One of the big reasons, we have a rat

12

problem there.

There's so many holes and areas that

13

they get in.

14

inside to prevent them from making nests in places.

15

We want to build a Captains' quarters and major

16

renovations at that station.

17
lS
19

CHAIR HOKAMA:

We went as far as removing the ceiling

Okay.

Ms. Johnson, questions regarding the

Lahaina Fire Station project?
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON:

No.

I can just vouch for the

20

rodent problem.

21

too.

22

there, because that's -- that's on the other side

23

where the Amfac property is, right, where they're

24

coming in and up above by Villages of Leialii there?

25

They were allover our youth center

So I know you're right next to the fields

MR. FERNANDEZ:

Yeah, they're coming in from the fields.
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COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON:

Okay.

Yeah.

No, I just -- I

2

really think it's -- actually, with some of the

3

bating that's been done by Department of Health,

4

there still are concerns about a resurgence also of

5

the health problem that's been caused, you know, by

6

that.

7

don't think that could be a real good issue for you

8

to deal with.

9

So I'm really very upset about that, so I

MR. FERNANDEZ:

Yeah, we've been trying for years to

10

eliminate the rat problem, you know, patching holes,

11

et cetera, but it's beyond our capability of doing

12

it ourself.

13

whole station.

We probably need to rerenovate the

14

COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON:

15

CHAIR HOKAMA:

16

Station?

Okay.

Okay.

Mr. Molina, questions on Lahaina

Mr. Pontanilla?

17

COUNCILMEMBER PONTANILLA:

18

CHAIR HOKAMA:

19

Mr. Kane?

20

Members.

21

Chief.

22

MR. FERNANDEZ:

Thank you, Mr. Chair.

No.

Ms. Tavares, anything on Lahaina Station?
Okay.

Why don't we move on to 25-9,

That is the Kahului Fire Station project.

Yeah, as you know, we expanded.

23

us positions.

24

the Kahului Fire Station.

25

put some of our -- some of our personnel.

You gave

We're -- we need a lot more room at
We bought a trailer to
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1

funds is to build a few more office -- couple more

2

offices at that facility.

3

CHAIR HOKAMA:

Okay.

4

COUNCILMEMBER KANE:

5

construction?

6

is design?

7

MR. FERNANDEZ:

8

COUNCILMEMBER KANE:

9

construction?

Mr. Kane, questions on this project?
Two phases, yeah, design and
Two phase, this appropriation of 50

For design, yeah.
And then next year for the

10

MR. FERNANDEZ:

11

COUNCILMEMBER KANE:

12

CHAIR HOKAMA:

13

COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: No.

14

CHAIR HOKAMA:

15

COUNCILMEMBER PONTANILLA:

16

CHAIR HOKAMA:

17

That is correct.

Okay, Ms. Johnson, questions?

Mr. Molina?

Ms. Tavares?

MR. FERNANDEZ:

19

CHAIR HOKAMA:

No.
Okay, thank you.

You went CIP Countywide already, right?
Yes, we -- on the equipment.

20

Countywide

21

Chief?

22

MR. FERNANDEZ:

23

CHAIR HOKAMA:

25

Mr. Pontanilla?

Chief, did I miss any other Fire projects?

18

24

Thank you.

Let me see.

what do you have under Countywide,

We have 150,000.
Okay.

Can you just share the projects

you're going to do under Countywide, please.
MR. FERNANDEZ:

Okay.

That would be for Wailuku Station,
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1

apparatus floor lockers, repair of the bathroom and

2

showers; Paia, same, apparatus floor lockers,

3

repairs, paint; some repairs at Kihei Station; Hana,

4

reroof; Lanai, storage facility for the tanker;

5

Kahului Fire Station, security fence, security light

6

for the heli pad; Napili Station, replace floor

7

tiles, air condition system, other repairs; and

8

Pukoo Station, apparatus floor lockers.

9
10
11

CHAIR HOKAMA:

Okay.

Questions on this one, Members?

Ms. Tavares.
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES:

Not on this one, but what you

12

were -- the 28-3 is Fiscal Year '03's Countywide

13

Fire, and I guess I had a reference to that.

14

CHAIR HOKAMA:

Yeah, I was in the wrong one.

15

COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES:

Could you give us a status on all

16

those projects that were in '03, or this year's one?

17

You have Kihei Station reroofing as one of your

18

projects for this year.

19

process?

20

MR. FERNANDEZ:

21
22
23
24
25

Where is that in the

I think most of our projects -- I have to

get that information for you.
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES:

Maybe I can ask who manages your

CIP, the smaller projects?
MR. FERNANDEZ:

The small projects, we do it ourselves

with our assistant chiefs and myself and we work on
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it together.
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES:

Did you have any assistance from,

3

you know, people who are used to doing CIP?

4

Jay?

5

MR. FERNANDEZ:

Most of our people are familiar with

6

construction.

7

capable of handling these type of projects.

8
9

Like

We have built and we have -- we're

COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES:

Okay.

I don't know, Mr. Chair, if

they're in the CIP report from the quarterly report.

10

I didn't look at it, the CIP status.

11

something I would be interested in is where is each

12

of the projects that were listed in this year's one,

13

how far along are they.

14

Improvement Program, page 28-3 of the Fiscal '03

15

proposal.

16

CHAIR HOKAMA:

17

COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES:

18

CHAIR HOKAMA:

But that's

And it's in the Capital

Okay.
This present year's one.

We'll forward that request to the

19

Department to get a status of the current year's

20

Countywide projects.

21

Okay, any other questions on the '04

22

Countywide project listing?

23

think we have been able to complete the Department

24

of Fire and Public Safety.

25

Chief or the Deputy Chief or Mr. Kaupalolo here?

Okay.

I pretty --

I

Any questions for the
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1
2
3

Okay, if not, Chief, any comments before we
end the day?
MR. FERNANDEZ:

Well, I want to thank the Council for the

4

support you have given us in the past.

5

continue to support us, and I hope you'll find extra

6

funds for the items that I didn't submit.

7

again.

8

CHAIR HOKAMA:

9

Deputy.

Thank you very much, Chief.

Thank you

Thank you,

Thank you, Mr. Kaupalolo.
Members, announcements?

10

I hope you

I believe Mr. Kane

11

is conducting a meeting this evening Upcountry.

12

6:00?

7:00?

13

COUNCILMEMBER KANE:

14

CHAIR HOKAMA:

7:00 o'clock, Tavares Center.

7:00 p.m., Members, Tavares Center.

If

15

there be no further announcements, this meeting is

16

adjourned.

17

ADJOURN:

(Gavel)

4:40 p.m.

18
19
20
21
22
23
24
25
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